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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statements that constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, as amended. These statements concern our business, operations and financial performance and condition as well as our plans,
objectives and expectations for our business operations and financial performance and condition, which are subject to risks and uncertainties. All
statements other than statements of historical fact included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking statements. These statements may
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include words such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “assume”, “believe”, “can have”, “could”, “due”, “estimate”, “expect”, “goal”, “intend”, “likely”, “may”,
“objective”, “plan”, “potential”, “positioned”, “predict”, “should”, “target”, “will”, “would” and other words and terms of similar meaning in connection
with any discussion of the timing or nature of future operating or financial performance or other events or trends. For example, all statements we make
relating to our estimated and projected earnings, sales, costs, expenditures, cash flows, growth rates, market share and financial results, our plans and
objectives for future operations, growth or initiatives, strategies or the expected outcome or impact of pending or threatened litigation are forward-looking

statements.

These forward-looking statements are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections about our business and the industry in which we
operate and our management’s beliefs and assumptions. These statements are not guarantees of future performance or development and involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that are in many cases beyond our control. All of our forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties that may cause our actual results to differ materially from our expectations. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the
following: our business is subject to risks arising from the COVID-19 pandemic; the risk that we may not be able to successfully execute our turnaround
plan; the risk that we may not be able to successfully integrate our new Chief Executive Officer; the risk that we cannot anticipate, identify and respond
quickly to changing fashion trends and customer preferences or changes in consumer environment, including changing expectations of service and
experience in boutiques and online, and evolve our business model; our ability to attract a sufficient number of customers to our boutiques or sell sufficient
quantities of our merchandise through our ecommerce website; our ability to successfully open, close, refresh, and operate new boutiques each year; our
ability to efficiently source and distribute additional merchandise quantities necessary to support our growth; and the impact of potential tariff increases or
new tariffs. For additional information regarding these risks and other risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
contained in our forward-looking statements, please refer to “Risk Factors,” contained in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and any risk factors
contained in subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or other reports we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

We derive many of our forward-looking statements from our own operating budgets and forecasts, which are based upon many detailed assumptions. While
we believe that our assumptions are reasonable, we caution that it is very difficult to predict the impact of known factors, and it is impossible for us to
anticipate all factors that could affect our actual results. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations, or
cautionary statements, are disclosed under “Risk Factors”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us, or persons acting on our behalf, are
expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as well as other cautionary statements that
are made from time to time in our other SEC filings and public communications. You should evaluate all forward-looking statements made in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and otherwise in the context of these risks and uncertainties.

Potential investors and other readers are urged to consider these factors carefully in evaluating the forward-looking statements and are cautioned not to
place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements we make. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements after the date of this report to reflect
actual results or future events or circumstances whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise.




PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General
Francesca’s Holdings Corporation was incorporated in Delaware in 2007. We are a holding company and all of our business operations are conducted
through our subsidiaries. Our principal executive office is located at 8760 Clay Road, Houston, Texas 77080, our telephone number is (713) 864-1358 and

our fax number is (713) 426-2751. We maintain a website at www.francescas.com . We may post information that is important to our investors on our
website. Information included or referred to on, or otherwise accessible through, our website is not intended to form part or be incorporated by reference
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into this report. Except where the context otherwise requires or where otherwise indicated, the terms “francesca’s ® » «ye,” “us,” “our,

and “our business” refer to Francesca’s Holdings Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries as a combined entity.

the Company,”

We operate on a fiscal calendar which, in a given fiscal year, consists of a 52- or 53-week period ending on the Saturday closest to January 31st. The
reporting periods contained in our audited consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contain 52 weeks of operations
in fiscal year 2019, which ended on February 1, 2020, 52 weeks of operations in fiscal year 2018, which ended on February 2, 2019, and 53 weeks of
operations in fiscal year 2017, which ended on February 3, 2018.

Our Company

francesca’s® is a specialty retailer which operates a nationwide-chain of boutiques providing customers a unique, fun and personalized shopping
experience. The merchandise assortment we offer is a diverse and balanced mix of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts. We aim to offer a differentiated
shopping experience and quality, on-trend merchandise at a compelling value, across a wide variety of geographic markets and shopping venues. As of
February 1, 2020, francesca’s ® operated 711 boutiques in 47 states and the District of Columbia and also served its customers through
www.francescas.com, our ecommerce website.

Recent Developments

In fiscal year 2019, we developed and began execution of a turnaround plan to stabilize and then grow our business. This plan includes strategies aimed at
enhancing our financial performance, which has declined primarily as a result of our continued comparable sales declines. See “Our Growth Strategy”
below for additional information. We began realizing benefits from our turnaround plan in the back half of fiscal year 2019, mainly due to modifications to
our buying, merchandising and planning activities that allowed us to return to a demand based, read and react customer model. As a result, we saw a
deceleration in the decrease in our comparable sales, ending fiscal year 2019 with a 4% decline compared to a 14% decline in fiscal year 2018 and an 11%
decline in fiscal year 2017. Additionally, we reduced selling, general and administrative expenses by implementing measures to increase boutique team
productivity and other targeted reductions across the entire organization, including workforce reductions in both our corporate office and field operations,
which provided us with approximately $14.2 million in annualized savings. Our operating loss decreased to $24.0 million in fiscal year 2019 as compared
to $33.5 million in fiscal year 2018. We expect to continue executing our turnaround plan until our desired results are achieved.

In February 2020, our Board of Directors appointed Mr. Andrew Clarke as our President and Chief Executive Officer and as a Class II director of our
Board of Directors, effective March 9, 2020. At such time, Mr. Michael Prendergast, who served as our Interim Chief Executive Officer since February
2019, resigned from his position of Interim Chief Executive Officer, effective March 9, 2020.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a pandemic. In recent months, the outbreak has spread globally and has led
governments and other authorities around the world, including federal, state and local authorities in the United States, to impose measures intended to
reduce its spread, including restrictions on freedom of movement and business operations such as travel bans, border closings, business limitations and
closures (subject to exceptions for essential operations and businesses), quarantines and shelter-in-place orders. These measures may remain in place for a
significant amount of time and has resulted in the temporary closures of all of our boutiques from March 25, 2020 to April 30, 2020, when we began
reopening a small number of our boutiques in locations where local shutdown orders have been lifted. These measures have also caused an overall
disruption in our supply chain and operations; while our ecommerce and our distribution center remain open, they are operating at a reduced capacity. As a
result, our revenues, results of operations and cash flows have been materially adversely impacted which raises substantial doubt about our ability to
continue as a going concern. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, we are taking aggressive and prudent actions to reduce expenses and defer payment
of accounts payables and inventory purchases to preserve cash on hand. These actions include, but are not limited to:

temporary furlough of substantially all corporate and boutique employees (for the duration of boutique closures at their location and subject to
reduced staffing for a phase-in period upon reopening);

base salary reductions for our senior leadership team;
suspension of payment of all accounts payable other than those necessary to support our ecommerce business;

deferring payment of rent at all of our boutiques, corporate headquarters and distribution facility, beginning in April 2020 subject to discussion
with our landlords;

limiting investments in our ecommerce to neccessary website and supporting functions; and

suspension of all capital expenditures.




Additionally, we borrowed $5.0 million under our Amended Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility with JPMorgan Chase (“Amended ABL Credit
Facility”) in April 2020. We also filed an income tax refund for $10.7 million with the IRS related to the provision under the Corona Aid, Relief and
Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) enacted in March 2020 that allows the carryback of net operating losses to prior years. We are electing to take
other available relief under the CARES Act including deferral of payment of certain payroll taxes and employee retention tax credits. We continue to
evaluate the provisions of the CARES Act and the ways in which it could assist our business or improve our liquidity.

The inclusion of a going concern qualification in the report of our independent registered public accountant on our accompanying financial statements for
the fiscal year ended February 1, 2020 has resulted in a violation of certain covenants under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit
Agreement (each as defined below). On May 1, 2020, we entered into a letter agreement (the “JPM Letter Agreement”) in connection with our Amended
ABL Credit Agreement and a letter agreement (the “Tiger Letter Agreement”) in connection with our Term Loan Credit Agreement, in each case, to obtain
a waiver from our lenders of any default or event of default arising from our failure to (i) deliver annual audited consolidated financial statements for the
fiscal year ended February 1, 2020 without a “going concern” or a like qualification or exception and (ii) pay rent on leased locations for the months of
April, May and June, 2020. The JPM Letter Agreement and Tiger Letter Agreement contain certain conditions and covenants, including that, in the case of
the JPM Letter Agreement, we are required to use the entire $10.7 million income tax refund requested under the CARES Act to repay certain outstanding
borrowings under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement and providing that no loans will be made under the ABL Credit Agreement unless our aggregate
amount of cash and cash equivalents is less than $3.0 million. See Item 9B of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information. If we are unable
to meet our financial covenants or if we have an event of default under either agreement, including if we are unable or elect not to pay rent on our leased
locations beginning in July 2020 and do not otherwise obtain a waiver from our lenders, our lenders could instruct the administrative agent under such
credit facilities to exercise available remedies including, declaring the principal of and accrued interest on all outstanding indebtedness due and payable
immediately and terminating all remaining commitments and obligations under the credit facilities. Although the lenders under our credit facilities may
waive the defaults or forebear the exercise of remedies, they are not obligated to do so. Failure to obtain such a waiver would have a material adverse effect
on the liquidity, financial condition and results of operations and may result in filing a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the United States
Bankruptcy Code in order to implement a restructuring plan. See Item 1A, Risk Factors of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.

There is significant uncertainty around the disruptions related to the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on the global economy. While our results of
operations have been significantly impacted and we anticipate our future results will continue to be adversely impacted, the extent to which the COVID-19
pandemic impacts our future results will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with certainty, including new
information which may emerge concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic in the United States, actions taken to contain it or treat its impact, any
possible resurgence of COVID-19 that may occur after the initial outbreak subsides, and how quickly and to what extent normal economic and operating
conditions can resume. See Item 1A, Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for more information regarding the risks we face as result of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Our Philosophy
Our operating philosophy is grounded in the following and we believe differentiates us from our competitors:

On-trend Merchandise Delivered at a Compelling Value. Our boutiques aim to carry a broad and shallow selection of quality on-trend apparel,
jewelry, accessories and gifts at attractive prices that ‘surprise and delight’ our customers. Our buyers closely monitor the marketplace to identify
and source proven fashion trends we believe will appeal to our core customers. We have a unique assortment as we primarily offer items under our
proprietary labels. We also carry a small selection of third-party, nationally recognized brands that we use opportunistically in certain categories.
We offer a broad selection of merchandise, but intentionally purchase relatively limited quantities of individual items for each boutique. We
frequently replenish our boutiques with new merchandise, keeping the shopping experience fresh and exciting for our customers. The short lead
times of our vendors maximizes our speed to market, as it generally takes four to twelve weeks from the time an order is placed to the time
merchandise is available on the boutique floor. These short lead times enable us to make more informed buying decisions by allowing us to react
quickly to fashion trends. This approach, combined with our balanced merchandise mix of approximately 50% apparel and 50% jewelry,
accessories and gifts, is designed to encourage frequent visits by our customers and mitigate the seasonal fluctuations in sales and merchandise
margin.

Differentiated Shopping Experience. Each of our retail locations is designed and merchandised to feel like an upscale yet affordable boutique.
Merchandise presentations, including display windows, tables and walls, are refreshed frequently to keep our boutiques new and exciting. Each
boutique feels individualized and our boutique associates strive to provide a personalized and intimate guest experience by creating a high-touch
service environment which increases guest engagement and enhances the shopping experience. We believe these attributes, along with our strategy
of carrying a broad selection but relatively limited quantities of individual styles, create an atmosphere that appeals to our customers and
differentiates us in the marketplace.

Flexible Boutique Format and Rigorous Real Estate Selection Process. Our boutique format typically works across a wide variety of shopping
venues, market sizes, climates and demographics. Our boutiques are leased from third parties with initial lease terms of five to ten years and have
an average size of 1,462 square feet, which is meaningfully smaller than most specialty retailers. Our flexible real estate format, coupled with the
performance of our boutiques, has historically enhanced our ability to secure prominent, highly visible locations in regional malls, lifestyle
centers, street locations, strip centers and outlet centers. The selection of the location of our boutiques benefits from our rigorous real estate
selection process, with all boutique locations measured against specific financial and geographic criteria, including the calibration of occupancy
costs against projected sales for new boutiques.

Solid and Scalable Infrastructure. We have invested in systems, controls and human resources to support our operations. In recent years, we have
made significant improvements in our ecommerce and IT systems as well as the infrastructure of our buying, planning and allocation, real estate,
boutique operations, and finance departments. We believe that we have developed an integrated sourcing, distribution and merchandising process
that is scalable. This process includes buyers who work closely with an established and diverse group of vendors to identify on-trend, quality
merchandise for our boutiques, as well as delivery, distribution and merchandising processes that enable us to execute a broad and shallow
merchandising approach.




Our Growth Strategy
We believe we can grow our revenues and earnings by executing on our turnaround plan, which includes the following strategies:

Improve Merchandise to be More On-Trend and Better Aligned with Customer Demand. We plan to increase comparable sales by having customer
demand drive our merchandise assortment. In recent years, we have not successfully executed demand based, fast fashion merchandising
processes. In fiscal year 2019, we returned to merchandising processes that allow us to better read and react to customer demands and that made us
successful in prior years. We have accomplished this by employing simplified merchandise planning and buying processes, which includes a
weekly review of product sales to analyze selling trends of best and worst sellers, maintaining appropriate levels of open to buy to chase strong
selling merchandise and reducing lead times down to historical levels. Additionally, we are guided by a deliberate category hierarchy focused on
three types of merchandise: fashion, seasonal and core. This category hierarchy helps ensure that our merchandise offerings are balanced and
relevant to our customers. We believe this merchandising strategy has resulted and will continue to result in improvement in our conversion rates
as we better meet our customers’ expectations which will then lead to improvement in our traffic.

Renewed Emphasis on Demand-Based, Fast Fashion Principles in Merchandise Planning and Buying. We believe merchandise planning and
buying processes that better emphasize demand-based, fast fashion principles will continue to help drive comparable sales. We believe
successfully implementing these principles will enable us to continue to invest in merchandise that resonates with our customers and adjust
accordingly when merchandise does not resonate with our customers. We believe our renewed focus on these principles has driven and will
continue to drive improved sales and a steady flow of on-trend merchandise into our boutiques and ecommerce site. Our turnaround plan includes
the following strategies that will help us better implement those principles:

o We are consistently updating and adding robust analytics to our planning and buying processes in order to more quickly react to fashion
trends and the resonance of our merchandise with our customers. Our buyers have immersed themselves in markets, trade shows and trend
services, as well as capitalized on our vendor relationships to identify current trends in order to continuously elevate and align our product
offerings with customer demand.

o We are continuously increasing the flexibility of our planning such that a greater portion of our merchandise will be open to buy in season,
enabling our style selection and inventory investments to better respond to customer demand.

o We continue to employ a wide scale testing strategy that is helping us evaluate promotional strategies with the goal of expanding impactful
wins to all boutiques and our ecommerce site.

Right Size Our Expense Structure. In early fiscal 2019, we reduced selling, general and administrative expenses by implementing targeted
reductions across the entire organization, including workforce reductions in both our corporate office and field management, which provided us
with approximately $8.0 million in annualized savings. While we are continuing to look for further efficiencies in our cost structure, we believe
that any additional savings will not materially impact our financial results.

Increase Boutique Team Productivity. We believe through focused monitoring of our boutique labor and sales metrics we can better utilize our
sales associates’ time without sacrificing the customer experience. For example, certain tasks that were previously performed by our associates
after boutique hours are now completed when our boutiques are open but during the windows that our data shows that boutique traffic is lighter.
Additionally, our use of an enhanced scheduling tool, that is continuously reviewed and refined, has better aligned boutique payroll expense to
sales levels. These initiatives resulted in a decrease in total labor hours used and savings of approximately of $6.2 million for fiscal year 2019.
While we are continuing to look for additional ways to increase boutique team productivity, we believe that any additional labor efficiencies we
may identify in the future will not materially impact on our financial results.

Optimize Existing Real Estate Fleet. While we believe we have an opportunity to grow our boutique base in the United States based on our
flexible boutique format and the financial characteristics of our boutiques, we are currently focused on optimizing our existing real estate fleet. In
particular, we are continuing to focus on optimizing the lease expense structure for our existing boutiques, with an emphasis towards calibrating
occupancy costs with sales levels and negotiating with landlords for early lease terminations or rent concessions for underperforming boutiques
and early lease extensions for our best performing boutiques. Additionally, we continue to regularly review our existing boutiques for
opportunistic closures to increase the overall health of our fleet without incurring material write-offs associated with such closures. As a result of
such review, we closed 21 underperforming boutiques during fiscal year 2019.




Our History

In 1999, our company was founded and we opened our first boutique in Houston, Texas. Initially, we focused on selling fashion jewelry, accessories and
selected home décor. As our boutique base grew across the United States we expanded our merchandise offering to include apparel, which has become our
largest category. In July 2011, we became a publicly-traded company.

Our Market

Our distinct boutique environment and carefully selected merchandise focused on quality, on-trend offerings at a compelling value attracts a wide
demographic. Our unique merchandise combination of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts allows us to participate in a number of large market segments.
While our broad assortment appeals to women of varying ages and diverse backgrounds, from the value-conscious to the more affluent, our core guest is a
fashion-conscious woman between the ages of 18 and 35. She tends to be college educated and has moderate to high disposable income. She enjoys
shopping for the latest fashion and is attracted to our upscale boutique shopping environment, compelling value proposition and personalized customer
service. We believe she spends a higher proportion of her income on fashion than the general population.

Our Merchandise Offering and Merchandising Strategy

We offer a broad and shallow selection of fashion apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts targeted to our core customer, who seeks on-trend, quality
merchandise at attractive prices. We use the term broad and shallow to refer to a diverse merchandise assortment with limited quantities of each item than
most specialty retailers. In addition to our broad assortment, we deliver new merchandise to our boutiques every week offering our customer constant
newness. We have a balanced assortment of merchandise categories with approximately 50% of our fiscal year 2019 sales generated by non-apparel items.

Our wide range of apparel, jewelry and accessories fills the various casual and dressy fashion needs of our customers and our selection of gifts range from
fun to elegant. The majority of our merchandise is sold under our proprietary labels and we also sell a select assortment of third-party, nationally
recognized brands. Our ecommerce website features the same merchandise offered in our boutiques coupled with online exclusives. Additionally, our
ecommerce inventory is available to order in-boutique in the same transaction as in-boutique purchases or in a separate transaction. The table below shows
the approximate breakdown of our fiscal year 2019 net sales by merchandise category:

Apparel Jewelry Accessories Gifts
46% of Net Sales 27% of Net Sales 16% of Net Sales 10% of Net Sales
Dresses, Fashion Tops, Sweaters, Necklaces, Earrings, Handbags, Clutches, Fragrance, Candles, Bath
Cardigans and Wraps, Bottoms, Bracelets, Rings Wallets, Shoes, Belts, Hats, and Body, Home
Outerwear and Jackets, Tees and Scarves, Sunglasses, Accessories, Books, Wall
Tanks, Intimates Watches, Beauty, Hair Art, Nail Polish,
Accessories Miscellaneous Items

We believe we can improve our conversion rate, traffic and our flow of on-trend merchandise by continuing to implement our strategies of customer
demand driving our merchandise assortment and our renewed emphasis on demand based, fast fashion principles in merchandise planning and buying.

Our buying team is responsible for selecting and sourcing our merchandise. Each merchandise category has a set of dedicated buyers. Our planning and
allocation team assists in managing inventory levels and allocating items to boutiques. The teams hold weekly meetings to review merchandise
performance and identify new fashion trends. Our buyers also make regular trips to important industry markets and trade shows. We have access to the
expertise of hundreds of designers employed by our large vendor base who provide us with a large selection of new styles for review. Our buyers
collaborate with vendors to place special orders and to modify presented styles based on current fashion trends and their in-depth knowledge of our
customers’ preferences, which means most of our merchandise is typically unique to francesca’s. Before placing an order, every item is evaluated for style,

quality, fit, value and profitability to ensure it meets standards consistent with the francesca’s ® brand. Every item is also evaluated to confirm that it fits
within our category hierarchy comprised of fashion, seasonal or core categories. In order to clear slow moving inventory, in addition to normal promotional
and markdown activities, we regularly mark certain merchandise out-of-stock and dispose of such inventory at a pace suitable for our merchandising
strategy.




Our Sourcing Strategy

Our renewed emphasis on a demand based, fast fashion model in merchandise planning and buying, combined with the short production lead times of our
vendors, maximizes our speed to market. We primarily use vendors based in the United States that source from both domestic and overseas markets and it
generally takes four to twelve weeks from the time an order is placed to the time merchandise is available on the boutique floor. These short lead times
enable us to make more informed buying decisions in terms of customers’ merchandise expectations, and to quickly react to changing fashion trends. This
also supports our merchandise strategy of offering a broad and shallow assortment that is consistently refreshed.

We do not own or operate any manufacturing facilities. We have relationships with a diverse base of approximately 400 vendors and transact business on a
purchase-order-by-purchase order basis. In fiscal year 2019, we sourced approximately 97% of our merchandise from 200 vendors while our top 10
vendors sourced approximately 35% of our merchandise, with no single vendor accounting for more than 6% of our purchases. We believe that the loss of
any single current vendor would not result in a material disruption to our business.

We do not enter into exclusive contracts with our vendors and we continue to optimize our vendor network. This provides us with access to an even
more extensive variety of merchandise from a greater number of vendors at competitive prices. We believe our vendors view us as an important customer
given our market position. Our vendors utilize a network of domestic and overseas factories, providing them access to significant capacity.

Each of our vendors is required to adhere to our vendor standards, which are designed to ensure that our vendors conduct their business in a legal, ethical
and responsible manner. This also includes the requirement that all of our vendors comply with the applicable laws and regulations of the United States,
those of the respective country of manufacture or exportation and all state and local laws and regulations. To date, we have not experienced any significant
impact from the trading polices of the United States or its trading partners.

Our Sales Channels

We conduct business through our boutiques and our ecommerce website, www.francescas.com. We do not incorporate the information contained on, or
accessible through, the investor relations section of our website into this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and it should not be considered a part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Boutiques

As of February 1, 2020, we operated 711 boutiques under the name francesca’s® in 47 states throughout the United States and the District of Columbia.
Our long-term strategy depends on our ability to successfully operate existing and new boutiques in a timely and cost-effective manner. Our current priority
remains to implement the strategies discussed above under “Our Growth Strategy” to continue to enhance comparable sales and profitability. We plan to
resume boutique openings in the future as appropriate once the desired results of our turnaround plan are achieved. The table below shows the number of
boutiques operated by state as of February 1, 2020.

State Number of Boutiques State Number of Boutiques
Alabama 12 Montana 2
Arizona 11  Nebraska 5
Arkansas 9 Nevada 7
California 60 New Hampshire 6
Colorado 15 New Jersey 28
Connecticut 10 New Mexico 2
Delaware 4 New York 29
District of Columbia* 2 North Carolina 21
Florida 52 North Dakota 4
Georgia 19 Ohio 25
Idaho 2 Oklahoma 8
Illinois 34 Oregon 6
Indiana 15 Pennsylvania 29
Iowa 7  Rhode Island 4
Kansas 7  South Carolina 11
Kentucky 9  South Dakota 2
Louisiana 12 Tennessee 18
Maine 2 Texas 74
Maryland 14  Utah 3
Massachusetts 21 Virginia 24
Michigan 20 Washington 13
Minnesota 15 West Virginia 3
Mississippi 7  Wisconsin 13
Missouri 14  Wyoming 1

* Not considered a state.




Boutique Design and Environment

The differentiated shopping experience offered through our boutiques is central to the francesca’s® brand. Our boutiques are designed and merchandised to
deliver a warm and inviting atmosphere that creates a boutique shopping experience. We also aim to provide a personalized in-boutique guest experience by
creating a high-touch service environment with a focus on engaging, connecting and inspiring our customers. Although we strive to maintain a relatively
consistent look and feel in all of our boutiques, the intricacies of each boutique’s physical properties, geographic market and shopping venue make each
feel different and in tune with its local clientele.

Our boutiques typically range in size from 1,000 to 2,000 square feet, with an average size of 1,462 square feet as of February 1, 2020. Our locations
typically have a boutique front that is at least 25 feet wide, which we adorn with visually appealing architectural lighting, signage and display window
presentations. Inside, we use a variety of color palettes and soft lighting. Each boutique’s merchandise presentation, including display windows, tables and
walls, is refreshed frequently to keep our shopping experience new and exciting. We believe by constantly changing our visual merchandising and
presentation, we give our customers a reason to shop our boutiques frequently, building customer loyalty. Our boutique managers also share best-practices
with each other. We believe these grass-root interactions improve the sense of community among our boutique managers and enhance the shopping
experience for our customers.

Staffing in our boutiques consists of a boutique manager, an assistant manager and part-time associates. Our compensation structure includes a bonus
component payable upon the achievement of certain financial goals. We endeavor to hire boutique personnel that are friendly and customer-service driven
individuals. In addition to training programs for visual merchandising, customer service and operations, boutique managers benefit from ongoing field-
level support and training updates as well as guides and manuals.

Boutique Openings, Closures and Remodels

During fiscal year 2018, we opened 32 boutiques with an average size of approximately 2,033 square feet. These boutiques generated average sales of
approximately $621,000 in the first year and are expected to pay back our pre-tax net investment, on average, in approximately three and a half years. Our
average pre-tax net investment consisted of $276,000 in average boutique build-out costs (net of $44,000 average tenant allowance) and $56,000 in average
inventory. The payback period for boutiques opened in fiscal year 2018 was significantly longer compared to the payback period for boutiques opened in
years prior to fiscal year 2017 primarily due to a decrease in overall boutique profitability as well as increasing boutique build-out costs, partly as a result
of opening more boutiques in outlet centers, which are generally larger in size compared to boutiques in other venues.

The table below indicates certain historical information regarding our boutiques as of the end of each of the periods indicated below:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

Year Year Year Year Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Mall 342 350 351 334 313
Non-mall() 369 377 370 337 303
Total boutiques 711 727 721 671 616
Boutiques opened 5 32 60 64 83
Boutiques closed 21 26 10 9 6
Boutique remodels - 81 17 32 25
Total approximate gross square feet at the end of the
period 1,040,000 1,055,000 1,024,000 933,000 843,000
Average square feet per boutique at the end of the
period @ 1,462 1,452 1,420 1,391 1,368
Net sales per average square foot for the period® $ 390 $ 404 $ 482 % 545 $ 543

(1) Non-mall includes boutiques in lifestyle centers, street locations, strip centers and outlet centers.

(2) Average square feet per boutique is calculated by dividing total gross square feet at the end of the period by the number of boutiques open at the end of the period.

(3) Net sales per average square foot is calculated by dividing net sales for the period by the average total square feet during the period. For purposes of providing net sales per square- foot
measure, we use average square feet during the period as opposed to total gross square feet at the end of the period. Average square feet is calculated as (a) the sum of total gross square feet
at the beginning of the period and total gross square feet at the end of each fiscal quarter within the period, divided by (b) the number of fiscal quarters within the period plus one (which, for a
fiscal year, is five). There may be variations in the way in which some of our competitors and other retailers calculate sales per square foot or similarly titled measures. As a result, average
square feet and net sales per average square foot for the period may not be comparable to similar data made available by other retailers.




Our flexible boutique format has enabled us to successfully open boutiques across a variety of shopping venues, market sizes, climates and demographics.
Our real estate committee has consistently utilized a disciplined approach to site selection, which analyzes the prospective shopping venue for factors such
as overall shopping venue productivity, competitive environment and specific sales of other retailers deemed most relevant as well as the configuration of
available space for potential new boutique locations. When selecting a location for a new boutique, we seek prominent locations in high-traffic areas of the
shopping venue and in close proximity to other retailers targeting similar customers. We also evaluate each new boutique location based on projected sales
and determine whether the capital investment and estimated boutique four-wall contribution satisfies our targeted return threshold, occupancy costs, and
boutique contribution. We believe these attributes have provided us, and will continue to provide us, with a wide scope of real estate opportunities and
enhances our ability to profitably expand our boutique base. Our current priority remains to implement the strategies of our turnaround plan discussed
above under “Our Growth Strategy” to enhance comparable sales. We plan to resume boutique openings in the future as appropriate when the desired
results are achieved under our turnaround plan.

We continuously review the overall economic performance of our boutiques. As part of our economic review process, we evaluate a variety of factors such
as expected future revenue and contribution margin, applicable market conditions, our co-tenancy requirements, unamortized portion of leasehold
improvements, our ability to terminate the underlying lease obligation and related cost of any such early termination. As a result of such review, we closed
21 underperforming boutiques during fiscal year 2019. For fiscal year 2020, we will continue to focus on optimizing our existing real estate fleet by
reviewing the lease expense structure for our existing boutiques, with an emphasis towards calibrating occupancy costs and sales levels, negotiating with
landlords for early lease terminations or rent concessions for underperforming boutiques and early extensions for our best performing boutiques, as
appropriate.

In fiscal year 2018, we started a boutique remodel program where we refreshed 81 high-volume existing boutiques. We view this refresh program as an
important investment to continually enhance the customer shopping experience. While we put a pause on this program in fiscal year 2019 due to the recent
challenges in our business, we currently intend to reinitiate this program when the desired results are achieved under our turnaround plan.

Ecommerce

Our ecommerce operations consists of our www.francescas.com website. Through our website, our customers are able to purchase individual items, shop
the latest jewelry, gift or fashion merchandise and special promotions, create a wish list, sign up for our customer email list, connect and follow us on social
media sites such as Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and Pinterest, as well as obtain current information on our boutique locations. This channel enables us to
further build our brand, address the growing preference for online shopping and reach customers in all areas where we currently do not have a boutique. We
recognize the growing preference for online shopping and we plan to make necessary investments in our website and supporting functions that will further
enhance our customers’ shopping experience as well as establish the framework for our long-term ecommerce strategies. During fiscal 2018, we invested in
a warehouse management system to support our ecommerce operations. We intend to make the necessary investments in our ecommerce website and
supporting functions in fiscal year 2020 and beyond, which we believe will further enhance our customers’ shopping experience. We believe there is
significant potential to expand this channel over time with our current infrastructure.

Omni-Channel Customer Experience

We have made significant investments in our technology systems and enabled certain omni-channel capabilities, including “buy-online and ship-to-
boutique” and “buy-in-boutique and ship-to-home,” which offer a consistent and seamless shopping experience both in-boutique or online. We believe that
the line between our boutiques and ecommerce channels are disappearing as customers increasingly interact with us both in-boutique and online. We are
focused on leveraging the best of both channels to create an exceptional and seamless omni-channel shopping experience for our customers.

Marketing and Advertising

We have historically focused on organic, viral and in-boutique marketing to increase customer loyalty and build our brand image. By locating our boutiques

in prominent, high-traffic locations and our limited use of traditional radio and print advertising, we encourage people to ‘discover’ francesca’s ®. We
believe that many of our customers develop a personal connection with our boutiques and become our ambassadors in the local community by spreading

the word about francesca’s ®. Our boutique managers are passionate about francesca’s™ and contribute to our marketing effort by participating in shopping
center or community sponsored marketing events. We also use email communications, our website and, increasingly, social networking sites, such as
Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and Pinterest, individual social media influencers and fashion related blogs to achieve our marketing goals. We plan to
continue to focus our investments in the appropriate marketing programs to build customer loyalty. In fiscal year 2018, we launched a nationwide customer
loyalty program, franRewards, where members may receive free gifts, discounts as well as early access to certain promotions. Our loyalty program is aimed
at driving traffic into our boutiques, better understand our customers’ purchasing pattern as well as support various strategic initiatives. Benefits under our
loyalty program have currently been put on hold. We are in the process of evaluating the structure of our rewards program and intend to resume providing
benefits upon the conclusion of such assessment.
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Distribution

We distribute most of our merchandise from our distribution center (located within our corporate headquarters) in Houston, Texas. Our current facility
occupies approximately 218,000 square feet, consisting of approximately 165,000 square feet of warehouse and distribution space, which services our
boutiques and ecommerce, and approximately 53,000 square feet of office space for our corporate headquarters. Our merchandise is generally received,
inspected, managed, stored and distributed through our distribution warehouse. The majority of our merchandise is pre-ticketed and pre-sorted by our
vendors which allows us to efficiently ship from our distribution center directly to our boutiques, thereby reducing labor costs. Due to the relatively small
size of our boutiques, we ship smaller packages of fresh merchandise weekly. Hence, we are able to utilize third party shipping vendors to effectively
distribute merchandise on a continuous basis, ensuring successful execution of our broad and shallow merchandising strategy. We believe that our current
facilities will be sufficient to support our growth plans for several years.

Management Information Systems

Our management information technology systems provide support and timely information to our management team. We believe our current systems
provide us with operational efficiencies, scalability, management control and timely reporting that allows us to identify and respond to operating trends in
our business. We use a combination of customized and industry-standard software systems to support boutique point-of-sale, merchandise planning and
buying, ecommerce, inventory management, financial reporting and administrative functions.

In prior years, we deployed new technologies to enhance our omni-channel and customer engagement capabilities as part of our long-term strategic plan.
Specifically, in fiscal year 2017, we completed our legacy point-of-sale system replacement and the implementation of a new customer relationship
management system and, in October 2018, we completed the implementation of a new warehouse management system for ecommerce. These new systems
have enhanced our visibility into our customers’ preferences, merchandise products and supply chain which we expect will result in improved customer
service, improved operational efficiency, enhanced management analytics and increased inventory synergies between our ecommerce and our boutique
channels.

We will remain diligent in our efforts to maintain the functionality and performance of our existing enterprise applications and infrastructure to support the
Company’s turnaround and growth plans.

Competition

The women’s apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts market is large, fragmented and highly competitive. Our largest competitors include national and
regional department stores, value retailers, specialty retailers, mass merchants and internet-based retailers. Due to the breadth of our merchandise, it is
difficult to identify companies that compete with us in every product category. We generally compete with individual, often owner-operated specialty shops
in each of the markets that we operate as well as broadly merchandised department stores and certain specialty stores. We also face intense competition
from the ecommerce platforms of our brick and mortar competitors, as well as internet-based retailers due to the continuing shift in customer demand away
from brick and mortar to ecommerce. We may also face new competitors and increased competition from existing competitors if and when we expand into
new markets and increase our presence in existing markets.

The principal basis upon which we compete is by offering a differentiated shopping experience through quality, on-trend merchandise at attractive prices in
a warm and inviting boutique environment with personalized customer service. Our manageable boutique size and flexible but disciplined real estate
strategy provide us with a competitive advantage that is not easily replicated by our major competitors. Our success also depends in substantial part on our
ability to respond quickly to fashion trends so that we can meet the changing demands of our customers.

Intellectual Property

We have registered our trademark francesca’s™ with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. We own domain names, including
www.francescas.com , and we own unregistered copyright in our website content. We believe our trademarks have value, and we diligently protect them
against infringement. For instance, we have filed applications to register our trademark internationally. We will also continue to file new applications as
appropriate to protect our intellectual property rights.
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Regulation and Legislation

We are subject to labor and employment laws, laws governing advertising and promotions, privacy laws, product and other safety regulations, consumer
protection regulations, environmental requirements and other laws that regulate retailers and govern the promotion and sale of merchandise and the
operation of boutiques and warehouse facilities. We monitor changes in these laws and believe that we are in compliance with applicable laws in all
material respects.

Privacy Laws

In the course of our operations, we gather, process, transmit and store customer information, including personal, payment, credit and other confidential and
private information such as home addresses and birthdays. Our collection, retention, transfer and use of this information are governed by U.S. laws and
regulations relating to privacy, data protection and information security, as well as industry standards and protocols. The regulatory framework for privacy
and information security issues worldwide is rapidly evolving and is likely to remain uncertain for the foreseeable future. In the United States, federal and
various state governmental bodies and agencies have adopted or are considering adopting laws and regulations limiting, or laws and regulations regarding
the collection, distribution, use, disclosure, storage, and security of certain categories of information. Some of these requirements include obligations of
companies to notify individuals of security breaches involving particular personal information, which could result from exploitation of a vulnerability in
our systems or services or breaches experienced by us. For example, the State of California recently enacted the California Consumer Privacy ACT
(“CCPA”), which became effective on January 1, 2020. The CCPA expands the scope of what is considered “personal information” and creates new data
access and opt-out rights for consumers, which creates new requirements for us and other companies that operate in California. Any failure or perceived
failure to comply with these laws and regulations could harm our reputation or lead to litigation, which could adversely affect our financial condition.

Labor and Employment Laws

We are subject to the U.S. Fair Labor Standards Act, the U.S. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and various other federal and state laws
governing matters such as minimum wage requirements, overtime, fringe benefits, workplace safety and other working conditions and citizenship
requirements. A significant number of our boutique personnel are paid at rates related to the applicable minimum wage, and past increases in the minimum
wage have increased our labor costs, as would future increases. Our vendors and suppliers also may be affected by higher minimum wage and benefit
standards, which could result in higher costs for goods supplied to us and our boutiques. We may also be subject to lawsuits from our employees, the U.S.
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or others alleging violations of federal and state laws regarding workplace and employment matters,
discrimination and similar matters.

Insurance

We use insurance for a number of risk management activities, including workers’ compensation, general liability, automobile liability, cyber security and
employee-related health care benefits, a portion of which is paid by our employees. We evaluate our insurance requirements on an ongoing basis and
believe we maintain adequate levels of coverage.

Our Employees

As of February 1, 2020, we had 5,236 total employees. Of our total employees, 1,159 are full time employees and 4,077 are part time employees. As of

April 15, 2020, substantially all our corporate and boutique employees were furloughed as a result of temporary boutique closures and various state and
local “stay-at-home” orders in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. None of our employees are represented by a labor union and we have had no labor-
related work stoppages as of February 1, 2020. Our relationship with our employees is one of the keys to our success and we believe that relationship is

satisfactory.

Seasonality

Our wide-range of merchandise and our strategy of carrying a broad selection but limited quantities of each item reduce our overall seasonality relative to
other specialty retailers. Nevertheless, our business is seasonal in nature and demand is generally the highest in the fourth fiscal quarter due to the year-end
holiday season and lowest in the first fiscal quarter. As a result of this seasonality and generally because of variation in consumer spending habits, we
experience fluctuations in net sales and working capital requirements during the year. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations-Seasonality” for more information.
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Privacy Policy
In the course of our business, we collect information about our customers, including customer data submitted to us in connection with purchases of our
merchandise at boutiques as well as from our ecommerce website. We respect the privacy of our customers and take steps to safeguard the confidentiality

of the information that they provide to us.

Securities and Exchange Commission Filings

We maintain a website at www.francescas.com. We provide, free of charge, access to various reports that we file with, or furnish to, the SEC through our
website, as soon as reasonably practicable after they have been filed or furnished with the SEC. These reports include, but not limited to, our Annual
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports. The SEC maintains a
website that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding our filings at http://www.sec.gov.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition, results of operation, cash flow and prospects could be materially and
adversely affected. As a result, the trading price of our common stock could decline.

Our business is subject to risks arising from the COVID-19 pandemic.

The recent outbreak of COVID-19, which has been declared by the World Health Organization to be a pandemic, has spread across the globe and is
impacting worldwide economic activity. A pandemic, including COVID-19, or other public health epidemic poses the risk that we or our employees,
vendors, suppliers and other partners may be prevented from conducting normal business activities at full capacity for an indefinite period of time,
including due to spread of disease among our employees, vendors, suppliers and other partners, or due to shutdowns that may be or have been requested or
mandated by governmental authorities. While it is not possible at this time to predict with certainty the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic will have on
our business, the continued spread of COVID-19 and the measures taken by the U.S. government and the government of the countries in which we operate
and in which our vendors and suppliers operate has and / or may continue to result in, among other things, the closure of all of our boutiques from March
25, 2020 to April 30, 2020, when we began reopening a small number of our boutiques in locations where local shutdown orders have been lifted, reduced
operating capacity at our ecommerce website and distribution facility, reduced customer visits on our ecommerce website, temporary furloughs of
substantially all corporate and boutique employees (for the duration of boutique closures at their location and subject to reduced staffing for a phase-in
period upon reopening), base salary reductions for our senior leadership team, suspension of payment of all accounts payable other than those necessary to
support our ecommerce business, a shortage of boutique employees who are willing to operate our boutiques when they reopen, a delay in the shipment of
merchandise to our boutiques or a shortage of merchandise in our boutiques and a decrease in consumer willingness to visit malls and shopping centers and
consumer discretionary spending generally. If individuals decide to continue to stay at home and away from malls and other shopping locations when our
boutiques reopen, including due to continued and prolonged periods of government mandated remote work or sheltering in place or due to a resurgence of
COVID-19 after the initial infection has subsided, it would further adversely affect traffic in our boutiques and, therefore, our operating results and
financial condition will or may be adversely impacted. In addition, if individuals are concerned with the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, they
may decrease their discretionary spending on our products, which would adversely affect our operating results and financial condition. The COVID-
19 pandemic and mitigation measures are currently having and may continue to have an adverse impact on global economic conditions, which has had and
may continue to have an adverse effect on our business and financial condition, including on our ability to obtain financing on terms acceptable to us, if at
all. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic continues to impact our results will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot
be predicted at this time, including new information that may emerge concerning the severity of the virus and the actions to contain its impact.

In addition, in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic, many federal, state and local governmental authorities or individual landlords have granted, or
may potentially grant, rent relief or other relief or enact amnesty programs applicable to the leases for our boutiques, corporate headquarters and
distribution facility. As a result of such relief, beginning in April 2020, we stopped lease payments on all of our boutiques, corporate headquarters and
distribution facility, subject to discussions with our landlords. We intend to resume lease payments, including the repayment of abated lease payments, upon
the earlier of the termination of such rental relief periods or upon our resuming normal operations following the COVID-19 pandemic. If we are unable to
generate sufficient operating income to repay abated lease payments within the timelines prescribed by applicable governmental authorities or agreed by
our landlords, the leases for our boutiques, corporate headquarters and distribution facility may be subject to cancellation. Further, there can be no
assurance that we will be successful in obtaining all or any of the additional rent relief we are seeking. Failure to obtain such rent abatements would have a
material adverse effect on our liquidity, financial condition and results of operations. The ultimate impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows will depend on our ability to have sufficient liquidity until such time as our stores can again
generate revenue and profits capable of supporting our ongoing operations, all of which remain highly uncertain at this time.
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Our audited financial statements included a statement that there is a substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern and a
continuation of negative financial trends could result in our inability to continue as a going concern.

Our audited financial statements as of and for the year ended February 1, 2020 were prepared on the assumption that we would continue as a going
concern. Our audited financial statements as of and for the year ended February 1, 2020 did not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome
of this uncertainty. As a result of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our operations as described above, our management has determined that there
is a substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern over the next twelve months and our independent auditors have included a

“going concern” explanatory paragraph in their report on our financial statements as of and for the year ended February 1, 2020. We have obtained a waiver
of any event of default associated with our independent auditor’s report indicating a substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern in
connection with our year-end audit under our Amended Asset Based Revolving Credit Agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (“Amended ABL
Credit Agreement”) and Term Loan Credit Agreement with Tiger Finance, LLC (“Term Loan Credit Agreement”). The reaction of investors to the
inclusion of a going concern statement by our independent auditors, and our potential inability to continue as a going concern, could materially adversely
affect the price of our common stock.

Additionally, if our projected operating results fail to improve we could violate additional debt covenants, our liquidity could be further adversely impacted
and we may need to seek additional sources of funding. There is no assurance that we will be able to maintain our borrowing base availability under our
Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement, raise additional capital to fund our operations, or that debt or equity financing will be
available in sufficient amounts or on acceptable terms. If our operating results fail to improve, then our financial condition could render us unable to
continue as a going concern.

Our liquidity has been adversely impacted by our negative operating results and the COVID-19 pandemic and there is no assurance that we will have
sufficient liquidity to continue operations.

We experienced significant declines in comparable sales, net sales and gross profit since fiscal year 2017 as compared to prior periods. The decrease in
comparable sales was primarily driven by the decline in boutique traffic and conversion rates. The shutdown of all of our boutiques in connection with the
COVID-19 pandemic have exasperated these issues. As a result, we need to obtain additional financing to fund our current obligations and operations either
through a refinancing or other means. There can be no assurance that we will be able to effect a refinancing on acceptable terms or obtain additional
liquidity. As described above in the risk factors entitled, “Our business is subject to risks arising from the COVID-19 pandemic.” and “As a result of the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, our audited financial statements contain a statement regarding a substantial doubt about our ability to continue as

a going concern.”, the inclusion of a going concern qualification in the report of our independent registered public accountant on our financial statements
for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2020 resulted in a violation of certain covenants under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit
Agreement. In addition, our failure to pay rent on our leased locations in the month of April has resulted, and our planned non-payment of rent in the
months of May and June will result, in a violation of certain covenants under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Agreement. If we are
unable to regain compliance (without further waivers from our lenders) with the covenants under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan
Credit Agreement, we may have events of default under such credit agreements and we may be unable to make future borrowings under such credit
agreements. Any inability to borrow under our credit agreements would adversely impact our ability to repay currently suspended accounts payable and
abated lease payments for all of our boutiques, corporate headquarters and distribution facility, within the timelines prescribed by applicable governmental
authorities or agreed to by our landlords or third parties, as applicable. We cannot provide any assurance that we will be able to secure sufficient liquidity to
fund our business operations, including through additional financings, re-financings, or that we will be able achieve positive results through our growth
strategy. If we are unable to generate or obtain the requisite amount of financing needed to fund our business operations or execute our growth strategy, our
liquidity and ability to continue operations could be materially adversely affected. As a result, we may be required to delay, reduce and/or cease our
operations and/or seek bankruptcy protection.

We have recently experienced a significant decline in our operating margins and our inability to maintain or improve our operating margins could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In fiscal year 2018, we had an operating loss for the first time as a public company. We also had an operating loss in fiscal year 2019. We aim to increase
our operating margins through enhancements to our merchandise offerings, continued cost disciplines, improved productivity in our boutiques and the
optimization of the lease expense structure for our existing boutiques. There can be no assurance that these measures will be successful. Further, our
operating loss has resulted in less cash from operations making it more difficult for us to successfully operate our business and execute our turnaround plan.
For example, we have paused our boutique remodel program that we initiated in fiscal year 2018 even though we view this refresh program as an important
investment to continually enhance the customer shopping experience we strive to achieve. Additionally, it has made it difficult for us to capitalize on our
opportunities to improve our infrastructure. For example, with respect to our infrastructure, if we do not have the funds to adequately refine and improve
our various ordering, tracking and allocation systems, we may not be able to react quickly enough to changing trends and customer demand or reduce
inventory shrinkage. If we are not able to successfully execute our turnaround plan, we may not be able to achieve our goals with respect to operating
margins. As a result, our operating margins may stagnate or further decline, which could adversely affect our ability to make necessary improvements to
our business, which would negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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We have recently experienced a significant decline in our comparable sales and our inability to maintain or increase our comparable sales could
adversely impact our net sales and financial condition.

Our comparable sales significantly declined since fiscal years 2017 as compared to prior year periods. We may not be able to sustain or increase
comparable sales. If our future comparable sales further decline or fail to meet market expectations, our profitability could be harmed or become
nonexistent. The aggregate comparable sales levels of our boutiques have fluctuated in the past and can be expected to fluctuate in the future. A variety of
factors affect comparable sales, including fashion trends, competition, current national and regional economic conditions, pricing, changes in customer
shopping patterns, changes in our merchandise mix, prior period comparable sales levels, inventory shrinkage, the timing and amount of markdowns, the
success of our marketing programs, the success of our merchandising initiatives, holiday timing and weather conditions. These factors, among others, may
cause our comparable sales results to be materially lower than in recent periods, which would harm our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

The value of our deferred tax assets may not be realizable to the extent our future profits are less than we have projected, which may have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations and our financial condition.

We evaluate the realizability of our deferred income tax assets and assess the need for a valuation allowance on an ongoing basis. In evaluating our deferred
income tax assets, we consider whether it is more likely than not that the deferred income tax assets will be realized. Based on available positive and
negative evidence, including past operating results, estimates of future income, future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and tax planning
strategies, we determined that it is more-likely-than-not that we will not realize our deferred tax assets in future periods and, therefore, a full valuation
allowance has been established against our net deferred tax assets since fiscal year 2018. Our assessment of the realizability of our deferred income tax
assets requires significant judgment.

There are no assurances that we will not increase or decrease the valuation allowances in future periods against deferred tax assets and liabilities. Any
additional valuation allowance or the failure to reverse our current valuation allowance could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial conditions.

We will require capital to fund our business, which may not be available to us on satisfactory terms or at all. We plan to use cash from operations and
our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement to fund our operations and execute our strategy. If we are unable to maintain
sufficient levels of cash flow, we may not meet our expectations or we may require additional financing which could adversely affect our financial
health and impose covenants that limit our business activities.

We currently primarily depend on cash flow from operations and our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement to fund our
business. Availability under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement is subject to a customary borrowing base, as reasonably determined by the applicable
agent, comprised of: (a) a specified percentage of the Borrower’s credit card accounts (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement); and (b) a
specified percentage of the Borrower’s eligible inventory (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement), and reduced by (c) certain customary
reserves and adjustments (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement). The combined borrowing base is the lesser of (i) the sum of the (a) the
Revolving Loan Cap (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement), which is the lesser of (x) $34.0 million and (y) the borrowing base under the
Amended ABL Credit Agreement, plus, (b) any outstanding amount under the Term Loan Credit Agreement and (ii) the Term Loan Credit Agreement
borrowing base (as defined in the Term Loan Credit Agreement). In addition, on May 1, 2020, we entered the JPM Letter Agreement and Tiger Letter
Agreement which contain certain conditions and covenants and to provide that in the case of the JPM Letter Agreement, (i) we are required to use the entire
$10.7 million income tax refund requested under the CARES Act to repay certain outstanding borrowings under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement and
(ii) no loans will be made under the ABL Credit Agreement unless our aggregate amount of cash and cash equivalents is less than $3.0 million. See Item
9B of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information. If our business does not generate sufficient cash flow from operations to fund our
operations and execute on strategy, and sufficient funds are not otherwise available to us from our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit
Agreement, we may need additional equity or debt financing. If such financing is not available to us, or is not available on satisfactory terms, our ability to
continue operations could be materially and adversely affected. If we raise additional capital by issuing equity securities or securities convertible into
equity securities, your ownership would be diluted.
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Our success depends on our ability to anticipate, identify and respond quickly to new and changing fashion trends, customer preferences and other
factors, and our inability to anticipate, identify and respond to these changes and trends could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our core market, which is comprised of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts for women from 18 to 35-year old, is subject to rapidly shifting fashion
trends, customer tastes and demands. Accordingly, our success is dependent on our ability to anticipate, identify and respond to the latest fashion trends and
customer demands, and to translate such trends and demands into appropriate, saleable product offerings in a timely manner. In recent years, we believe we
did not execute on policies that best enabled us to anticipate, identify and respond to these trend and demands, which we believe was the primary
contributor to the decline in our comparable sales. Our merchandise buying and planning and allocation teams are primarily responsible for performing this
analysis and making product purchase decisions. Our failure to anticipate, identify or react swiftly and appropriately to new and changing styles, trends or
desired image preferences or to accurately anticipate and forecast demand for certain product offerings is likely to lead to lower demand for our
merchandise, which could cause, among other things, sales declines, disposing excess inventories and a greater number of markdowns resulting in a
decreased merchandise margin. Further, if we are not able to anticipate, identify and respond to changing fashion trends and customer preferences, we may
lose customers and market share to those of our competitors who are able to better anticipate, identify and respond to such trends and preferences. Because
our success depends on our brand image, our business could be materially adversely affected if new product offerings are not accepted by our customers.
Our new product offerings may not be met with the same level of acceptance as our past product offerings and we may not be able to adequately respond to
fashion trends in a timely manner or the preferences of our customers. If we do not accurately forecast or analyze fashion trends and sales levels, our
business, financial condition and results of operations will be adversely affected.

If we are not able to successfully maintain a broad and shallow merchandise assortment, we may be unable to attract a sufficient number of customers
to our boutiques or sell sufficient quantities of our merchandise through our ecommerce website, which could result in excess inventories and
markdowns.

We use the term broad and shallow to refer to a diverse merchandise assortment with relatively small inventory of each product. We believe that our
strategy to offer our customers a broad and shallow merchandise assortment is important to the success of our business. Among other things, we believe
that this strategy creates a constant sense of newness and scarcity value, which drives repeat boutique visits and increased sales. We believe that this
strategy helps us reduce markdowns. There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to adequately stock our boutiques with a sufficiently broad
and shallow assortment of merchandise. As we have or may increase order volumes in connection with the increase in demand of our merchandise and the
expansion of our ecommerce website and begun to emphasize the congruence of our merchandise offerings throughout our boutiques, it has become
increasingly difficult for us to accurately forecast the optimal amount of merchandise to order from our vendors. For example, in fiscal year 2018, there
were certain products that resonated with customers, but we had not ordered enough of those products to capitalize on their popularity. If we are unable to
successfully offer a broad and shallow merchandise assortment, customers may choose to visit our boutiques or our ecommerce website less frequently, our
brand could be impaired, our market share may decline and our results of operations will deteriorate. Further, any failure to maintain a broad and shallow
merchandise assortment could lead to excess inventories which could lead to markdowns and increased marked out-of-stock charges and promotions,
which would result in a decrease in our merchandise margin.

Our short-term business strategy depends in large part upon our ability to successfully implement our planned improvements to merchandising,
reducing expenses across all areas, increasing boutique team productivity and optimizing our existing real estate portfolio.

Our business short-term strategy is focused on improving our merchandise assortment, reducing expenses across all areas of operations, increasing
boutique team productivity and rationalizing our real estate portfolio, with the goal of reducing the number of marginally profitable boutiques, through rent
reductions or boutique closures, in an effort to increase the comparable sales and overall profitability of our remaining boutique footprint. As is the case
with any strategy, our turnaround plan could result in unintended consequences that make executing the turnaround plan more challenging. For example,
our focus on increasing boutique team productivity may make it more difficult for us to continue to offer a personalized shopping experience for our
customers, which may in turn have a negative impact on our conversion rates. The estimated costs and benefits associated with these initiatives may vary
materially based on various factors including: timing in execution, availability of funds to support execution, customer response to merchandise
assortments, our leadership being able to continue to motivate and manage our employees, outcome of negotiations with landlords, and changes in
management’s assumptions and projections. As a result of these events and circumstances, delays and unexpected costs may occur, which could result in
our not realizing all, or any portion of, the anticipated benefits of our short-term business strategy.

We may not be able to efficiently source and distribute the merchandise quantities necessary to support our operations.

Our success depends on our ability to source and distribute merchandise efficiently. The sourcing of our merchandise is dependent, in part, on our
relationships with our vendors and our vendors’ confidence in our business. If we are unable to maintain these relationships, we may not be able to
continue to source merchandise at competitive prices that appeal to our customers. If we do not succeed in maintaining good relationships with our vendors
and cannot identify new vendors to meet the demand for additional merchandise production, the Company could see its costs go up or the delivery time on
its new orders substantially increase.
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Increases in the cost of the raw materials or other inputs used in the production of our merchandise could result in the loss of suppliers, increase our
cost of goods sold and occupancy costs and adversely affect our financial results.

The success of our business is in part driven by the compelling price-value proposition we offer our customers. If the costs of the raw materials, particularly
cotton, leather and synthetics, used in producing our merchandise increase, our vendors would look to pass these cost increases along to us. The price and
availability of such raw materials may fluctuate significantly, depending on many factors which are outside of our control, including commodity prices,
crop yields, natural disasters, pandemics and weather patterns. If our vendors attempt to pass any cost increases on to us and we refuse to pay the increases,
we could lose certain vendors as suppliers, resulting in the risk that we could not fill our orders in a timely manner or at all. If we pay the increases, we
could either attempt to raise retail prices, which could adversely affect our sales and our brand image, or choose not to raise prices, which could adversely
affect the profitability of our merchandise sales.

Changes in laws affecting our supply chain and portions of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act relating to conflict minerals,
may adversely affect the sourcing, availability and pricing of certain materials which may be used in the manufacture of some of our products.

If we are unable to effectively operate, replace or upgrade any of our existing information technology systems, our operations could be disrupted which
could adversely affect our financial results.

The efficient operation of our business is significantly dependent on our information technology systems, including our ability to operate them effectively
and successfully implementing new systems and controls, including, for example, the replacement of our legacy point-of-sale system and introduction of
new customer relationship system which we completed in fiscal year 2017, as well as our implementation of a new warehouse management system for
ecommerce in fiscal year 2018. Any failure of these systems to operate effectively or any difficulty in implementing any future information technology
systems changes could disrupt and adversely impact the promptness and accuracy of our merchandise distribution, transaction processing, financial
accounting and reporting, including the implementation of our internal controls over financial reporting, the efficiency of our operations and our ability to
properly forecast earnings and cash requirements. Any resulting disruptions could harm our business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations.

Our business is sensitive to consumer spending and economic conditions.

Consumer purchases of discretionary retail items and specialty retail products, which include our apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts, may be adversely
affected by national and regional economic, market and other conditions such as employment levels, salary and wage levels, the availability of consumer
credit, inflation, high interest rates, high tax rates, high fuel prices, the threat of a pandemic or other health crisis (such as COVID-19) and consumer
confidence with respect to current and future economic, market and other conditions. Consumer purchases may decline during recessionary periods or at
other times when unemployment is higher or disposable income is lower. These risks may be exacerbated for retailers like us that focus significantly on
selling discretionary fashion merchandise. Consumer willingness to make discretionary purchases may decline, may stall or may be slow to increase due to
national and regional economic conditions. Our financial performance is particularly susceptible to economic and other conditions in regions or states
where we have a significant number of boutiques. There remains considerable uncertainty and volatility in the national and global economy. Further or
future slowdowns or disruptions in the economy, market and other conditions could adversely affect mall traffic and new mall and shopping center
development and could materially and adversely affect us and our business strategy. We may not be able to sustain or increase our current net sales if there
is a decline in consumer spending.

A deterioration of economic conditions and future recessionary periods may exacerbate the other risks faced by our business, including those risks we
encounter as we attempt to execute our business plans. Such risks could be exacerbated individually or collectively.

We operate in the highly competitive specialty retail apparel and accessories industry and the size and resources of some of our competitors may allow
them to compete more effectively than we can, which could adversely impact market share.

We face intense competition in the specialty retail apparel and accessories industry. We compete on the basis of a combination of factors, including price,
breadth, quality and style of merchandise, as well as our in-boutique experience and level of customer service, our brand image and our ability to anticipate,
identify and respond to new and changing fashion trends. While we believe that we compete primarily with specialty retailers and internet businesses that
specialize in women’s apparel and accessories, we also face competition from department stores, mass merchandisers and value retailers. We believe our
primary competitors include specialty apparel and accessories retailers that offer their own private labels. We also face intense competition from the
ecommerce platforms of our brick and mortar competitors, as well as internet-based retailers due to the continuing shift in customer demand away from
brick and mortar to ecommerce. Our expansion into markets served by our competitors and entry of new competitors or expansion of existing competitors
into our markets could have an adverse effect on our business.

We also compete with a wide variety of large and small retailers for customers, vendors, suitable boutique locations and personnel. The competitive

landscape we face, particularly among specialty retailers, is subject to rapid change as new competitors emerge and existing competitors change their
product offerings. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to compete successfully and navigate the shifts in our market.
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Many of our competitors are, and many of our potential competitors may be, larger and have greater name recognition and access to greater financial,
marketing and other resources. Therefore, these competitors may be able to adapt to changes in trends and customer desires more quickly, devote greater
resources to the marketing and sale of their products, generate greater brand recognition or adopt more aggressive pricing policies than we can. As a result,
we may lose market share, which could reduce our sales and adversely affect our results of operations. Many of our competitors also utilize advertising and
marketing media, including advertising through the use of direct mail, newspapers, magazines, billboards, television and radio, which may provide them
with greater brand recognition than we have given our very limited use of traditional advertising.

Our competitors may also sell certain products or substantially similar products through the internet or through outlet centers or discount stores, increasing
the competitive pressure for those products. Additionally, the internet and other new technologies facilitate competitive entry and comparison shopping. We
cannot assure you that we will continue to be able to compete successfully against existing or future competitors. Our expansion into markets served by our
competitors and entry of new competitors or expansion of existing competitors into our markets could have a material adverse effect on us. Competitive
forces and pressures may also intensify if our presence in the retail marketplace grows.

We do not possess exclusive rights to many of the elements that comprise our in-boutique experience and merchandise offerings. Some specialty retailers
offer a personalized shopping experience that in certain ways is similar to the one we strive to provide to our customers. Our competitors may seek to
emulate facets of our business strategy and in-boutique experience, which could result in a reduction of any competitive advantage or special appeal that we
might possess. Some of our merchandise offerings are sold to us on a non-exclusive basis. As a result, our current and future competitors, especially those
with greater financial, marketing or other resources, may be able to duplicate or improve upon some or all of the elements of our in-boutique experience or
merchandise offerings that we believe are important in differentiating our boutiques and our customers’ shopping experience. If our competitors were to
duplicate or improve upon some or all of the elements of our in-boutique experience or product offerings, our competitive position and our business could
suffer.

Our ability to attract customers to our boutiques depends on locating our boutiques in suitable locations. Conditions or changes affecting boutique
locations, including any further decrease in customer trdffic, could cause our sales to be less than historical values and less than expected.

Boutique locations and related sales and customer traffic may be adversely affected by, among other things, economic conditions in a particular area,
competition from nearby retailers or online retailers selling similar merchandise, changing lifestyle choices of consumers in a particular market and the
closing or decline in popularity of other businesses located near our boutiques. Additionally, many of our boutiques are located in shopping malls and other
retail centers that benefit from the ability of “anchor” retail tenants, generally large department centers, and other attractions, to generate sufficient levels of
consumer traffic in the vicinity of our boutiques. We, along with numerous other retailers, including anchor retail tenants, have announced the closure of a
significant number of stores, mainly in mall and anchor store locations. Changes in areas around our boutique locations or changes in consumer shopping
patterns, including a continued shift of consumer spending from brick-and-mortar to online, that result in reductions in customer foot traffic or otherwise
render the locations unsuitable could cause our sales to be less than historical values and less than expected. In addition, we may have to respond to these
changes by closing additional stores, increasing markdowns or increasing promotions to reduce excess inventory in certain boutiques, which could have a
material adverse effect on our margins and operating results.

Our business depends on a strong brand image, and if we are not able to maintain and enhance our brand, particularly in new markets where we have
limited brand recognition, we may be unable to attract a sufficient number of customers to our boutiques or sell sufficient quantities of our
merchandise.

We believe that our brand image and brand awareness is an important factor to the success of our business. We also believe that maintaining and enhancing
our brand image particularly in newer markets where we have limited brand recognition is important to maintaining and expanding our customer base.
Maintaining and enhancing our brand image may require us to make substantial investments in areas such as merchandising, marketing, boutique
operations, community relations, boutique promotions and employee training. These investments may be substantial and may not ultimately be successful.
If they are not successful, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Our use of traditional advertising channels is limited and if we fail to adequately connect with our customer base, our business could be adversely
dffected.

We have historically focused on organic, viral and in-boutique marketing to capture the interest of our customers and drive them to our boutiques and
website. We limit our use of traditional advertising channels, such as newspapers, magazines, billboards, television, direct mail and radio, which are used
by some of our competitors. Although we continue to work to strengthen and evolve our marketing programs, including through the use of investments in
influencers in digital and social media, there is no guarantee that such efforts will be successful. We have increased and expect to continue to increase our
use of digital advertising, including social media, such as Facebook, Instagram, Pinterest and Twitter, in the future. If our marketing efforts are not
successful, there may be no immediately available or cost effective alternative marketing channel for us to use to build or maintain brand awareness.
Failure to successfully connect with our target customers in new and existing markets could harm our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
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We depend on our senior management personnel and may not be able to retain or replace these individuals or recruit additional personnel, which could
harm our business.

Our future success is substantially dependent on establishing and maintaining an experienced senior management team. We are currently experiencing a
Chief Executive Officer transition. On February 10, 2020, our board of directors appointed Mr. Andrew Clarke as our Chief Executive Officer effective
March 9, 2020. Mr. Michael Prendergast of Alvarez & Marsal, our Interim Chief Executive Officer, then resigned from such position effective as of March
9, 2020. However, our business could be adversely affected if we are unable to successfully or timely integrate our new Chief Executive Officer or find
suitable permanent replacements for certain positions within our merchandising, planning and allocation teams. The loss of services of one or more of our
senior management could impair our ability to manage our business effectively and could have an adverse effect on our business, as we may not be able to
find suitable individuals to replace them on a timely basis or at all. Any departures of key personnel could be viewed in a negative light by investors and
analysts, which could cause our common stock price to decline. We do not maintain key person insurance on any employee.

In addition to our senior management, we have other employees in positions, including those employees responsible for our merchandising and operations
departments that, if vacant, could cause a temporary disruption in our business until such positions are filled.

Our ability to successfully open and operate new boutiques in a timely and cost-effective manner is subject to a number of risks.

While we are currently focused on optimizing our existing real estate fleet, we believe we will have an opportunity to grow our boutique base in the United
States and that our long-term strategy depends upon our ability to successfully open new boutiques. The success of this strategy will depend largely upon
our ability to optimize our existing real estate fleet and improve our operating margins, our ability to find a sufficient number of suitable locations, our
ability to recruit, hire and train qualified personnel to operate our new boutiques and our ability to scale our infrastructure to successfully integrate our new

boutiques.

Our ability to successfully open and operate new boutiques depends on many factors that may be outside of our control including, among others, our ability
to:

optimize our existing real estate fleet and improve our operating margins;
identify desirable boutique locations, primarily in malls, lifestyle centers, street locations and strip centers, as well as other types of shopping
venues and outlet malls, which may be difficult and costly, particularly, in an improving real estate environment and as customer shopping patterns

evolve;

negotiate acceptable lease terms, including favorable levels of tenant allowances, which may be difficult, particularly in an improving real estate
environment;

maintain out-of-pocket, build-out costs in line with our boutique economic model, including by receiving expected levels of tenant allowances for
a portion of our construction expenses, and managing these construction expenses at reasonable levels, which may be difficult, particularly in an
improving real estate environment;

efficiently source and distribute additional merchandise;

hire, train and retain a growing workforce of boutique managers, boutique associates and other personnel;

successfully integrate new boutiques into our existing control structure and operations, including our information technology systems;

efficiently expand the operations of our distribution facility to meet the needs of a growing boutique network;

identify and satisfy the merchandise and other preferences of our customers in new geographic areas and markets; and

address competition, merchandising, marketing, distribution and other challenges encountered in connection with expansion into new geographic

areas and markets.
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We may open new boutiques in or near the areas where we have existing boutiques. To the extent that we open boutiques in markets where we already have
existing boutiques, we may experience reduced net sales at those existing boutiques. Also, as we expand into new geographic areas, we will need to
successfully identify and satisfy the fashion preferences of customers in those areas. We will need to address competition, merchandising, marketing,
distribution and other challenges encountered in connection with any expansion and our limited brand recognition in new markets may limit our expansion
strategy and cause our business and growth to suffer. New geographic areas may also have different operational characteristics, including employment and
labor, logistics, real estate and legal requirements which may divert financial, operation and managerial resources from our existing operations.

Finally, newly opened boutiques may not be received as well as, or achieve net sales, profitability levels or payback period on our net investment
comparable to those of, our existing boutiques in our estimated time periods, or at all. If our boutiques fail to achieve, or are unable to sustain, acceptable
net sales and profitability levels, our business may be materially harmed and we may incur significant costs associated with closing or relocating boutiques.
Our current expansion plans are only estimates, and the actual number of boutiques we open or close each year and the actual number of suitable locations
for our new boutiques could differ significantly from these estimates. If we fail to successfully open and operate new boutiques and execute our long-term
growth plans, the price of our common stock could decline.

If we are unable to find, train and retain key personnel, including new boutique employees that reflect our brand image and embody our culture, we
may not be able to grow or sustain our operations.

Our success depends in part upon our ability to attract, motivate and retain a sufficient number of boutique employees, including boutique managers, who
understand and appreciate our customers, brand and corporate culture, and are able to adequately and effectively represent our culture and establish
credibility with our customers. Like most retailers, we experience significant employee turnover rates, particularly among boutique employees. Our current
operations require us to continuously hire and train personnel. If we are unable to hire and retain boutique personnel capable of consistently providing a
high level of customer service, as demonstrated by their enthusiasm for our culture, understanding of our customers and knowledge of the merchandise we
offer, the performance of our existing and new boutiques could be materially adversely affected and our brand image may be negatively impacted. There is
a high level of competition for experienced, qualified personnel in the retail industry and we compete for personnel with a variety of companies looking to
hire for retail positions. Our initiative to decrease expenses and to increase boutique team productivity may make it more difficult for us to retain
employees. Historically, we have prided ourselves on our commitment to employee growth and development and we focus on promoting from within our
team. If we have challenges in staffing our new boutiques, particularly at the boutique manager level, it could have an adverse effect on our ability to
maintain a cohesive and consistently strong team, which in turn could have an adverse impact on our business. If we are unable to attract, train and retain
employees in the future, we may not be able to serve our customers effectively, thus reducing our ability to profitably operate our new and existing
boutiques.

Union attempts to organize our employees could negatively affect our business.

None of our employees are currently subject to a collective bargaining agreement. However, in the future, unions may attempt to organize all or part of our
employee base at certain boutiques or within certain regions. Responding to such organization attempts may distract management and employees and may
have a negative financial impact on individual boutiques, or on our business as a whole.

We have one corporate headquarters and distribution facility and have not yet implemented disaster recovery procedures. Disruptions to the operations
at that location have in the past, and could in the future, have an adverse effect on our business operations.

Our corporate headquarters and our only distribution facility are located in Houston, Texas. Our distribution facility supports both our boutiques and our
ecommerce. Most of our merchandise is shipped from our vendors to the distribution facility and then packaged and shipped from our distribution facility
to our boutiques and our ecommerce customers. The success of our boutiques depends on the timely receipt of merchandise because they must receive
merchandise in a timely manner in order to stay current with the fashion preferences of our customers. The efficient flow of our merchandise requires that
we have adequate capacity and uninterrupted service in our distribution facility to support both our current level of operations, and the anticipated increased
levels that may follow from our growth plans. We believe that our current distribution facility is capable of supporting our growth plans for several years.

If we encounter difficulties associated with our distribution facility or if it were to shut down for any reason, including fire, hurricanes, floods, pandemics,
or other natural disaster or severe weather, we could face inventory shortages resulting in “out-of-stock” conditions in our boutiques, and delays in
shipments to our customers, resulting in significantly higher costs and longer lead times associated with distributing our merchandise. See “ The current
geographic concentration of our boutiques creates an exposure to local economies, regional downturns and severe weather or other catastrophic
occurrences that may materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations ” below. Also, most of our computer equipment and
senior management, including critical resources dedicated to merchandising, financial and administrative functions are located at our corporate
headquarters. Our management and our operations and distribution staff would need to find an alternative location, causing further disruption and expense
to our business and operations. For example, in August 2017, Hurricane Harvey hit south Texas which resulted in the shutdown of corporate headquarters
for a few days and disruption in our supply chain for several weeks.
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We recognize the need for, and are in the early stages of, developing disaster recovery, business continuity and document retention plans that would allow
us to be operational despite casualties or unforeseen events impacting our corporate headquarters or distribution center. Without disaster recovery, business
continuity and document retention plans, if we encounter difficulties or disasters with our distribution facility or at our corporate headquarters, our critical
systems, operations and information may not be restored in a timely manner, or at all, and this could have an adverse effect on our business.

Our business requires that we lease substantial amounts of space and we may not be able to continue to lease space on terms as favorable as the leases
negotiated in the past and the costs of exiting leases at boutiques we have identified for closure may be greater than we estimate or could be greater
than the funds we raise to address closure costs, if necessary.

We do not own any real estate. Instead, we lease all of our boutique locations, as well as our corporate headquarters and distribution facility in Houston,
Texas. Our boutiques are leased from third parties, with initial lease terms of five to ten years. Many of our lease agreements also have additional five-year
renewal options. We believe that we have been able to negotiate favorable rental rates and tenant allowances over the last few years due, in large part, to the
strength of our reputation as tenants, the state of the economy and higher than usual vacancy rates in a number of regional malls and shopping centers.
These trends may not continue, including as a result of our effort to optimize our lease expense structure for existing and boutiques, and there is no
guarantee that we will be able to continue to negotiate such favorable terms. Many of our leases have early cancellation clauses, which permit the lease to
be terminated by us or the landlord if certain sales levels are not met in specific periods or if the shopping venue does not meet specified occupancy
standards. In addition to fixed minimum lease payments, most of our boutique leases provide for additional rental payments based on a percentage of sales,
or “percentage rent,” if sales at the respective boutiques exceed specified levels, as well as the payment of common area maintenance charges, real property
insurance and real estate taxes. Many of our lease agreements have defined escalating rent provisions over the initial term and any extensions. Increases in
our already substantial occupancy costs and difficulty in identifying economically suitable new boutique locations could have significant negative
consequences, which include:

requiring that a greater portion of our available cash be applied to pay our rental obligations, thus reducing cash available for other purposes and
reducing our profitability;

increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions; and
limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to changes in, our business or in the industry in which we compete.

We depend on cash flow from operations to pay our lease expenses and to fulfill our other cash needs. If our business does not generate sufficient cash flow
from operating activities to fund these expenses and needs and sufficient funds are not otherwise available to us, we may not be able to service our lease
expenses, grow our business, respond to competitive challenges or fund our other liquidity and capital needs, which could harm our business. Additional
sites that we lease may be subject to long-term non-cancelable leases if we are unable to negotiate our current standard lease terms. If an existing or future
boutique is not profitable, and we decide to close it, we may nonetheless be committed to perform our obligations under the applicable lease including,
among other things, paying the base rent for the balance of the lease term. Moreover, even if a lease has an early cancellation clause, we may not satisfy the
contractual requirements for early cancellation under that lease. If we are not able to enter into new leases or renew existing leases on terms acceptable to
us, this could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

In connection with our strategy to optimize our real estate portfolio, our preferred approach to closing boutiques is to enter into lease termination
agreements with respect to the leases at such boutiques, rather than to assign leases or to sublease the boutique premises because it allows us to avoid the
risk of future liability under the leases. The costs of terminating the leases for boutiques we close may be greater than we currently estimate, in which case
we may need to borrow under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement. Further the cost to fund such liabilities is often
significant and is funded through cash flow from operations. In addition, we could encounter difficulty raising the funds necessary to cover a part of the
costs of terminating the leases for boutiques we intend to close. Such circumstances could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition or
results of operations.
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Our ability to obtain merchandise on a timely basis at competitive prices could suffer as a result of any deterioration or change in our vendor
relationships or events that adversely affect our vendors or their ability to obtain financing for their operations.

We have many important vendor relationships that we believe provide us with a competitive advantage. We do not own or operate any manufacturing
facilities. Instead, we purchase our merchandise from third-party vendors. Our top 10 vendors sourced approximately 35% of our merchandise in fiscal year
2019 with no single vendor accounting for more than 6% of our purchases. Our business and financial performance depend in large part on our ability to
evaluate merchandise quickly for style and then modify any undesirable designs or to improve the quality, look, and fit of the item. We do not have long-
term contracts with any of these vendors and we generally operate without any contractual assurances of continued supply, pricing or access to new
products. Rather, we receive and review samples almost daily for fit and fashion evaluation. Maintaining positive working relationships with our vendors is
an important element of our business. Any of our vendors could discontinue supplying us with desired products in sufficient quantities for a variety of
reasons.

The benefits we currently experience from our vendor relationships could be adversely affected if our vendors:
choose to stop providing merchandise samples to us or otherwise discontinue selling merchandise to us;
raise the prices they charge us;

change pricing terms to require us to pay on delivery or upfront, including as a result of changes in the credit relationships some of our vendors
have with their various lending institutions;

reduce our access to styles, brands and merchandise by entering into broad exclusivity arrangements with our competitors or otherwise in the
marketplace;

sell similar merchandise to our competitors with similar or better pricing, many of whom already purchase merchandise in significantly greater
volume and, in some cases, at lower prices than we do;

experience reduced production, operational shutdowns, or are otherwise negatively impacted as a result of the recent COVID-19 pandemic;
lose confidence in our business;
lengthen their lead times; or

initiate or expand sales of apparel and accessories to retail customers directly through their own stores, catalogs or on the internet and compete
with us directly.

We historically have established good working relationships with many small- to mid-sized vendors that often have limited resources, production capacities
and operating histories. Market and economic events that adversely impact our vendors could impair our ability to obtain merchandise in sufficient
quantities. Such events include difficulties or problems associated with our vendors’ business, finances, labor, ability to import merchandise, costs,
production, insurance and reputation. There can be no assurance that we will be able to acquire desired merchandise in sufficient quantities on acceptable
terms or at all in the future, especially if we need significantly different amounts of inventory in connection with any changes in our business needs. We
may need to develop new relationships with larger vendors, as our current vendors may be unable to supply us with needed quantities and we may not be
able to find similar merchandise on the same terms from larger vendors. If we are unable to acquire suitable merchandise in sufficient quantities, at
acceptable prices with adequate delivery times due to the loss of or a deterioration or change in our relationship with one or more of our key vendors or
events harmful to our vendors occur, it may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

A failure in our ecommerce operations could significantly disrupt our business and lead to reduced sales, growth prospects and reputational damage.

While accounting for only 9.0% of our net sales in each of fiscal years 2019 and 2018, our ecommerce operations is an important element of our brand and
relationship with our customers. Further expanding our ecommerce business is an important part of our growth strategy. In addition to changing consumer
preferences, shifting traffic patterns and related customer acquisition costs and buying trends in our ecommerce, we are vulnerable to certain additional
risks and uncertainties associated with ecommerce sales, including rapid changes in technology, diversion of sales from our boutiques, credit card fraud,
website downtime and other technical failures, security breaches, consumer privacy concerns, changes in state tax regimes and government regulation of
internet activities. Our failure to successfully respond to these risks and uncertainties could reduce our ecommerce sales, increase our costs, diminish our
growth prospects, and damage our brand, which could negatively impact our results of operations and stock price. Our lack of investment in our
ecommerce operations in the short-term may exacerbate these risks.

There is no guarantee that we will be able to further expand our ecommerce operations. Many of our competitors already have ecommerce businesses that
are substantially larger and more developed than ours, which places us at a competitive disadvantage. Moreover, online shopping has benefitted from
technology improving the online shopping experience and, in many cases, has resulted in a shift of consumer spending from brick-and-mortar to online
where competition is even greater since “pure play” internet retailers do not have significant occupancy costs and boutique payroll expenses like we do. If
we are unable to further expand our ecommerce operations, our growth plans will suffer and the price of our common stock could decline.
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System security risk issues, including our failure to protect our customers’ privacy and disruption of our internal operations or information technology
systems, could harm our reputation and adversely affect our financial results and stock price.

Experienced computer programmers and hackers, or even internal users, may be able to penetrate or create systems disruptions or cause shutdowns of our
network security or that of third-party companies with which we have contracted to provide services. We generally collect and store customer information
for marketing purposes and any compromise of customer information could subject us to customer or government litigation and harm our reputation, which
could adversely affect our business and growth. Breaches of our system or of third party companies with which we have contracted to provide services,
which would compromise our customers’ private information, might cause our customers to lose confidence in our ability to protect their personal
information, which could cause them to discontinue usage of our website or stop shopping with us altogether. The loss of confidence from a significant data
security breach involving employees could also hurt our reputation, cause employee recruiting and retention challenges, increase our labor costs and
adversely affect our business and financial results. Moreover, we could incur significant expenses or disruptions of our operations in connection with
system failures or data breaches. An increasing number of websites and retailers, including several large internet companies and retailers, have disclosed
breaches of their security, some of which have involved sophisticated and highly targeted attacks on portions of their sites. Because the techniques used to
obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service or sabotage systems, change frequently and often are not recognized until launched against a target,
we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement adequate preventative measures. Sophisticated hardware and operating system software
and applications that we buy or license from third-parties may contain defects in design or manufacture, including “bugs” and other problems that could
unexpectedly interfere with the security and operation of the systems. The costs to us to eliminate or alleviate security problems, viruses and bugs, or any
problems associated with the outsourced services provided to us, could be significant, and efforts to address these problems could result in interruptions,
delays or cessation of service that may impede our sales, distribution or other critical functions.

Almost all states have adopted breach of data security statutes or regulations that require notification to consumers if the security of their personal
information is breached, and at least one state has adopted regulations requiring every company that maintains or stores personal information to adopt a
comprehensive written information security program. Governmental focus on data security may lead to additional legislative action, and the increased
emphasis on information security may lead customers to request that we take additional measures to enhance security or restrict the manner in which we
collect and use customer information to gather insights into customer behavior and craft our marketing programs. As a result, we may have to modify our
business systems and practices with the goal of further improving data security, which would result in reduced net sales, increased expenditures and
operating complexity. Any compromise of our security or accidental loss or theft of customer data in our possession or in the possession of third parties
with which we have contracted to provide services could result in a violation of applicable privacy and other laws, significant legal and financial exposure
and damage to our reputation, which could adversely impact our business, results of operations and stock price.

Our inability or failure to recognize, respond to and effectively manage the accelerated impact of social media could materially adversely impact our
business.

There has been a marked increase in the use of social media platforms, including weblogs (blogs), social media websites (such as Facebook, Snapchat,
Twitter and Instagram), and other forms of internet-based communications which allow individuals access to a broad audience of consumers and other
interested persons. Many social media platforms immediately publish the content to their subscribers and participants posts, often without filters or checks
on accuracy of the content posted. The dissemination of information online could harm our business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations, regardless of the information’s accuracy. The harm may be immediate without affording us an opportunity for redress or correction.

Other risks associated with the use of social media include improper disclosure of proprietary information, negative comments about our business, fraud
and out-of-date information. The inappropriate use of social media by our customers or employees could increase our costs, lead to litigation or result in
negative publicity that could damage our reputation.

The current geographic concentration of our boutiques creates an exposure to local economies, regional downturns and severe weather, including any
weather patterns associated with global climate change or other catastrophic occurrences that may materially adversely affect our financial condition
and results of operations.

We operated 74 boutiques in Texas as of February 1, 2020, making Texas our largest market, representing approximately 10% of our total boutiques. We
also have boutique concentration in California, Florida and the Northeast region, operating 60 boutiques, 52 boutiques and 129 boutiques in these regions,
respectively, as of February 1, 2020. As a result, our business is currently more susceptible to regional conditions than the operations of more
geographically diversified competitors, and we are vulnerable to economic downturns in those regions. Any unforeseen events or circumstances that
negatively affect these areas could materially adversely affect our sales and profitability. These factors include, among other things, changes in
demographics and population and severe weather or natural disasters.
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Further, our corporate headquarters and only distribution center are currently located at a single facility in Houston, Texas. Our single distribution center
receives, stores and distributes merchandise to all of our boutiques and fulfills all sales for our ecommerce website. Most of our computer equipment and
senior management, including critical resources dedicated to merchandising and financial and administrative functions, are located at our corporate
headquarters. As described elsewhere in the risk factors in this report, we do not currently have adequate disaster recovery systems and plans at our
corporate headquarters and distribution facility. As a result, our business may be more susceptible to regional natural disasters, severe weather and
catastrophes than the operations of more geographically diversified competitors. See “We have one corporate headquarters and distribution facility and
have not yet implemented disaster recovery procedures. Disruptions to the operations at that location could have an adverse effect on our business
operations” above.

A substantial number of our boutiques are located in the northeastern and southeastern United States. These regions of the United States, Texas and other
states along the Gulf Coast, in particular, are prone to severe weather conditions. For example, hurricanes have passed through these regions and caused
extensive damage. Adverse weather conditions impacting these regions of the United States, including any weather patterns associated with global climate
change, generally could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. Severe weather can also result in weather-related supply
disruptions, which could impact our ability to supply boutiques as was the case of Hurricane Harvey which hit south Texas in August 2017 and caused
shutdown of our corporate headquarters for a few days and disrupted our supply chain for several weeks. Weather conditions can affect our net sales
because inclement weather may discourage travel or require temporary boutique closures, thereby reducing customer traffic. Unseasonably warmer weather
during typically colder months or unseasonably colder weather during typically warmer months, including any weather patterns associated with global
climate change, can also negatively affect the seasonal composition and demand for our merchandise, which could harm our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

All of our boutique locations expose us to additional diverse risks, given that natural disasters or other unanticipated catastrophes, such as
telecommunications failures, cyber-attacks, fires or terrorist attacks, can occur anywhere and could cause disruptions in our operations. Extensive or
multiple disruptions in our operations, whether at our boutiques or our corporate headquarters and distribution center, due to natural disasters, severe
weather or other catastrophes could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and stock price.

Our results may be adversely affected by fluctuations in energy costs.

Energy costs have fluctuated dramatically in the past and may fluctuate in the future. These fluctuations may result in an increase in our transportation costs
for distribution, utility costs for our retail boutiques and costs to purchase product from our vendors. A continual rise in energy costs could adversely affect

consumer spending and demand for our merchandise and increase our operating costs and we may be unable to pass along to our customers such increased

cost, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and stock price.

Our net sales and merchandise inventory fluctuate on a seasonal basis, leaving our operating results susceptible to adverse changes in seasonal
shopping patterns, weather and related risks.

Due to the seasonal nature of the retail industry, we have historically experienced and expect to continue to experience some fluctuations in our net sales
and net income (loss). Our net sales and earnings are typically highest in the fourth fiscal quarter due to the year-end holiday season. Net sales during this
period cannot be used as an accurate indicator of annual results. Likewise, as is the case with many retailers of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts, we
typically experience lower net sales in the first fiscal quarter relative to other quarters. If for any reason, including for example poor weather conditions,
soft economic environments or loss of consumer confidence, our net sales were below seasonal norms or expectations during typically higher-volume time
periods, our net sales, inventory levels and results of operations could be adversely affected. In order to prepare for these higher-volume periods, we must
order and keep in stock significantly more merchandise than we carry during other parts of the year. This inventory build-up may require us to expend cash
faster than is generated by our operations during these periods. Any unanticipated decrease in demand for our merchandise during peak shopping periods,
such as our back-to-school assortment in fiscal year 2017 that did not resonate with customers, could result in excess inventory levels which could require
us to sell or dispose excess inventory at a substantial markdown, which could have an adverse effect on our business, profitability and brand image. We
have experienced, and may continue to experience variability in net sales as a result of a variety of other factors, including the timing of new boutique
openings and closing of underperforming boutiques, customer response to our product offerings, boutique events, other marketing activities, sales tax
holidays and other holidays, which may cause our results of operations to fluctuate on a quarterly basis and relative to corresponding periods in prior years.
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If our vendors fail to comply with applicable laws, including a failure to use acceptable labor practices, or if our vendors suffer disruptions in their
businesses, we could suffer adverse business consequences.

Our vendors source the merchandise sold in our boutiques and our ecommerce website from manufacturers both inside and outside of the United States.
Although each of our purchase orders is subject to our vendor manuals or policies, which require compliance with labor, immigration, manufacturing and
product safety, environmental and other laws, we do not supervise, control or audit our vendors or the manufacturers that produce the merchandise we sell.
The violation, or perception of any violation, of any labor, immigration, manufacturing safety or other laws by any of our vendors or their U.S. and non-
U.S. manufacturers, such as use of child labor, or the divergence of the labor practices followed by any of our vendors or these manufacturers from those
generally accepted in the United States, could damage our brand image or subject us to boycotts by our customers or activist groups.

Any event causing a sudden disruption of manufacturing or imports, including the imposition of additional import restrictions or the outbreak of a
pandemic or contagious disease, such as COVID-19, could interrupt, or otherwise disrupt the shipment of finished products to us by our vendors and
materially harm our operations. Political and financial instability outside the United States, strikes, adverse weather conditions or natural disasters that may
occur or acts of war or terrorism in the United States or worldwide, may affect the production, shipment or receipt of merchandise. These factors, which are
beyond our control, could materially hurt our business, financial condition and results of operations or may require us to modify our current business
practices or incur increased costs.

Changes in laws, including employment laws, tax laws, imposition of new tariffs and laws related to our merchandise could make conducting our
business more expensive or otherwise cause us to change the way we do business.

We are subject to numerous regulations, including taxation, labor and employment, truth-in-advertising, consumer protection, product safety, environmental
and zoning and occupancy laws and ordinances that regulate retailers generally or govern the promotion and sale of merchandise and the operation of
boutiques and warehouse facilities. If these regulations were to change or were violated by our management, employees or vendors, the costs of certain
goods could increase, or we could experience delays in shipments of our goods, be subject to fines, penalties or other liabilities or suffer reputational harm,
which could reduce demand for our merchandise and hurt our business and results of operations.

In addition to increased regulatory compliance requirements, changes in laws could make the ordinary conduct of our business more expensive or require
us to change the way we do business. Laws related to employee benefits and treatment of employees, including laws related to limitations on employee
hours, immigration laws, child labor laws, supervisory status, leaves of absence, mandated health benefits or overtime pay, could also negatively impact us,
such as by increasing compensation and benefits costs for overtime and medical expenses. Moreover, changes in product safety or other consumer
protection laws (including the implementation of new privacy protection laws) could lead to increased costs to us for some merchandise, or additional labor
costs associated with readying merchandise for sale. It is often difficult for us to plan and prepare for potential changes to applicable laws, and future
actions or payments related to these changes could be material to us.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the future, which may require us to use a substantial portion of our cash flow to service debt and limit our
financial and operating flexibility in important ways.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the future. Any borrowings under any future debt financing will require interest payments and need to be repaid or
refinanced, could require us to divert funds identified for other purposes to debt service and would create additional cash demands and could impair our
liquidity position and add financial risk for us. Diverting funds identified for other purposes for debt service may adversely affect our business and growth
prospects. If we cannot generate sufficient cash flow from operations to service our debt, we may need to refinance our debt, dispose of assets or issue
equity to obtain necessary funds. We do not know whether we would be able to take any of these actions on a timely basis, on terms satisfactory to us, or at
all.

Our level of indebtedness has important consequences to you and your investment in our common stock. For example, our level of indebtedness may:

require us to use a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to pay interest and principal on our debt, which would reduce the funds
available to us for working capital, capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes;

limit our ability to pay future dividends;

limit our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, expansion plans and other investments, which may limit
our ability to implement our business strategy;

heighten our vulnerability to downturns in our business, the specialty apparel and accessories retail industry or in the general economy and limit
our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the specialty apparel and accessories retail industry; or

prevent us from taking advantage of business opportunities as they arise or successfully carrying out our plans to expand our boutique base and
product offerings.

Our business may not generate sufficient cash flow from operations and future borrowings may not be available to us in amounts sufficient to enable us to
make payments on our indebtedness or to fund our operations.
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The terms of our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement do, and the terms of any additional debt financing may, restrict
our current and future operations, which could adversely affect our ability to manage our operations and respond to changes in our business.

Our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement contain, and any additional debt financing we may incur would likely contain,
covenants that restrict our operations, including limitations on our ability to incur additional debt, grant liens, make certain investments, acquisitions loans
and advances, sell assets, pay dividends or make distributions or other restricted payments, prepay other indebtedness, engage in mergers or consolidations,
change the business conducted by Francesca’s Collections and its subsidiaries, engage in certain transactions with affiliates, enter into agreements that
restrict dividends from subsidiaries or amend certain charter documents and material agreements governing subordinated and junior indebtedness. As
disclosed above in the “Recent Developments” section, in May 2020, we entered into the JPM Letter Agreement and Tiger Letter Agreement which waived
any default or event of default arising from our failure to (i) deliver annual audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended February 1,
2020 without a “going concern” or a like qualification or exception and (ii) pay rent on leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020. The
JPM Letter Agreement and Tiger Letter Agreement contain certain conditions and covenants, including that, in the case of the JPM Letter Agreement, we
are required to use the entire $10.7 million income tax refund requested under the CARES Act to repay certain outstanding borrowings under the Amended
ABL Credit Agreement and providing that no loans will be made under the ABL Credit Agreement unless our aggregate amount of cash and cash
equivalents is less than $3.0 million. A failure by us to comply with the covenants or financial ratios contained in our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and
Term Loan Credit Agreement, including if we are unable or elect not to pay rent on our leased locations beginning in July 2020 and do not otherwise obtain
a waiver from our lenders, or any additional debt financing we may incur could result in an event of default, which could adversely affect our ability to
respond to changes in our business and manage our operations. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the lenders could elect to declare all amounts
outstanding to be due and payable and exercise other remedies. If the indebtedness under our Amended ABL Credit Facility and Term Loan Credit
Agreement, including if we are unable or elect not to pay rent on our leased locations beginning in July 2020 and do not otherwise obtain a waiver from our
lenders, or any additional debt financing we may incur were to be accelerated, our future financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

The phase out of LIBOR could increase our interest costs on our existing and future debt.

Our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement use the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) as a reference rate for
borrowings thereunder, such that the interest rate applicable to such loans may, at our option, be calculated based on LIBOR. In July 2017, the United
Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority, which regulates LIBOR, announced that it intends to phase out LIBOR by the end of 2021. It is unclear whether
LIBOR will cease to exist or if new methods of calculating LIBOR will be established such that it continues to exist after 2021, or whether any alternative
reference rate, such as the Secured Oversight Financing Rate (also known as SOFR) will attain market acceptance as a replacement for LIBOR. We have
material borrowings under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement that are indexed to LIBOR. At this time, we cannot
predict how markets will respond to these proposed alternative rates or the effect of any changes to LIBOR or the discontinuation of LIBOR. If LIBOR
ceases to exist, we will need to enter into an amendment to the Amended ABL Agreement and Term Loan and we cannot predict what alternative index
would be negotiated with our lenders. If our lenders have increased costs due to changes in LIBOR, we may experience potential increases in interest rates
on our variable rate debt, which could adversely impact our interest expense, results of operations and cash flows.

Any further impairment to the carrying value of our operating lease right-of-use assets or property and equipment could result in significant non-cash
charges and could have a material adverse effect on our operational results.

Under generally accepted accounting principles, we evaluate long-lived assets held for use, including operating lease right-of-use (“ROU”) assets, and held
for sale whenever events or circumstances indicate that impairment could have occurred. As of February 1, 2020, we had approximately $208.5 million of
operating lease ROU assets and $51.5 million of property and equipment. Current and future economic conditions, as well as the other risks noted in this
Item 1A, may adversely impact our ability to attract new customers, retain existing customers, maintain sales volumes and maintain margins. As discussed
under “Critical Accounting Policies” included elsewhere in this report, these events could materially reduce our profitability and cash flows which could, in
turn, lead to a further impairment of our long-lived assets. Furthermore, significant negative industry or general economic, market or other trends,
disruptions to our business and unexpected significant changes or planned changes in our use of long-lived assets may result in additional impairments to
our long-lived assets. As described in Note 5, Asset Impairment Charges, to the accompanying consolidated financial statements included herein, we
recorded a non-cash asset impairment charge of $11.9 million in fiscal year 2019, which is primarily related to the write-off of operating lease ROU assets
for 60 underperforming boutiques. This compares to non-cash impairment charge of $20.1 million in fiscal year 2018, which was primarily related to the
write-off of boutique assets for 153 underperforming boutiques. Additionally, the asset impairment charge in fiscal year 2018 included a $4.9 million
charge associated with the write-off of boutique furniture, fixtures and supplies that were no longer expected to be used as a result of postponing new
boutique openings and remodels in future periods. There can be no assurance that we will not experience further impairment charges with respect to
operating lease ROU assets or property and equipment in future periods. Any future impairment could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, or results of operations.
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We are involved on an ongoing basis in litigation arising in the ordinary course of business or otherwise that could distract management from our
business activities and result in significant liability or damage to our brand.

We face the risk of litigation and other claims against us. We are involved on an ongoing basis in litigation arising in the ordinary course of our business or
otherwise, which may include class actions involving consumers, shareholders or employees, and claims relating to employees, commercial disputes,
landlord-tenant disputes, intellectual property issues, product-oriented allegations and slip and fall claims. These actions and claims can raise complex
factual and legal issues that are subject to risks and uncertainties and could require significant management time. Litigation and other actions and claims
against us could result in unexpected expenses and liabilities, which could materially adversely affect our operations and our reputation.

We may be unable to protect our trademarks or other intellectual property rights.

We believe that our trademarks are integral to our boutique design, our ecommerce and our success in building our brand image and customer loyalty. We
rely on trademark registrations and common law trademark rights to protect the distinctiveness of our brand and have registered those trademarks that we
believe are important to our business with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. We cannot provide assurance that these registrations will prevent
imitation of our name, merchandising concept, boutique design or private label merchandise, or the infringement of our other intellectual property rights by
others. In most cases, the merchandise we sell is purchased on a non-exclusive basis from vendors that also sell to our competitors. While we use our brand
name on these items, our competitors may seek to replicate aspects of our business strategy and in-boutique experience, thereby diluting the experience we
offer and adversely affecting our brand and competitive position. Imitation of our name, concept, boutique design or merchandise in a manner that projects
lesser quality or carries a negative connotation of our brand image could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We are not aware of any claims of infringement upon or challenges to our right to use any of our brand names or trademarks in the United States.
Nevertheless, we cannot be certain that the actions we have taken to establish and protect our trademarks will be adequate to prevent imitation of our
merchandise by others or to prevent others from seeking to block sales of our merchandise as a violation of the trademarks or proprietary rights of others.
Although we cannot currently estimate the likelihood of success of any such lawsuit or ultimate resolution of such a conflict, such a controversy could have
an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. If disputes arise in the future, we may not be able to successfully resolve
these types of conflicts to our satisfaction.

We are currently in the process of registering our trademarks in several foreign countries to seek protection outside the United States. However,
international protection of our brand image and the use of these marks may be unavailable or could be limited. Also, other entities may have rights to
trademarks that contain portions of our marks or may have registered similar or competing marks for merchandise in foreign countries in which our
vendors source our merchandise. There may also be other prior registrations of trademarks identical or similar to our trademarks in other foreign countries
of which we are not aware. Accordingly, it may be possible for others to prevent the manufacture of our branded goods in certain foreign countries or the
sale or exportation of our branded goods from certain foreign countries to the United States. If we were unable to reach a licensing arrangement with these
parties, our vendors may be unable to manufacture our merchandise in those countries. Our inability to register our trademarks or purchase or license the
right to use our trademarks or logos in these jurisdictions could limit our ability to obtain supplies from less costly markets or penetrate new markets should
our business plan change to include selling our merchandise in those foreign jurisdictions.

Litigation may be necessary to protect our trademarks and other intellectual property rights or to enforce these rights. Any litigation or claims brought by us
could result in substantial costs and diversion of our resources, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

We may be subject to liability and other risks if we, our vendors or the manufacturers of our merchandise infringe upon the trademarks or other
intellectual property rights of third parties, including the risk that we could acquire merchandise from our vendors without the full right to sell it.

We purchase merchandise that may be subject to design copyrights, design patents or otherwise may incorporate protected intellectual property. While we
are not involved in the manufacture of any of the merchandise we purchase from our vendors for sale to our customers, we may be subject to liability if our
vendors or the manufacturers of our merchandise infringe upon the trademarks or other intellectual property rights of third parties. We do not independently
investigate whether our vendors or the manufacturers with whom they do business legally hold intellectual property rights to the merchandise we purchase.
Third parties may bring legal claims, or threaten to bring legal claims, against us that their intellectual property rights are being infringed or violated by our
use of intellectual property. Litigation or threatened litigation could be costly and distract our senior management from operating our business. If we were
to be found liable for any such infringement, we could be required to pay substantial damages and could be subject to injunctions preventing further
infringement. Any payments we are required to make and any injunctions with which we are required to comply as a result of infringement claims could be
costly and thereby adversely affect our financial results.
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If a third party claims to have licensing rights with respect to merchandise we purchased from a vendor, or if we acquire unlicensed merchandise, we may
be obligated to remove this merchandise from our boutiques, incur costs associated with this removal if the distributor or vendor is unwilling or unable to
reimburse us and be subject to liability under various civil and criminal causes of action, including actions to recover unpaid royalties and other damages

and injunctions. Additionally, we will be required to purchase new merchandise to replace any we remove.

We rely upon independent third-party transportation providers for substantially all of our merchandise shipments.

We currently rely upon independent third-party transportation providers for substantially all of our merchandise shipments, including shipments to all of
our boutiques and our direct customers. Our use of outside delivery services for shipments is subject to risks, including increases in fuel prices, which
would increase our shipping costs, and employee strikes and inclement weather, which may impact a shipper’s ability to provide delivery services that
adequately meet our shipping needs. If we change shipping companies, we could face logistical difficulties that could adversely impact deliveries and we
would incur costs and expend resources in connection with such change. Moreover, we may not be able to obtain terms as favorable as those received from
the independent third-party transportation providers we currently use, which would increase our costs.

Disruptions in transportation, including disruptions at shipping ports through which our merchandise are imported, could prevent us from timely
distribution and delivery of merchandise, which could reduce our net sales and operating margin.

From time to time, shipping ports experience capacity constraints, labor strikes, work stoppages or other disruptions that may delay the delivery of
imported products. A lengthy contract dispute may lead to protracted delays in the movement of our merchandise, which could further delay the delivery of
merchandise to our boutiques and impact net sales and operating margin. Other conditions outside of our control, such as adverse weather conditions or
acts of terrorism, could significantly disrupt operations at shipping ports or otherwise impact transportation of the imported merchandise we sell.

Future disruptions in transportation services or at a shipping port at which our merchandise are received may result in delays in the transportation of such
merchandise to our distribution center and may ultimately delay the distribution to our boutiques resulting in reduced net sales and / or profitability.

Our ability to source our merchandise efficiently and profitably could be hurt if new trade restrictions are imposed, existing trade restrictions become
more burdensome, or the countries where our merchandise are sourced experience political instability.

We currently purchase all of our inventory from domestic vendors, who source our merchandise both domestically and internationally. We believe most of
the merchandise sourced by our vendors was produced outside of the United States. These vendors, to the extent they obtain merchandise from outside of
the United States, are subject to trade restrictions, including tariffs, safeguards or quotas, changes to which could increase the cost or reduce the supply of
merchandise available to us. Under the World Trade Organization Agreement, effective January 1, 2005, the United States and other World Trade
Organization member countries removed quotas on goods from World Trade Organization members, which in certain instances we believe afford our
vendors greater flexibility in importing textile and apparel products from World Trade Organization countries from which they source our merchandise.
However, as the removal of quotas resulted in an import surge from China, the United States imposed safeguard quotas on a number of categories of goods
and apparel from China and may impose additional quotas in the future. These and other trade restrictions could have a significant impact on our vendors’
sourcing patterns in the future. The extent of this impact, if any, and the possible effect on our purchasing patterns and costs, cannot be determined at this
time. We cannot predict whether any of the countries in which our vendors’ merchandise is currently manufactured or may be manufactured in the future
will be subject to additional trade restrictions imposed by the United States or foreign governments, nor can we predict the likelihood, type or effect of any
restrictions. Trade restrictions, including increased tariffs or quotas, embargoes, safeguards and customs restrictions against items we offer in our boutiques,
as well as United States or foreign labor strikes, work stoppages or boycotts, could increase the cost or reduce the supply of merchandise to our vendors,
and we would expect the costs to be passed along in increased prices to us, which could hurt our profitability.

Additionally, political instability or acts of terrorism, significant fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies and restrictions on the
transfer of funds between the U.S. and foreign jurisdictions, any of which if they effect the countries where our merchandise are sourced, could adversely
affect our merchandise flow and, consequently, cause our sales to decline.

Increases in the minimum wage could have an adverse effect on our financial results.

From time to time, legislative proposals are made to increase the federal minimum wage in the United States, as well as the minimum wage in a number of
individual states and municipalities. Legislation to increase the minimum wage has been approved or is being contemplated in some states in which we
operate. Base wage rates for many of our employees are at or slightly above the minimum wage. As federal or state minimum wage rates increase, we may
need to increase not only the wage rates of our minimum wage employees, but also the wages paid to our other hourly employees as well. Any increase in
the cost of our labor could have an adverse effect on our operating costs, financial condition and results of operations.
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Our Board of Directors has adopted a limited duration stockholder rights plan, which could delay or discourage a merger, tender offer, or assumption
of control of the Company not approved by our Board of Directors.

On July 31, 2019, our Board of Directors adopted a limited duration stockholder rights plan (the “Rights Plan”) with an expiration date of August 1, 2022
and an ownership trigger threshold of 15%, subject to certain exceptions. In connection with the Rights Plan, our Board of Directors authorized and
declared a dividend to stockholders of record at the close of business on August 15, 2019 of one preferred share purchase right (a “Right”) for each
outstanding share of our common stock.

Upon certain triggering events (none of which has occurred as of February 1, 2020), each Right will entitle the holder to purchase from us one five-
thousandth (subject to adjustment) of one share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per share (the “Preferred Stock) at an
exercise price of $18.00 (the “Exercise Price”) per one five-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock. In addition, if a person or group acquires beneficial
ownership of 15% or more of the Company’s common stock without prior approval of our Board of Directors, or in the case of a person or group that
beneficially owned more than 15% of our common stock prior to the issuance of the press release announcing the adoption of the Rights Agreement on
August 2, 2019, such person or group acquires beneficial ownership of any additional shares of our common stock without prior approval of our Board of
Directors, each holder of a Right (other than the acquiring person or group whose Rights will become void) will have the right to purchase, upon payment
of the Exercise Price and in accordance with and subject to adjustment under the terms of the Rights Plan, a number of shares of our common stock having
a market value of twice the Exercise Price (as adjusted).

The Rights Plan is intended to enable all of our stockholders to realize the value of their investment in the Company, ensure that all stockholders receive
fair treatment, and provide our Board of Directors and stockholders with adequate time to make informed decisions. The Rights Plan is not intended to
deter offers that are fair and otherwise in the best interests of the Company’s stockholders. However, the Rights Plan could render more difficult, or
discourage, a merger, tender offer, or assumption of control of the Company that is not approved by our Board of Directors, even if such a transaction
would be beneficial to our stockholders. These deterrents could adversely affect the price of our common stock.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware will be the sole and exclusive
forum for substantially all disputes between us and our stockholders, which could limit our stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for
disputes with us or our directors, officers or other employees or agents or stockholders.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of
Chancery of the State of Delaware is the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of us, (ii) any action
asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer employee or agent, (iii) any action asserting a claim arising pursuant to any
provision of the Delaware General Corporation Law, or (iv) any action asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine, in each such case subject
to such Court of Chancery having personal jurisdiction over the indispensable parties named as defendants therein. This exclusive forum provision is
intended to apply to claims arising under Delaware state law and would not apply to claims brought pursuant to the Exchange Act or Securities Act of
1933, each as amended, or any other claim for which the federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction. The exclusive forum provision in our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation will not relieve us of our duties to comply with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder, and
our stockholders will not be deemed to have waived our compliance with these laws, rules and regulations. This exclusive forum provision may limit a
stockholder's ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum of its choosing for disputes with us or our directors, officers or other employees or agents, which
may discourage lawsuits against us and our directors, officers and other employees and agents. In addition, stockholders who do bring a claim in the Court
of Chancery of the State of Delaware could face additional litigation costs in pursuing any such claim, particularly if they do not reside in or near Delaware.
The Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware may also reach different judgments or results than would other courts, including courts where a
stockholder would otherwise choose to bring the action, and such judgments or results may be more favorable to us than to our stockholders. However, the
enforceability of similar exclusive forum provisions in other companies' certificates of incorporation has been challenged in legal proceedings, and it is
possible that a court could find this type of provision to be inapplicable to, or unenforceable in respect of, one or more of the specified types of actions or
proceedings. If a court were to find the exclusive forum provision contained in our amended and restated bylaws to be inapplicable or unenforceable in an
action, we might incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions.
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If we fail to comply with the continued listing requirements of the Nasdaq Stock Market, it could result in our common stock being delisted, which
could adversely affect the market price and liquidity of our securities and could have other adverse effects.

Our common stock is currently listed for trading on The Nasdaq Global Select Market. We must satisfy Nasdaq’s continued listing requirements, including,
among others, a minimum stockholders’ equity of $5.0 million and a minimum bid price for our common stock of $1.00 per share, or risk possibly
delisting, which would have a material adverse effect on our business. On February 1, 2019, we received a letter from the Listing Qualifications staff of
Nasdaq indicating that, based upon the closing bid price of our common stock for the prior 30 consecutive business days, we no longer met the requirement
of the Nasdaq Global Select Market to maintain a minimum bid price of $1 per share, as set forth in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5450(a)(1). As discussed under
“Recent Developments” included elsewhere in this report, on July 1, 2019, we effected a 12-to-1 stock split in order to regain compliance with the
minimum bid price requirement and, on July 17, 2019, Nasdaq informed us that we had regained full compliance with Nasdaq’s continued listing
requirements. However, there can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain compliance with Nasdaq’s continued listing requirements. On April 17,
2020, Nasdaq filed a proposed rule change, which has now become effective, to permit a longer period of time for companies to regain compliance with the
minimum bid price and market value of publicly held shares by tolling the compliance period through June 30, 2020. Upon expiration of the tolling period,
if we do not maintain compliance with the Nasdaq continuing listing requirements, our common stock may be delisted from the Nasdaq Global Select
Market and it could be more difficult to buy or sell our securities and to obtain accurate quotations, and the price of our common stock could suffer a
material decline. In addition, a delisting would impair our ability to raise capital through the public markets, could deter broker-dealers from making a
market in or otherwise seeking or generating interest in our securities and might deter certain institutions and persons from investing in our securities at all.

Anti-takeover provisions of Delaware law and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could delay and discourage takeover attempts that
stockholders may consider to be favorable.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws contain provisions that make it difficult for our stockholders to
change the composition of our board of directors, preventing them from changing the composition of management. The same provisions may discourage,
delay or prevent a merger or acquisition that our stockholders may consider favorable. These provisions, among other things:

establish a staggered, or classified, board of directors so that not all members of our board of directors are elected at one time;
prohibit cumulative voting in the election of directors;

authorize the issuance by our board of directors of “blank check” preferred stock, the terms of which may be established and the shares of which
may be issued without stockholder approval, and which may include super-majority voting, special approval, dividend or other rights or
preferences superior to the rights of the holders of common stock;

limit the persons who may call special meetings of stockholders;
prohibit stockholder action by written consent, which requires all stockholder actions to be taken at a meeting of our stockholders; and

establish advance notice requirements for stockholder nominations for elections to our board of directors or for proposing matters that can be acted
upon by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

These anti-takeover provisions and other provisions under Delaware law could substantially impede the ability of our common stockholders to benefit from
a change in control and, as a result, could materially adversely affect the market price of our common stock and your ability to realize any potential change-
in-control premium.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We do not own any real property, but rather lease our properties. Our corporate headquarters, warehouse and distribution center are located in an
approximately 218,000 square foot facility in Houston, Texas. This lease was scheduled to expire on April 30, 2020; however, we exercised our option to
renew the lease, which extended the term through April 30, 2025. We believe that our current facility will be sufficient to support our business operations
for several years.

As of February 1, 2020, we had 711 boutiques in 47 states and the District of Columbia. In total, we have approximately 1,040,000 gross square feet across
all of our boutiques. Our boutiques are leased from third parties with initial lease terms of five to ten years and many of our lease agreements have
additional five-year renewal options. A majority of our leases have early termination clauses, which permit the lease to be terminated by us if certain sales
levels are not met in specific periods or if a shopping center does not meet specified occupancy standards. In addition to fixed minimum lease payments,
most of our boutique leases provide for additional rental payments based on a percentage of sales if sales at the respective boutiques exceed specified
levels. A majority of our leases also provide for additional payments associated with common area maintenance, real estate taxes and insurance. Many of
our lease agreements have defined escalating rent provisions over the initial term and extensions.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For information regarding legal proceedings involving us, please refer to Note 12, Contingencies, to our audited consolidated financial statements included
in “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in Item 8 of this Annual Report, which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “FRAN.” As of April 15, 2020, there were approximately 59 holders of
record of our common stock. The number of holders of record is based upon the actual number of holders registered at such date and does not include
holders of shares in “street name” or persons, partnerships, associates, corporations or other entities identified in security position listing maintained by
depositories.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data for each of the years ended February 1, 2020, February 2, 2019, and February 3, 2018, and the selected
consolidated balance sheet data as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements, which
are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The selected consolidated financial data for the year ended January 28, 2017 and January 30,
2016 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of February 3, 2018, January 28, 2017, and January 30, 2016 have been derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements, which are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We operate on a fiscal calendar which, in a given fiscal year, consists of a 52- or 53-week period ending on the Saturday closest to January 31st. The
reporting periods contained in our audited consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contain 52 weeks of operations
in fiscal year 2019, which ended on February 1, 2020, 52 weeks of operations in fiscal year 2018, which ended on February 2, 2019, and 53 weeks of
operations in fiscal year 2017, which ended on February 3, 2018. Our fiscal year 2016 included 52 weeks of operations which ended on January 28, 2017
and our fiscal year 2015 included 52 weeks of operations which ended on January 30, 2016. The historical results presented below are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for any future period. You should read the selected consolidated financial and operating data for the periods
presented in conjunction with “Risk Factors”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes, which are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3, January 28, January 30,
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

(in thousands, except per share data, percentages and operating data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Net sales $ 407,536 $ 428,115 $ 471,678 $ 487,188 $ 439,377
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs 258,000 265,119 264,915 258,561 229,673
Gross profit 149,536 162,996 206,763 228,627 209,704
Selling, general, and administrative expense 161,689 176,379 176,543 160,561 146,597
Asset impairment charges(!) 11,860 20,122 258 141 790
(Loss) income from operations (24,013) (33,505) 29,962 67,925 62,317
Interest expense 1,204 426 452 464 457
Other (income) expense (322) (483) (346) (147) 151
(Loss) income before income tax expense (24,895) (33,448) 29,856 67,608 61,709
Income tax expense &) 125 7,493 14,295 25,607 23,557
Net (loss) income $ (25,020) $ (40,941) $ 15,561 $ 42,001 $ 38,152
Basic (loss) earnings per common share () $ 8.63) $ (1412) $ 516 $ 13.12  $ 10.90
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share ®) $ 863) $ (14.12) $ 514  $ 13.07 $ 10.87
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic shares (%) 2,899 2,900 3,014 3,202 3,501

Diluted shares () 2,899 2,900 3,025 3,213 3,510

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Total current assets $ 65,543 $ 77,247 $ 84,503 $ 100,075 $ 110,769
Total assets(®) $ 328,608 $ 153,042 $ 185240 $ 189,593 $ 193,577
Long-term debt $ - 8 10,000 $ - $ -5 -
Total liabilities(*) $ 282,082 $ 79,652 $ 70,792 $ 73,058 $ 67,185
Total stockholders’ equity $ 46,526 $ 73,390 $ 114,448 $ 116,535 $ 126,392
Operating data:

Comparable sales change for period ©) @)% (14)% (11)% 2% 3%
Number of boutiques open at end of period 711 727 721 671 616
Net sales per average square foot for period (®) $ 390 $ 404 $ 482 $ 545 $ 543
Average square feet per boutique at the end of the

period ) 1,462 1,452 1,420 1,391 1,368
Total approximate gross square feet at end of

period 1,040,000 1,055,000 1,024,000 933,000 843,000

(1) We recorded a non-cash asset impairment charge of $11.9 million in fiscal year 2019, which is primarily related to the write-off of operating lease right-of-use (“ROU”) assets for 60
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underperforming boutiques. This compares to non-cash impairment charge of $20.1 million in fiscal year 2018, which was primarily related to the write-off of boutique assets for 153
underperforming boutiques. Additionally, the asset impairment charge in fiscal year 2018 included a $4.9 million charge associated with the write-off of boutique furniture, fixtures and
supplies that were no longer expected to be used as a result of postponing new boutique openings and remodels in future periods. See Note 5, Asset Impairment Charges, to our consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.

Our income tax expense for fiscal year 2018 included a $17.1 million non-cash valuation allowance provided on our net deferred tax asset. A valuation allowance has been recorded in fiscal
year 2018 because we concluded that it is more likely than not that certain deferred tax assets will not be realized. In fiscal year 2019, we recognized additional valuation allowance of $7.5
million which is also included in income tax expense. See Note 6, Income Taxes, to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for
additional information.

All per common share information presented have been adjusted to reflect the 12-to-1 reverse stock split that became effective on July 1, 2019. Refer to Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, and Note 3, (Loss) Earnings Per Share, to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.

On February 3, 2019, we adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 842, “Leases,” and its amendments. As a result of the adoption, we recorded an operating lease
liability of $278.9 million and operating lease right-of-use (“ROU”) asset of $242.9 million at February 3, 2019. Prior year amounts were not adjusted and continue to be reported under
Accounting Standards Codification, 840, “Leases.” For additional information, see Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, and Note 11, Leases, to our consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.

A boutique is included in comparable sales on the first day of the fifteenth full month following the boutique’s opening. If a boutique is closed for four or more days within a given fiscal
week for any reason, we exclude sales from that boutique from comparable sales for that full fiscal week. If a boutique is permanently closed, we exclude sales from that boutique from
comparable sales on the first day of the fiscal month that it did not register full month of sales. Comparable sales include our ecommerce sales and exclude gift card breakage income and

sales during the 53" week, if applicable.

Net sales per average square foot for the period is calculated by dividing net sales for the period by the average square feet during the period. For purposes of providing a net sales per
square foot measure, we use average square feet during the period as opposed to total gross square feet at the end of the period. Average square feet is calculated as (a) the sum of total gross
square feet at the beginning of the period and total gross square feet at the end of each fiscal quarter within the period, divided by (b) the number of fiscal quarters within the period plus one
(which, for a fiscal year, is five). There may be variations in the way in which some of our competitors and other retailers calculate sales per square foot or similarly titled measures. As a
result, average total square feet and net sales per average square foot for the period may not be comparable to similar data made available by other retailers.

Average square feet per boutique is calculated by dividing total gross square feet at the end of the period by the number of boutiques open at the end of the period.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with “Selected Consolidated Financial
and Operating Data” and our consolidated financial statements and the related notes and other financial information and operating data, which are
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysis, including information with
respect to our plans and strategy for our business, includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should review the “Risk
Factors” and “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of important factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in the following
discussion and analysis.

We operate on a fiscal calendar which, in a given fiscal year, consists of a 52- or 53-week period ending on the Saturday closest to January 31st. The
reporting periods contained in our audited consolidated financial statements included in this report contain 52 weeks of operations in fiscal year 2019,
which ended on February 1, 2020, 52 weeks of operations in fiscal year 2018, which ended on February 2, 2019, and 53 weeks of operations in fiscal year
2017, which ended on February 3, 2018. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future period.

Overview

francesca’s® is a specialty retailer which operates a nationwide-chain of boutiques providing customers a unique, fun and personalized shopping
experience. The merchandise assortment is diverse and a balanced mix of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts. At February 1, 2020, francesca’s®
operated 711 boutiques in 47 states and the District of Columbia and also served its customers through www.francescas.com, its ecommerce website.

In assessing the performance of our business, we consider a variety of performance and financial measures. The key measures for determining how our
business is performing are net sales, comparable sales, cost of goods sold and occupancy costs, selling, general and administrative expenses and income
from operations.

Recent Developments

In fiscal year 2019, we developed and began execution of a turnaround plan to stabilize and then grow our business. This plan includes strategies aimed at
enhancing our financial performance, which has declined primarily as a result of our continued comparable sales declines. See above under Item 1.
Business, “Our Growth Strategy” for additional information. We began realizing benefits from our turnaround plan in the back half of fiscal year 2019,
mainly due to modifications to our buying, merchandising and planning activities that allowed us to return to a demand based, read and react customer
model. As a result, we saw a deceleration in the decrease in our comparable sales, ending fiscal year 2019 with a 4% decline compared to a 14% decline in
fiscal year 2018 and an 11% decline in fiscal year 2017. Additionally, we reduced selling, general and administrative expenses by implementing measures
to increase boutique team productivity and other targeted reductions across the entire organization, including workforce reductions in both our corporate
office and field operations, which provided us with approximately $14.2 million in annualized savings. Our operating loss decreased to $24.0 million in
fiscal year 2019 as compared to $33.5 million in fiscal year 2018. We expect to continue executing our turnaround plan until our desired results are
achieved.

In February 2019, we executed a workforce reduction at both our corporate office and within field management as part of our cost reduction initiative
associated with our turnaround plan that commenced in January 2019. Additionally, there were additional employee departures during fiscal year 2019 in
connection with such initiatives. As a result, we expensed $1.7 million of severance benefits related to certain employee departures, excluding reversal of
stock-based compensation, in fiscal year 2019. These severance benefits are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the audited
consolidated statements of operations.

On July 1, 2019, we effected a 12-to-1 stock split (the “Reverse Stock Split”), reducing the number of shares of common stock outstanding on that date
from 35.4 million (which excludes 1.4 million of restricted stock awards granted to members of our Board of Directors prior to the Reverse Stock Split but
issued after the Reverse Stock Split) to 3.1 million shares. Additionally, the number of shares of our common stock subject to outstanding stock options,
restricted stock awards and restricted stock units, the exercise price of all our outstanding stock options, and the number of shares reserved for future
issuance pursuant to our equity compensation plans were adjusted proportionately in connection with the Reverse Stock Split. The number of authorized
shares of common stock under our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and the par value per share of our common stock were unchanged.
All historical share and per share amounts presented herein have been adjusted retrospectively to reflect these changes. The Reverse Stock Split was
effected in order to increase the market price per share of our common stock to ensure we regained full compliance with The Nasdaq Stock Market LL.C’s
(“Nasdaq”) minimum bid price requirement and maintained its listing on Nasdaq. Nasdaq informed us on July 17, 2019 that we had regained full
compliance with Nasdaq’s listing requirements.
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On July 31, 2019, our Board of Directors adopted a limited duration stockholder rights plan (the “Rights Plan”) with an expiration date of August 1, 2022
and an ownership trigger threshold of 15%, subject to certain exceptions. In connection with the Rights Plan, our Board of Directors authorized and
declared a dividend to our stockholders of record at the close of business on August 15, 2019 of one preferred share purchase right (a “Right”) for each
outstanding share of our common stock. Upon certain triggering events (none of which have occurred as of February 1, 2020), each Right will entitle the
holder to purchase from us one five-thousandth (subject to adjustment) of one share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per
share (the “Preferred Stock”) at an exercise price of $18.00 (the “Exercise Price”) per one five-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock. In addition, if a
person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of our common stock without prior approval of our Board of Directors, or in the case of a
person or group that beneficially owned more than 15% of our common stock prior to the issuance of the press release announcing the adoption of the
Rights Agreement on August 2, 2019, such person or group acquires beneficial ownership of any additional shares of our common stock without prior
approval of our Board of Directors, each holder of a Right (other than the acquiring person or group whose Rights will become void) will have the right to
purchase, upon payment of the Exercise Price and in accordance with and subject to adjustment under the terms of the Rights Plan, a number of shares of
our common stock having a market value of twice the Exercise Price (as adjusted). The complete terms of the Rights are set forth in a Rights Agreement
(the “Rights Agreement”), dated as of August 1, 2019, between Francesca’s Holdings Corporation and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., as rights
agent, which is included as Exhibit 4.2 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

On August 13, 2019, Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (the “Company”), as a guarantor, certain of its subsidiaries, as borrowers (the “Borrowers”), and
certain of its subsidiaries as guarantors (together with the Company and the Borrowers, the “Loan Parties”), entered into a Term Loan Credit Agreement
(“Term Loan Credit Agreement”) with Tiger Finance, LLC, as administrative agent and the lenders party thereto. The Term Loan Credit Agreement
provides for an aggregate term loan of $10.0 million and matures on August 13, 2022. Concurrent with entering into the Term Loan Credit Agreement, the
Company and the other Loan Parties, entered into a First Amendment to ABL Credit Agreement (the “First Amendment to ABL Credit Agreement”) with
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto, which amends the Company’s existing asset based revolving credit
agreement, dated as of May 25, 2018, by and among the Company, the other Loan Parties, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent (the “ABL Credit Agreement” and, as amended by the First Amendment to ABL Credit Agreement, the “Amended ABL Credit
Agreement”). See “Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility” and “Term Loan Credit Agreement” under “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for
additional information.

On August 13, 2019, we announced the completion of our previously announced strategic alternatives review process as we intend to focus on the
execution of our turnaround plan.

Our boutique count decreased to 711 boutiques as of February 1, 2020 from 727 boutiques as of February 2, 2019. As previously disclosed, our current
priority is executing our turnaround plan which is aimed at improving comparable sales and profitability. We plan to resume new boutique openings and
remodels in the future, as appropriate, when the desired results are achieved under our turnaround plan.

We recorded a non-cash asset impairment charge of $11.9 million in fiscal year 2019, which is primarily related to the write-off of operating lease right-of-
use (“ROU”) assets for 60 underperforming boutiques. This compares to non-cash impairment charge of $20.1 million in fiscal year 2018, which was
primarily related to the write-off of boutique assets for 153 underperforming boutiques. Additionally, the asset impairment charge in fiscal year 2018
included a $4.9 million charge associated with the write-off of boutique furniture, fixtures and supplies that were no longer expected to be used as a result
of postponing new boutique openings and remodels in future periods. For additional information, see Note 5, Asset Impairment Charges, to our
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In February 2020, our Board of Directors appointed Mr. Andrew Clarke as our President and Chief Executive Officer and as a Class II director of our
Board of Directors, effective March 9, 2020. At such time, Mr. Michael Prendergast, who served as our Interim Chief Executive Officer since February
2019, resigned from his position of Interim Chief Executive Officer, effective March 9, 2020.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a pandemic. In recent months, the outbreak has spread globally and has led
governments and other authorities around the world, including federal, state and local authorities in the United States, to impose measures intended to
reduce its spread, including restrictions on freedom of movement and business operations such as travel bans, border closings, business limitations and
closures (subject to exceptions for essential operations and businesses), quarantines and shelter-in-place orders. These measures may remain in place for a
significant amount of time and has resulted in the temporary closures of all of our boutiques from March 25, 2020 to April 30, 2020, when we began
reopening a small number of our boutiques in locations where local shutdown orders have been lifted. These measures have also caused an overall
disruption in our supply chain and operations; while our ecommerce and our distribution center remain open, they are operating at a reduced capacity. As a
result, our revenues, results of operations and cash flows have been materially adversely impacted which raises substantial doubt about our ability to
continue as a going concern.
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In response to such events, we are taking aggressive and prudent actions to reduce expenses and defer payment of accounts payables and inventory
purchases to preserve cash on hand. These actions include, but are not limited to, furloughing substantially all of our corporate and boutique employees (for
the duration of boutique closures at their location and subject to reduced staffing for a phase-in period upon reopening), base salary reduction for our senior
leadership team, deferring payment of rent at all our boutiques, corporate headquarters and distribution facility, beginning in April 2020 subject to
discussion with our landlords and other vendors, limiting investments in our ecommerce to necessary website and supporting functions, and suspending all
capital expenditures. Additionally, we borrowed $5.0 million under our Amended Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility with JPMorgan Chase (“Amended
ABL Credit Facility”) in April 2020. We also filed an income tax refund for $10.7 million with the IRS related to the provision under the Corona Aid,
Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) enacted in March 2020 that allows the carryback of net operating losses to prior years. We are electing
to take other available relief under the CARES Act including deferral of payment of certain payroll taxes and employee retention tax credits. We continue
to evaluate the provisions of the CARES Act and the ways in which it could assist our business or improve our liquidity.

The inclusion of a going concern qualification in the report of our independent registered public accountant on our accompanying financial statements for
the fiscal year ended February 1, 2020 has resulted in a violation of certain covenants under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit
Agreement (each as defined below). On May 1, 2020, we entered into a letter agreement (the “JPM Letter Agreement”) in connection with our Amended
ABL Credit Agreement and a letter agreement (the “Tiger Letter Agreement”) in connection with our Term Loan Credit Agreement, in each case, to obtain
a waiver from our lenders of any default or event of default arising from our failure to (i) deliver annual audited consolidated financial statements for the
fiscal year ended February 1, 2020 without a “going concern” or a like qualification or exception and (ii) pay rent on leased locations for the months of
April, May and June, 2020. The JPM Letter Agreement and Tiger Letter Agreement contain certain conditions and covenants, including that, in the case of
the JPM Letter Agreement, we are required to use the entire $10.7 million income tax refund requested under the CARES Act to repay certain outstanding
borrowings under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement and providing that no loans will be made under the ABL Credit Agreement unless our aggregate
amount of cash and cash equivalents is less than $3.0 million. See Item 9B of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information. If we are unable
to meet our financial covenants or if we have an event of default under either agreement, our lenders could instruct the administrative agent under such
credit facilities to exercise available remedies including, declaring the principal of and accrued interest on all outstanding indebtedness due and payable
immediately and terminating all remaining commitments and obligations under the credit facilities. Although the lenders under our credit facilities may
waive the defaults or forebear the exercise of remedies, they are not obligated to do so. Failure to obtain such a waiver would have a material adverse effect
on our liquidity, financial condition and results of operations and may result in filing a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the United States
Bankruptcy Code in order to implement a restructuring plan. See Item 1A, Risk Factors of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.

There is significant uncertainty around the disruptions related to the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on the global economy. While our results of
operations have been significantly impacted and we anticipate our future results will continue to be adversely impacted, the extent to which the COVID-19
pandemic impacts our future results will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with certainty, including new
information which may emerge concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic in the United States, actions taken to contain it or treat its impact, any
possible resurgence of COVID-19 that may occur after the initial outbreak subsides, and how quickly and to what extent normal economic and operating
conditions can resume. See Item 1A, Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for more information regarding the risks we face as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Boutique Count

The following table summarizes the number of boutiques open at the beginning and end of periods and the number of boutiques remodeled for the periods
indicated.

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, 2020 February 2,2019 February 3, 2018
Number of boutiques open at the beginning of period 727 721 671
Boutiques added 5 32 60
Boutiques closed (21) (26) (10)
Number of boutiques open at the end of period 711 727 721
Number of boutiques remodeled - 81 17
Results of Operations
Fiscal Year 2019 Compared to Fiscal Year 2018
Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, 2020 February 2, 2019 Variance
Asa % Asa %
In of Net In of Net In Basis
Dollars Sales M Dollars Sales M Dollars % Points )
(in thousands, except percentages)
Net sales $ 407,536 100.0% $ 428,115 100.0% $ (20,579) 5)% -
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs 258,000 63.3% 265,119 61.9% (7,119) (3)% 140
Gross profit 149,536 36.7% 162,996 38.1% (13,460) 8)% (140)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 161,689 39.7% 176,379 41.2% (14,690) 8)% (150)
Asset impairment charges 11,860 2.9% 20,122 4.7% (8,262) (41)% (180)
Loss from operations (24,013) (5.9)% (33,505) (7.8)% (9,492) (28)% (190)
Interest expense 1,204 0.3% 426 0.1% 778 183% 20
Other income (322) (0.1)% (483) (0.1)% (161) (33)% -
Loss before income tax expense (24,895) (6.1)% (33,448) (7.8)% (8,553) (26)% (170)
Income tax expense 125 0.0% 7,493 1.8% (7,368) (98)% (170)

Net loss $ (25,020 (6.1)% $ (40,941) (9.6)%  (15,921) (39)% (340)




(1) Percentage totals or differences in the above table may not equal the sum or difference of the components due to rounding.
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Net Sales

Net sales decreased 5%, or $20.6 million, to $407.5 million in fiscal year 2019 compared to $428.1 million in fiscal year 2018 due to a 4% decrease in
comparable sales as well as a net decrease in boutique count. The decrease in comparable sales was due to a decline in traffic as well as a decrease in
average unit retail prices as a result of deeper markdowns and promotions mostly during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2019. These decreases were
partially offset by an improvement in conversion rates. There were 701 comparable boutiques and 10 non-comparable boutiques open at February 1, 2020,
compared to 698 and 29, respectively, at February 2, 2019.

Cost of Goods Sold and Occupancy Costs

Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs decreased 3% to $258.0 million in fiscal year 2019 from $265.1 million in fiscal year 2018. Cost of merchandise
and shipping expenses decreased by $2.0 million as there were no marked out-of-stock charges in fiscal year 2019 as well as a decrease in ecommerce
shipping expenses. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in the number of units sold. Occupancy costs decreased by $5.1 million due to the
net decrease in boutique count, lower depreciation associated with boutiques impaired in fiscal year 2018 and lower demolition costs related to prior year
boutique remodels.

As a percentage of net sales, cost of goods sold and occupancy costs increased to 63.3% in fiscal year 2019 from 61.9% in fiscal year 2018, an unfavorable
variance of 140 basis points. This unfavorable variance was due to lower merchandise margins driven by deeper markdowns and promotions mostly during
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2019 partially offset by lower occupancy costs.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 8% to $161.7 million in fiscal year 2019 from $176.4 million in fiscal year 2018. This decrease was
primarily due to a $10.5 million decrease in boutique payroll and related expenses and a decrease in boutique supplies associated with our cost reduction
initiatives under our turnaround plan as well as a net decrease in boutique count. Additionally, our costs reduction initiatives also resulted in a $7.0 million
decrease in corporate payroll and related expenses, $1.7 million decrease in marketing, a $1.3 million decrease in stock-based compensation primarily due
to the reversal of previously recognized stock-based compensation associated with certain employee departures, and a $1.0 million decrease in travel
expenses. These decreases were partially offset by a $4.5 million increase in both boutique and corporate bonus expenses as the applicable financial targets
were achieved, $1.9 million increase in professional fees associated with the Company’s review of strategic and financial alternatives and the turnaround
plan, and $1.7 million of severance benefits associated with the headcount reduction executed in February 2019. The remaining change was principally due
to cost reduction initiatives associated with our turnaround plan.

As a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased to 39.7% in fiscal year 2019 from 41.2% in fiscal year 2018 primarily
due to leveraging of expenses in connection with the turnaround plan.

Asset Impairment Charges

We recorded non-cash asset impairment charges of $11.9 million in fiscal year 2019 mostly related to the write-down of operating lease ROU assets for 60
underperforming boutiques. This compares to non-cash impairment charges of $20.1 million in fiscal year 2018, which was primarily related to the write-
off of boutique assets for 153 underperforming boutiques. Additionally, the asset impairment charge in fiscal year 2018 included a $4.9 million charge
associated with the write-off of boutique furniture, fixtures and supplies that were no longer expected to be used as a result of postponing new boutique
openings and remodels in future periods. See above under “Recent Developments” for additional information.

Interest Expense
Interest expense increased $0.8 million to $1.2 million in fiscal year 2019 from $0.4 million in fiscal year 2018 due to interest expense associated with our
Term Loan Credit Agreement, which was entered into in August 2019. As disclosed below in “Term Loan Credit Agreement” under “Liquidity and Capital

Resources,” the annual interest rate under the Term Loan Credit Agreement is subject to a minimum annual interest of rate 10% of the outstanding amount.
This interest rate is significantly higher than the interest rate applicable to borrowings under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement.
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Income Tax Expense
Our income tax expense decreased to $0.1 million in fiscal year 2019 compared to $7.5 million fiscal year 2018 due to the $17.1 million valuation
allowance recognized in the prior year. Additionally, we did not incur an income tax benefit associated with our net loss for fiscal year 2019 as we continue

to provide a valuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets. Our income tax expense for fiscal year 2019 consists of state taxes.

Our effective tax rate was 0.5% in fiscal year 2019 compared to 22.4% in the prior year. The decrease in our effective tax rate is due to the valuation
allowance provided on our net deferred tax assets.

Fiscal Year 2018 Compared to Fiscal Year 2017

Fiscal Year Ended
February 2, 2019 February 3, 2018 Variance
Asa % Asa %
In of Net In of Net In Basis
Dollars Sales () Dollars Sales (1 Dollars % Points (V
(in thousands, except percentages)

Net sales $ 428,115 100.0% $ 471,678 100.0% $ (43,563) 9)% -
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs 265,119 61.9% 264,915 56.2% 204 0% 580
Gross profit 162,996 38.1% 206,763 43.8% (43,767) 21)% (580)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 176,379 41.2% 176,543 37.4% (164) 0% 380
Asset impairment charges 20,122 4.7% 258 0.1% 19,864 * (2) * ()
(Loss) income from operations (33,505) (7.8)% 29,962 6.4%  (63,467) *(2) *(2)
Interest expense 426 0.1% 452 0.1% (26) (6)% -
Other income (483) (0.1)% (346) (0.1)% 137 40% -
(Loss) income before income tax expense (33,448) (7.8)% 29,856 6.3% (63,304) *(2) * (2
Income tax expense 7,493 1.8% 14,295 3.0% (6,802) * () % (2)
Net (loss) income $ (40,941) 9.6)% $ 15,561 33%  (56,502) * (2 * (2

(1) Percentage totals or differences in the above table may not equal the sum or difference of the components due to rounding.
(2) Not meaningful.

Net Sales

Net sales decreased 9%, or $43.6 million, to $428.1 million in fiscal year 2018 compared to $471.7 million in fiscal year 2017 due to a 14% decrease in

comparable sales following an 11% decrease in the prior year. Additionally, fiscal 2017 included approximately $5.0 million of sales for the 53" week. The
decrease in comparable sales was due to declines in both boutique traffic and conversion rate. There were 698 comparable boutiques and 29 non-
comparable boutiques open at February 2, 2019, compared to 657 and 64, respectively, at February 3, 2018.

Cost of Goods Sold and Occupancy Costs

Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs was flat at approximately $265.0 million in fiscal years 2018 and 2017. Cost of goods sold decreased by $10.0
million in fiscal year 2018 due to a decrease in sales volume and marked out-of-stock charges but was partially offset by higher ecommerce shipping
expenses as a result of higher ecommerce sales penetration. Occupancy costs increased by $10.2 million in fiscal year 2018 principally due to the 32 new
boutiques opened partially offset by 26 boutiques closed during the year; 12 of which were closed during the last week of the fiscal year. Additionally, we
saw increases in average rent and related expenses due to increased penetration of boutiques in high traffic centers, depreciation due to increased cost of
new boutiques and remodels and costs associated with boutique remodels.

As a percentage of net sales, cost of goods sold and occupancy costs increased to 61.9% in fiscal year 2018 from 56.2% in fiscal year 2017, an unfavorable
variance of 580 basis points. This unfavorable variance was driven by 440 basis points deleveraging of occupancy costs as a result of lower sales as well as
the increase in occupancy costs discussed above. Additionally, merchandise margins were lower by 140 basis points in fiscal year 2018 as compared to the
prior year due to increased markdowns and higher average unit costs but was partially offset by lower marked-out-of-stock charges and inventory reserves.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses were flat at approximately $176.0 million in fiscal years 2018 and 2017. The $2.7 million increase in
marketing, professional fees and depreciation was offset by a decrease of $2.4 million in selling expenses due to labor efficiencies at the boutique level and
the $0.8 million reversal of previously awarded stock-based compensation associated with the resignation of our prior CEO. Part of the increase in
professional fees was due to $1.5 million in consulting expenses incurred associated with our turnaround plan and evaluation of strategic and financial
alternatives that commenced in January 2019.
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As a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses increased to 41.2% in fiscal year 2018 from 37.4% in fiscal year 2017 primarily
due to deleveraging of expenses resulting from lower sales.

Asset Impairment Charges

We recognized asset impairment charges of $20.1 million in fiscal year 2018 mostly related to 153 underperforming boutiques for which the remaining, or
a portion of the remaining, net book value of their respective assets are no longer expected to be recoverable. Additionally, we wrote off $4.9 million in
fiscal year 2018 of boutique furniture, fixtures and supplies that are no longer intended to be used as a result of postponing new boutique openings and
remodels in future periods. See above under “Recent Developments” for additional information.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased to $7.5 million in fiscal year 2018 compared to $14.3 million in fiscal year 2017. We did not incur an income tax benefit
associated with our net loss in fiscal year 2018 primarily due to the $17.1 million valuation allowance provided on our net deferred tax assets.

Our effective tax rate was 22.4% and 47.9% in fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively. The significant change in our effective tax rate was due to the
$17.1 million valuation allowance provided on our net deferred tax asset in fiscal year 2018 and the lower corporate income tax rate under the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act (“Tax Act”) enacted in December 2017. This change was partially offset by the $3.3 million non-cash expense recognized in fiscal year 2017 as a
result of the remeasurement of our net deferred tax assets using the lower corporate income tax rate under the Tax Act. During fiscal year 2018, we
completed the analysis of the impact of the Tax Act and determined that no material adjustments was needed to the previously recorded provisional
amount. See Note 6, Income Taxes, to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional
information.

Sales by Merchandise Category

The following table presents merchandise by category, in dollars and as a percentage of total sales, for the periods indicated.

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, 2020 February 2, 2019 February 3, 2018

Asa % Asa % Asa %

In of Net In of Net In of Net

Dollars Sales(V) Dollars Sales(V) Dollars Sales(V)

(in thousands, except percentages)

Apparel $ 186,493 45.8% $ 200,736 46.9% $ 235,048 49.8%
Jewelry 111,031 27.2% 104,714 24.5% 104,638 22.2%
Accessories 65,530 16.1% 69,219 16.2% 69,004 14.6%
Gifts 41,275 10.1% 50,311 11.8% 59,286 12.6%
Other® 3,207 0.8% 3,135 0.7% 3,702 0.8%
$ 407,536 100.0% $ 428,115 100.0% $ 471,678 100.0%

(1)  Percentage totals or differences in the above table may not equal the sum or difference of the components due to rounding
(2)  Includes gift card breakage income, shipping revenue and change in return reserve.

Seasonality

Our business is seasonal in nature and demand is generally the highest in the fourth fiscal quarter due to the year-end holiday season and lowest in the first
fiscal quarter. In addition, to prepare for these periods, we must order and keep in stock more merchandise than we carry during other parts of the year. We
expect inventory levels, along with an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses, generally to reach their highest levels in the fourth fiscal quarter
in anticipation of the increased net sales during this period. As a result of this seasonality, we experience fluctuations in net sales and working capital
requirements during the year.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flows from operations and borrowings under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement (see “Asset Based Revolving
Credit Facility” below for more information) and Term Loan Credit Agreement (see “Term Loan Credit Agreement” below for more information). Our
primary cash needs are for funding normal working capital requirements, the operation of our existing boutiques and ecommerce business, the
implementation of our turnaround plan, and payments of interest and principal, if any, under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit
Agreement. We may use cash or our Amended ABL Credit Facility to issue letters of credit to support merchandise imports or for other corporate purposes.
The most significant components of our working capital are cash and cash equivalents, merchandise inventories, accounts payable and other current
liabilities. Our working capital position benefits from the fact that we generally collect cash from sales to customers the day of or, in the case of credit or
debit card transactions, within several days of the related sales and we typically have up to 45 days to pay our inventory vendors and up to 60 days to pay
our other vendors.

On February 1, 2020, we had $17.8 million of cash and cash equivalents, $10.0 million of combined borrowings outstanding, and $17.2 million of
combined borrowing base availability under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement.

As discussed in the “Overview” section above, our liquidity has been adversely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Subsequent to February 1, 2020, we
borrowed $5.0 million under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement. We have also filed an income tax refund for $10.7 million with the IRS related to the
provision under the Corona Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) enacted in March 2020 that allows the carryback of net operating
losses to prior years. We are electing to take other available relief under the CARES Act including deferral of payment of certain payroll taxes and
employee retention tax credits. We continue to evaluate the provisions of the CARES Act and the ways in which it could assist our business.

The inclusion of a going concern qualification in the report of our independent registered public accountant on our financial statements for the fiscal year
ended February 1, 2020 has resulted in violation of certain covenants under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement. On
May 1, 2020, we entered into a letter agreement (the “JPM Letter Agreement™”) in connection with our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and a letter
agreement (the “Tiger Letter Agreement”) in connection with our Term Loan Credit Agreement, in each case, to obtain a waiver from our lenders of any
default or event of default arising from our failure to (i) deliver annual audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2020
without a “going concern” or a like qualification or exception and (ii) pay rent on leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020. The JPM
Letter Agreement and Tiger Letter Agreement contain certain conditions and covenants, including that, in the case of the JPM Letter Agreement, we are
required to use the entire $10.7 million income tax refund requested under the CARES Act to repay certain outstanding borrowings under the Amended
ABL Credit Agreement and providing that no loans will be made under the ABL Credit Agreement unless our aggregate amount of cash and cash
equivalents is less than $3.0 million. See Item 9B of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information. If we are unable to meet our financial
covenants or if we have an event of default under either agreement, including if we are unable or elect not to pay rent on our leased locations beginning in
July 2020 and do not otherwise obtain a waiver from our lenders, our lenders could instruct the administrative agent under such credit facilities to exercise
available remedies including, declaring the principal of and accrued interest on all outstanding indebtedness due and payable immediately and terminating
all remaining commitments and obligations under the credit facilities. Although the lenders under our credit facilities may waive the defaults or forebear
the exercise of remedies, they are not obligated to do so. Failure to obtain such a waiver would have a material adverse effect on the liquidity, financial
condition and results of operations and may result in filing a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in order to
implement a restructuring plan. See “Our liquidity has been adversely impacted by our negative operating results and the COVID-19 pandemic and there is
no assurance that we will have sufficient liquidity to continue operations” in Item 1A. Risk Factors for more information.

Cash Flow

A summary of our operating, investing and financing activities are shown in the following table.

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
2020 2019 2018
(in thousands)
Provided by operating activities $ 2,824 $ 9,533 $ 24,825
Used in investing activities (3,609) (26,199) (26,778)
(Used in) provided by in financing activities (1,479) 5,438 (19,918)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ (2,264) $ (11,228) $ (21,871)

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities consists primarily of net loss or income, adjusted for non-cash items (including depreciation and amortization,
asset impairment charges, stock-based compensation and deferred taxes) and the effect of working capital changes.

Cash provided by operating activities decreased $6.7 million in fiscal year 2019 compared to fiscal year 2018 primarily due to an increase in inventory
purchases and associated payments as well as a decrease in net (loss) or income, after adjusting for non-cash items other than non-cash amortization of
operating lease right-of-use asset. These changes were partially offset by an aggregate of $9.8 million income tax refunds received during fiscal year 2019.

Cash provided by operating activities decreased $15.3 million in fiscal year 2018 compared to fiscal year 2017 primarily due to a decrease in net income to

a net loss as well as lower tenant allowances received from landlords partially offset by lower income tax payments and timing of payments for inventory
purchases.
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Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities consist primarily of capital expenditures for new boutiques, remodels, improvements to existing boutiques as well as
investment in information technology and our distribution facility.

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
2020 2019 2018

(in thousands)
Capital expenditures for:

Remodels 1,575 10,537 2,189
Existing boutiques 1,002 3,869 3,125
New boutiques $ 678 $ 8,357 $ 19,280
Technology 264 2,535 1,826
Corporate and distribution 90 901 358

$ 3,609 $ 26,199 $ 26,778

Our total capital expenditures for fiscal years 2019, 2018 and 2017 were $3.6 million, $26.2 million and $26.8 million, respectively. A majority of our
spending in fiscal year 2019 was associated with the payment of prior year accrued construction costs from boutique remodels. In fiscal year 2018, we
started a boutique refresh program resulting in a significant portion of our capital expenditures to be spent on boutique remodels at $10.5 million, and, for
fiscal year 2017, our capital spending were mostly associated with new boutique openings at $19.3 million. The remaining capital expenditures in each of
fiscal years 2019, 2018 and 2017 were used for investments in existing boutique relocations, information technology, our corporate offices and distribution
facility enhancements, and in fiscal years 2019 and 2018, investments in new boutique.

As previously disclosed, we have substantially decreased, and expect to continue to substantially decrease, our investments in new boutiques, remodels,
and relocations in fiscal year 2020 until the desired results of our turnaround plan are achieved.

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
2020 2019 2018
(in thousands, except boutique count)
New boutiques:
Number of new boutiques opened 5 32 60
Average cost per new boutique $ 411 % 320 $ 293
Average tenant allowance per new boutique $ - % 44 3 57
Tenant allowance collected $ 1,577 % 3,400 $ 3,100
Remodels:
Number of boutiques remodeled - 81 17
Average cost per remodeled boutique $ - % 149 $ 129

The increase in the average cost of new boutiques during fiscal year 2019 compared to fiscal year 2018 was due to costs associated with bringing one new
boutique in compliance with certain requirements while the increase in boutique build-out costs in fiscal 2018 compared to fiscal year 2017 was due to
opening larger boutiques, particularly in outlet locations. The average size of boutiques opened in fiscal years 2019, 2018, and 2017 were 1,640 square feet
2,033 square feet and 1,714 square feet, respectively. The decrease in average tenant allowance in each year was principally due to our continued focus in
lowering rental rates. Tenant allowances are recognized as a reduction in the operating lease right-of-use assets and reduces our single lease expense over
the term of the lease. The average collection period for these allowances is approximately six months after boutique opening. We funded the cost of new
boutiques and remodels with cash flow from operations, tenant allowances from our landlords, or borrowings under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement
and Term Loan Credit Agreement, as needed.

As discussed in the “Overview” section above, all capital expenditures in fiscal year 2020 are temporarily suspended. We expect to resume this spending
upon stabilization of our business and the general macro environment.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in or provided by financing activities consists principally of borrowings and payments under our credit facilities, if any, repurchases of
common stock as well as proceeds from the exercise of stock options and the related tax consequence.

Net cash used in financing activities in the fiscal year 2019 was $1.5 million, which consisted of $15.0 million of proceeds from borrowings under our
Amended ABL Credit Agreement and $10.0 million proceeds from the Term Loan Credit Agreement. The $10.0 million proceeds from the Term Loan
were used to pay the outstanding borrowings under the ABL Credit Agreement at February 2, 2019. In addition, we used our cash on hand to pay down the
remaining $15.0 million we borrowed under our Amended ABL Credit Agreement during the year. We also incurred $1.5 million of debt issuance costs
associated with our Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement.
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Net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal year 2018 was $5.4 million, which primarily consisted $10.0 million in borrowings under the ABL Credit
Agreement, partially offset by $4.0 million of repurchases of our common stock and a $0.5 million payment in debt issuance costs.

Net cash used in financing activities in fiscal year 2017 was $19.9 million, which mainly consisted of repurchases of our common stock.
Credit Facilities
Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility

On May 25, 2018, the Borrowers, entered into the ABL Credit Agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and the lenders party
thereto. The ABL Credit Agreement provided for Aggregate Revolving Commitments (as defined in the ABL Credit Agreement) of $50.0 million
(including up to $10.0 million for letters of credit) and was scheduled to mature on May 25, 2023.

On August 13, 2019, concurrent with entering into the Term Loan Credit Agreement (described below), the Borrowers, entered into the First Amendment
to ABL Credit Agreement. The First Amendment to ABL Credit Agreement, among other things, (i) reduced the Aggregate Revolving Commitment (as
defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement) from $50.0 million to $40.0 million; (ii) allowed the Loan Parties to enter into the Term Loan Credit
Agreement with Tiger Finance, LLC; (iii) changed the maturity date under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement from May 23, 2023 to the earlier of (a)
May 23, 2023 and (b) the date that is 90 days prior to any scheduled maturity of the Term Loan; (iv) institutes a combined borrowing base together with the
Company’s new Term Loan Credit Agreement (described below); (v) removed the requirement to maintain the minimum fixed charge coverage ratio
previously contained in the ABL Credit Agreement; and (vi) limits the amount of capital expenditures that the Loan Parties may make through the fiscal
year ending in 2021, provided that the Loan Parties may make unlimited amounts of capital expenditures if certain payment conditions are met. In
connection with the First Amendment to ABL Credit Agreement, we wrote-off $0.2 million of unamortized debt issuance costs associated with the
reduction in borrowing capacity during fiscal year 2019, which is included in other expense in the statements of operations. Additionally, we incurred $0.2
million of debt issuance costs during fiscal year 2019, which are being amortized over the remaining term of the Amended ABL Credit Agreement.

Availability under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement is subject to a customary borrowing base, as reasonably determined by the applicable agent,
comprised of: (a) a specified percentage of the Borrower’s credit card accounts (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement); and (b) a specified
percentage of the Borrower’s eligible inventory (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement), and reduced by (c) certain customary reserves

and adjustments (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement). The combined borrowing base is the lesser of (i) the sum of the (a) the Revolving
Loan Cap (as defined in the Amended ABL Agreement), which is the lesser of (x) $34.0 million and (y) the borrowing base under the Amended ABL
Credit Agreement, plus, (b) any outstanding amount under the Term Loan Credit Agreement and (ii) the Term Loan Credit Agreement borrowing base
(described below). In addition, on May 1, 2020, we entered the JPM Letter Agreement and Tiger Letter Agreement which contain certain conditions and
covenants and to provide that, in the case of the JPM Letter Agreement, (i) we are required to use the entire $10.7 million income tax refund requested
under the CARES Act to repay certain outstanding borrowings under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement and (ii) no loans will be made under the ABL
Credit Agreement unless our aggregate amount of cash and cash equivalents is less than $3.0 million. See Item 9B of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for
additional information.

All obligations of each Loan Party under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement continue to be unconditionally guaranteed by the Company and each of the
Company’s existing and future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries, including the Borrowers. All obligations under the Amended ABL
Credit Agreement, and the guarantees of those obligations (as well as banking services obligations and any interest rate hedging or other swap agreements),
are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company and each of the Company’s existing and future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic
subsidiaries. Additionally, the Amended ABL Credit Agreement contains customary events of default and requires the Loan Parties to comply with certain
financial covenants, including a restriction on the amount of capital expenditures that the Loan Parties may make through 2021, subject to certain
exceptions. In addition, the Company may declare or make dividend payments, subject to the satisfaction of the Payment Conditions (as defined in the
Amended ABL Credit Agreement). The Amended ABL Credit Agreement also requires that the auditor’s report on the Company’s audited financial
statements does not contain a “going concern” or like qualification or exception.

Borrowings under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement continue to bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus, at the option of the
Borrowers, either (a) in the case of base rate borrowings, a rate equal to the highest of (1) the prime rate of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., (2) the federal
funds rate plus 1/2 of 1.00%, and (3) LIBOR for an interest period of one month plus 1.00% (subject to a 0.0% LIBOR floor), provided that that the interest
rate for base rate borrowings (including the addition of the applicable margin) shall be no less than 1.50% per annum, or (b) in the case of LIBOR
borrowings, a rate equal to the LIBOR for the interest period relevant to such borrowing subject to a 0.00% floor. The applicable margin for borrowings
under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement ranges from -0.50% to 0.00% per annum with respect to base rate borrowings and from 1.25% to 1.75% per
annum with respect to LIBOR borrowings, in each case based upon the achievement of specified levels of the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (as defined in
the Amended ABL Credit Agreement). The Amended ABL Credit Agreement also requires the Borrowers to pay a commitment fee for the unused portion
of the revolving credit facility of 0.20% per annum.
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The Amended ABL Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative and negative covenants, including limitations, subject to customary exceptions, on
the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to (i) incur additional debt; (ii) create liens; (iii) make certain investments, acquisitions, loans and advances;
(iv) sell assets; (v) pay dividends or make distributions or make other restricted payments; (vi) prepay other indebtedness; (vii) engage in mergers or
consolidations; (viii) change the business conducted by the Company and its subsidiaries; (ix) engage in certain transactions with affiliates; (x) enter into
agreements that restrict dividends from subsidiaries or the ability of subsidiaries to grant liens upon their assets; and (xi) amend certain charter documents
and material agreements governing subordinated and junior indebtedness. The inclusion of a going concern qualification in the report of our independent
registered public accountant on our accompanying financial statements for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2020 and our actual or planned non-payment
of rent on our leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020 resulted in a violation of certain covenants under our Amended ABL Credit
Agreement. However, we were able to obtain a waiver of such violations from the lenders under such agreement. See Item 9B of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for additional information.

The Amended ABL Credit Agreement also contains customary events of default, including: (i) failure to pay principal, interest, fees or other amounts under
the Amended ABL Credit Agreement when due taking into account any applicable grace period; (ii) any representation or warranty proving to have been
materially incorrect when made or deemed made; (iii) a cross default with respect to other material indebtedness; (iv) bankruptcy and insolvency events;

(v) unsatisfied material final judgments; (vi) a “change of control”; (vii) certain defaults under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974;
(viii) the invalidity or impairment of any loan document or any security interest; and (ix) breach of covenants in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement and
other loan documents.

On February 1, 2020, we had no borrowings outstanding under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement and had $17.2 million of combined borrowing base
availability under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term Loan Credit Agreement. See the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section above for a
discussion of our borrowings and covenant compliance subsequent to February 1, 2020, as our liquidity has been materially adversely impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Term Loan Credit Agreement

On August 13, 2019, the Loan Parties, entered into the Term Loan Credit Agreement with Tiger Finance, LLC, as administrative agent and the lenders
party thereto. The Term Loan Credit Agreement provides for an aggregate term loan of $10.0 million and matures on August 13, 2022. Although the
maturity of the Term Loan Credit Agreement is beyond 12 months from the balance sheet, we classified the outstanding amount as current liability in the
consolidated balance sheet as of February 1, 2020 due to uncertainties concerning the Company’s future liquidity and on-going covenant compliance as a
result of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s business. See “Recent Developments™ section above for additional information.

The Term Loan Credit Agreement is subject to a combined borrowing base together with the Company’s existing asset based revolving credit facility under
the Amended ABL Credit Agreement. This borrowing base is comprised of: (a) a specified percentage of the Borrower’s credit card accounts (as defined in
the Term Loan Credit Agreement); and (b) a specified percentage of the Borrower’s eligible inventory (as defined in the Term Loan Credit Agreement), and
reduced by (c) certain customary reserves and adjustments (as defined in the Term Loan Credit Agreement).

All obligations of each Loan Party under the Term Loan Credit Agreement are unconditionally guaranteed by the Company and each of the Company’s
existing and future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries, including the Borrowers. All obligations under the Term Loan Credit
Agreement, and the guarantees of those obligations, are secured on a junior lien basis by substantially all of the assets of the Company and each of the
Company’s existing and future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries.

Borrowings under the Term Loan Credit Agreement bears interest at a rate equal to LIBOR for the interest period relevant to the Term Loan, subject to a
0.00% floor, plus 8.00%, provided that the interest rate on the Term Loan will not be less than 10.00%. The Term Loan Credit Agreement also requires the
Borrowers to pay an annual agency fee of $50,000. In fiscal year 2019, the average effective interest rate for the Term Loan was 10.0%.

The Term Loan Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative and negative covenants, including limitations, subject to customary exceptions, on the
ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to (i) incur additional debt; (ii) create liens; (iii) make certain investments, acquisitions, loans and advances; (iv)
sell assets; (v) pay dividends or make distributions or make other restricted payments; (vi) prepay other indebtedness; (vii) engage in mergers or
consolidations; (viii) change the business conducted by the Company and its subsidiaries; (ix) engage in certain transactions with affiliates; (x) enter into
agreements that restrict dividends from subsidiaries or the ability of subsidiaries to grant lines upon their assets; and (xi) amend certain charter documents
and material agreements governing subordinated and junior indebtedness. The inclusion of a going concern qualification in the report of our independent
registered public accountant on our accompanying financial statements for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2020 and our actual or planned non-payment
of rent on our leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020 resulted in a violation of certain covenants under our Amended ABL Credit
Agreement. However, we were able to obtain a waiver of such violations from the lenders under such agreement. See Item 9B of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for additional information.

In addition, the Term Loan Credit Agreement limits the amount of capital expenditures that the Loan Parties may make through the fiscal year ending in
2021, provided that the Loan Parties may make unlimited amounts of capital expenditures if certain payment conditions are met.

On February 1, 2020, we had $10.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the Term Loan Credit Agreement and had a combined borrowing base
availability of $17.2 million under the Term Loan Credit Agreement and Amended ABL Credit Agreement. See the “Liquidity and Capital Resources”
section above for a discussion of our borrowings and covenant compliance subsequent to February 1, 2020, as our liquidity has been materially adversely
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Share Repurchase Program

For information regarding our share repurchase program, please refer to Note 8, Stockholders’ Equity, to our audited consolidated financial statements
included in “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in Item 8 of this Annual Report, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires estimates
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of our assets, liabilities, net sales and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
Management bases estimates on historical experience and other assumptions it believes to be reasonable given the circumstances and evaluates these
estimates on an ongoing basis. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe that the following critical accounting policies involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity. See Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, to our audited consolidated financial statements which are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a complete
discussion of our significant accounting policies. The following reflect the significant estimates and judgments used in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements.

Leases

On February 3, 2019, we adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 842, “Leases”, using the additional, optional transition
method which allows entities to initially apply the new standard by recognizing a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
at the date of adoption. Prior period amounts and disclosures were not adjusted and continue to be reported under ASC 840, “Leases.” As a result of the
adoption, we recorded an operating lease liability of $278.9 million and operating lease right-of-use (“ROU”) asset of $242.9 million at February 3, 2019.
Additionally, we recognized $1.8 million cumulative-effect adjustment to the beginning balance of retained earnings related to the impairment of certain
ROU assets subjected to impairment testing under existing accounting guidance for which indicators of impairment existed at the time of the adoption of
ASC 842. The adoption of ASC 842 did not have a material impact to the consolidated statements of operations or cash flows. See Note 1, Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies, to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional
information.

We lease our boutiques, distribution center and office space, and certain boutique and corporate office equipment under operating leases. In accordance
with ASC 842, we determine if an arrangement is a lease at inception and recognize operating lease ROU assets and operating lease liabilities at
commencement date based on the net present value of the fixed lease payments over the lease term and, for operating lease ROU assets, include initial
direct costs and exclude lease incentives. Variable lease payments are expensed as incurred. Lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the
lease when it is reasonably certain that we will elect that option. Subsequent to the recognition of its operating lease ROU assets and operating lease
liabilities, we recognize lease expense related to its operating lease payments on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating lease liabilities are calculated using the effective interest method and recognized at the commencement date based on the present value of lease
payments over the reasonably certain lease term. As our leases generally do not provide an implicit rate, we use a collateralized incremental borrowing rate
to determine the present value of lease payments. The collateralized incremental borrowing rate is based on a synthetic credit rating that is externally
prepared at each measurement.

The Company accounts for lease and non-lease components as a single component. Accordingly, the Company’s fixed lease payments mainly consists of
base rent, common area maintenance and landlord advertising. Additionally, the Company also elected the short-term lease recognition exemption for all
leases.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when control of the merchandise is transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration received in exchange for
such merchandise. For boutique sales, control is transferred at the point at which the customer receives and pays for the merchandise at the register. For
ecommerce sales, control is transferred when merchandise is tendered to a third party carrier for delivery to the customer. The consideration received is the
stated price of the merchandise, net of any discount, sales tax collected and estimated sales returns, and, in the case of ecommerce sales, includes shipping
revenue. Cash is typically received on the day of or, in the case of credit or debit card transactions, within several days of the related sales. Management
estimates future returns on previously sold merchandise based on return history and current sales levels. Estimated returns are periodically compared to
actual sales returns and adjusted, if appropriate. We do not believe that there is a reasonable likelihood that there will be material changes in future
estimates or assumptions we use to calculate our merchandise return reserve; however, if the actual rate of merchandise returns increases significantly, our
operating results may be adversely affected. The provision for estimated returns is included in accrued liabilities while the associated cost of merchandise is
included as part of prepaid and other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets.
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Inventory Valuation

We value merchandise inventory at the lower of cost and net realizable value on a weighted average cost basis. Inventory costs include cost of merchandise
and freight costs. We record merchandise receipts at the time they are delivered to our distribution center or to our boutiques directly from vendors.

We regularly review our inventory levels to identify slow-moving merchandise. In order to clear slow-moving merchandise, we use promotional
markdowns or mark certain items out-of-stock and dispose of such inventory at a pace suitable for our merchandising strategy. Each period, we evaluate
recent selling trends and the related promotional events or pricing strategies in place to sell through the current inventory levels. Promotional markdowns,
additions to the lower of cost and net realizable value (“LNRV™) reserve or inventory disposal may occur when inventory exceeds our expected customer
demand for reasons of style, seasonal adaptation, changes in customer preference, lack of consumer acceptance of fashion items, competition or if it is
determined that the inventory in stock will not sell at its currently ticketed price. Such markdowns or disposals may have an adverse impact on earnings,
depending on the extent and amount of inventory affected. In addition, the anticipated deployment of new merchandise is reflected within the estimated
future promotional markdown plan as such new inventory, in certain circumstances, will displace merchandise currently on-hand.

We also estimate an inventory shrinkage reserve for the period of time between the last physical inventory count and the balance sheet date. The estimate
for shrinkage reserve can be affected by changes in merchandise mix and changes in actual shrinkage trends.

Changes to the aged clearance reserve, LNRV reserve and shrinkage reserves are included in cost of goods sold and occupancy costs in the consolidated
statements of operations.

If there are material changes in the estimates or assumptions we use to calculate our LNRV or shrinkage reserves, our operating results could be affected.
Impairment of Long-lived Assets

We evaluate long-lived assets held for use, including operating lease ROU assets, and held for sale whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level for which there are
identifiable cash flows, which is generally at a boutique level. In determining whether an impairment has occurred, we consider both qualitative and
quantitative factors.

The quantitative analysis involves estimating the undiscounted future cash flows directly related to that asset and comparing it against its carrying value. If
the carrying value of the asset is greater than the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference between
the carrying value of the asset and its fair value. The fair value of the asset group is generally determined using discounted future cash flows or a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits using the asset in its highest and best use, whichever is appropriate. The determination of fair value takes
into account the asset’s historical performance, current sales trends, market conditions, market participant pricing assumptions considering the highest and
best use of the asset and other relevant factors deemed material, and discounted using a rate commensurate with the risk. The inputs used in the
determination of the fair value are considered as Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy, which require a significant degree of judgment and are based on
our own assumptions.

Based on the results of our assessments, we recorded non-cash asset impairment charges of $11.9 million, $20.1 million and $0.3 million in fiscal years
2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The impairment charges for fiscal year 2019 were mostly related to the write down of operating lease ROU assets for 60
underperforming boutiques. The impairment charges for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 were mostly related to the write-down of property and equipment for
153 and 3 underperforming boutiques, respectively, for which the remaining net book value of their respective assets are no longer expected to be
recoverable. In addition, for fiscal year 2018, the asset impairment charges included a $4.9 million write-off of boutique furniture, fixtures and supplies that
were no longer intended to be used as a result of postponing new boutique openings and remodels in future periods.
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Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the liability method. Under this method, the amount of taxes currently payable or refundable is accrued, and deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences of temporary differences that currently exist between the tax basis and the
financial reporting basis of the company’s assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are established against deferred tax assets when it is more-likely-than-
not that the realization of those deferred tax assets will not occur.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates in effect in the years when those temporary differences are expected to reverse.
The effect on deferred taxes from a change in tax rate is recognized through continuing operations in the period that includes the enactment date of the
change. Changes in tax laws and rates could affect recorded deferred tax assets and liabilities in the future.

On December 22, 2017, the Tax Act was enacted into law effective on January 1, 2018. Upon enactment, we recognized a provisional and one-time non-
cash deferred tax expense of $3.3 million due to the remeasurement of our deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the reduction of the statutory federal
tax rate to 21%. This expense is included as a component of income tax expense for fiscal year 2017. During fiscal year 2018, we completed the analysis of
the impact of the Tax Act and determined that no material adjustments was needed to the previously recorded provisional amount.

We perform an assessment of whether a valuation allowance is necessary against its deferred tax asset at each balance sheet date. Based on available
positive and negative evidence, including past operating results, estimates of future income, future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and
tax planning strategies, the Company determined that it is not more-likely-than-not that it will realize its deferred tax assets in future periods and therefore,
a valuation allowance is provided for against the net deferred tax assets as of February 2, 2019. We recorded an additional valuation allowance on our
deferred tax asset of $7.5 million during fiscal year 2019. We will continue to weigh all available positive and negative evidence in future periods and, in
the event that facts and circumstances change, we may reverse the valuation allowance in future periods which would increase our reported net income in
the relevant period.

A tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized when it is more-likely-than-not that the position will be sustained upon examination,
including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits. Income tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold to be recognized.

We recognize tax liabilities for uncertain tax positions and adjust these liabilities when the Company’s judgment changes as a result of the evaluation of
new information not previously available. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are recognized in income tax expense. There were no
uncertain tax positions requiring accrual at February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019.

Stock-based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is measured based on the grant date fair value and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period (which generally is
the vesting period of the award). Beginning in fiscal year 2017, forfeitures were recognized as they occur rather than estimating expected forfeitures. We
recognized stock-based compensation amounting to $0.3 million, $1.3 million and $2.4 million in fiscal years 2019, 2018, and 2017, respectively.
Previously accrued stock-based compensation totaling $1.2 million and $0.8 million were reversed during fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respectively, in
connection with certain employee departures, including the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Merchandising Officer, Chief Marketing Officer and certain
other members of senior management in fiscal year 2019 and the Chief Executive Officer in fiscal year 2018.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units
The fair value of restricted stocks awards and restricted stock units are determined based on the closing price of our common stock on the award date. For
restricted stock awards and restricted stock units subject to performance conditions, compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service period
when it is probable that the specified performance goals will be achieved. We assess the probability of vesting at each reporting period and adjust stock-
based compensation based on the results of such assessment. As a result of this assessment, we recognized a reversal of previously accrued expenses
totaling $0.3 million, $0.9 million and $1.2 million in fiscal years 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Changes in these inputs and assumptions can materially affect the measurement of the estimated fair value of our stock-based compensation.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We are not party to any off balance sheet arrangements.
Impact of Inflation
Our results of operations and financial condition are presented based on historical cost. While it is difficult to accurately measure the impact of inflation
due to the imprecise nature of the estimates required, we believe the effects of inflation, if any, on our results of operations and financial condition have
been immaterial. We cannot assure you, however, that our results of operations and financial condition will not be materially impacted by inflation in the
future.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
For a description of recent accounting pronouncements, please refer to Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to our audited consolidated
financial statements included in “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in Item 8 of this Annual Report, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and are not
required to provide the information under this item.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation and subsidiaries(the Company) as of February 1,
2020 and February 2, 2019, the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended February 1, 2020, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “(consolidated) financial statements”). In our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at February 1, 2020 and February 2,
2019,and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 1, 2020, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

The Company's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in
Note 1 to the financial statements, COVID-19 pandemic has caused a material adverse effect on the Company’s sales, results of operations, and cash flows,
and the Company has stated that substantial doubt exists about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management's evaluation of the events and
conditions and management’s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 1. The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective February 3, 2019, the Company changed its method for accounting for leases
using the modified retrospective adoption method under Accounting Standards Codification, 842 Lease Accounting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2010.

Houston, Texas

May 1, 2020
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Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share data)

February 1, February 2,
2020 2019
ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,839 $ 20,103

Accounts receivable 3,743 16,309

Inventories 31,636 30,478

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 12,325 10,357
Total current assets 65,543 77,247
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net 208,503 -
Property and equipment, net 51,469 71,207
Other assets, net 3,093 4,588
TOTAL ASSETS $ 328,608 $ 153,042

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 10,823 $ 24,330

Accrued liabilities 12,410 11,333

Current portion of long-term debt, net 8,936 -

Operating lease liabilities 48,691 -
Total current liabilities 80,860 35,663
Operating lease liabilities 200,938 -
Landlord incentives and deferred rent - 33,989
Long term debt, net - 10,000
Other liabilities 284 -
Total liabilities 282,082 79,652
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock-$.01 par value, 80.0 million shares authorized, 4.0 million and 3.9 million shares issued as of

February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, respectively* 40 39

Additional paid-in capital* 113,101 113,121

Retained earnings 93,406 120,251

Treasury stock, at cost — 0.9 million shares held at each February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019* (160,021) (160,021)
Total stockholders’ equity 46,526 73,390
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 328,608 $ 153,042

* Reflects the 12-to-1 reverse stock split that became effective on July 1, 2019. Refer to Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further
information.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Net sales

Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs
Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Asset impairment charges

(Loss) income from operations

Interest expense

Other income

(Loss) income before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Net (loss) income

Basic (loss) earnings per common share*
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share*

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic shares*
Diluted shares*

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
2020 2019 2018
$ 407,536 $ 428,115 471,678
258,000 265,119 264,915
149,536 162,996 206,763
161,689 176,379 176,543
11,860 20,122 258
(24,013) (33,505) 29,962
1,204 426 452
(322) (483) (346)
(24,895) (33,448) 29,856
125 7,493 14,295
$ (25,020) $ (40,941) 15,561
$ 8.63) $ (14.12) 5.16
$ (8.63) $ (14.12) 5.14
2,899 2,900 3,014
2,899 2,900 3,025

* Reflects the 12-to-1 reverse stock split that became effective on July 1, 2019. Refer to Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further

information.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

(In thousands)
Common Stock* Additional Treasury Total
Shares Par Paid-In Retained Stock, Stockholders’
Outstanding Value Capital* Earnings at cost Equity
Balance, January 28, 2017 3,128 $ 38 $ 109,431 $ 143,557 $(136,491) $ 116,535
Cumulative effect adjustment on adoption of new accounting
standards - - 120 (73) - 47
Net income - - - 15,561 - 15,561
Stock-based compensation - - 2,430 - - 2,430
Restricted stocks issued, net of forfeitures 17 1 (@) - - -
Stock options exercised 2 - 96 - - 96
Shares withheld related to net settlement of equity awards () (213) (213)
Repurchases of common stock (155) - - - (20,008) (20,008)
Balance, February 3, 2018 2,990 $ 39 $ 111,863 $ 159,045 $(156,499) $ 114,448
Cumulative effect adjustment on adoption of new accounting
standards - - - 2,147 - 2,147
Net loss - - - (40,941) - (40,941)
Stock-based compensation - - 1,335 - - 1,335
Restricted stocks issued, net of forfeitures 38 - - - - -
Shares withheld related to net settlement of equity awards (@8] - (77) - - (77)
Repurchases of common stock (55) - - - (3,522) (3,522)
Balance, February 2, 2019 2972 % 39 $ 113,121 $ 120,251 $(160,021) $ 73,390
Cumulative effect adjustment on adoption of new accounting
standards - - - (1,825) - (1,825)
Net loss - - - (25,020) - (25,020)
Stock-based compensation - - (15) - - (15)
Restricted stocks issued, net of forfeitures 65 1 1) - - -
Fractional shares cancelled (1) - 4) - - 4)
Repurchases of common stock - - - -
Balance, February 1, 2020 3,036 40 113,101 93,406  (160,021) 46,526

* Reflects the 12-to-1 reverse stock split that became effective on July 1, 2019. Refer to Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further
information.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash flows

(In thousands)
Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
2020 2019 2018
Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities:
Net (loss) income $ (25,020) $ (40,941) $ 15,561
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 21,450 24,532 21,202
Asset impairment charges 11,860 20,122 258
Non-cash lease expense 46,353 - -
Stock-based compensation expense 269 1,335 2,430
Loss on disposal of assets 135 761 733
Amortization of debt issuance costs 286 204 250
Deferred income taxes - 8,706 6,099
Other 160 - -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 10,644 246 (10,764)
Inventories (1,159) (3,699) (2,858)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (1,831) (2,566) (3,177)
Accounts payable (11,611) 5,739 6,013
Accrued liabilities 1,077 (558) (11,167)
Operating lease liabilities (49,789) - -
Landlord incentives and deferred rent - (4,348) 245
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,824 9,533 24,825
Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities:

Purchase of property and equipment (3,609) (26,199) (26,778)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,609) (26,199) (26,778)
Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities:

Proceeds from borrowings under the asset based revolving credit facility 15,000 10,000 -

Proceeds from borrowings under the term loan 10,000 - -

Repayments of borrowings under the asset based revolving credit facility (25,000) - -

Payment of debt issuance costs (1,479) (505) -

Repurchases of common stock - (3,980) (19,860)

Taxes paid related to net settlement of equity awards - (77) (154)

Proceeds from the exercise of stock options - - 96
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (1,479) 5,438 (19,918)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,264) (11,228) (21,871)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 20,103 31,331 53,202
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 17,839 $ 20,103 $ 31,331
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:

Cash (received) paid for income taxes $ 9,779) $ 75 $ 24,163

Interest paid $ 646 $ 209 $ 192

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Business

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (the “Company” or “Holdings”) is a holding company incorporated in 2007 under the laws of Delaware. The Company’s
business operations are conducted through its subsidiaries. The Company operates a nationwide-chain of boutiques providing customers a unique, fun and
differentiated shopping experience. The Company offers a diverse and balanced mix of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts at attractive values. At
February 1, 2020, the Company operated 711 boutiques, which are located in 47 states throughout the United States and the District of Columbia, and its
ecommerce website.

On July 1, 2019, the Company effected a 12-to-1 stock split (the “Reverse Stock Split”), reducing the number of shares of common stock outstanding on
that date from 35.4 million (which excludes 1.4 million of restricted stock awards granted to members of the Company’s Board of Directors prior to the
Reverse Stock Split but issued after the Reverse Stock Split) to 3.1 million shares. Additionally, the number of shares of common stock subject to
outstanding stock options, restricted stock awards and restricted stock units, the exercise price of outstanding stock options, and the number of shares
reserved for future issuance pursuant to the Company’s equity compensation plans were adjusted proportionately in connection with the Reverse Stock
Split. The number of authorized shares of common stock under the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and the par value per
share of the Company’s common stock were unchanged. All historical share and per share amounts presented herein have been adjusted retrospectively to
reflect these changes.

Going Concern

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a pandemic. In recent months, the outbreak has spread globally and has led
governments and other authorities around the world, including federal, state and local authorities in the United States, to impose measures intended to
reduce its spread, including restrictions on freedom of movement and business operations such as travel bans, border closings, business limitations and
closures (subject to exceptions for essential operations and businesses), quarantines and shelter-in-place orders. These measures may remain in place for a
significant amount of time and has resulted in the temporary closures of all of the Company’s boutiques from March 25, 2020 to April 30, 2020, when we
began reopening a small number of our boutiques in locations where local shutdown orders have been lifted. These measures have also caused an overall
disruption in the Company’s supply chain and operations; while its ecommerce and distribution center remain open, they are operating at a reduced
capacity. As a result, the Company’s revenues, results of operations and cash flows have been materially adversely impacted which raises substantial doubt
about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In response to such events, management is taking aggressive and prudent actions to reduce expenses and defer payment of accounts payables and inventory
purchases to preserve cash on hand. These actions include, but are not limited to, furloughing substantially all of the Company’s corporate and boutique
employees (for the duration of boutique closures at their location and subject to reduced staffing for a phase-in period upon reopening), base salary
reduction for the Company’s senior leadership team, deferring payment of rent at the Company’s boutiques, corporate headquarters and distribution facility,
beginning in April 2020 subject to discussion with its landlords and other vendors, limiting investments in its ecommerce to necessary website and
supporting functions, and suspending all capital expenditures. Additionally, the Company borrowed $5.0 million under its Amended ABL Credit Facility in
April 2020. The Company has also filed an income tax refund for $10.7 million with the IRS related to the provision under the Corona Aid, Relief and
Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) enacted in March 2020 that allows the carryback of net operating losses to prior years. The Company is electing to
take other available relief under the CARES Act including deferral of payment of certain payroll taxes and employee retention tax credits. The Company
continues to evaluate the provisions of the CARES Act and the ways in which it could assist the Company’s business or improve the Company’s liquidity.

The inclusion of a going concern qualification in the report of the Company’s independent registered public accountant on its accompanying financial
statements for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2020 has resulted in a violation of certain covenants under its Amended ABL Credit Agreement and Term
Loan Credit Agreement (each as defined below). On May 1, 2020, the Company entered into a letter agreement (the “JPM Letter Agreement”) in
connection with its Amended ABL Credit Agreement and a letter agreement (the “Tiger Letter Agreement”) in connection with its Term Loan Credit
Agreement, in each case, to obtain a waiver from its lenders of any default or event of default arising from its failure to (i) deliver annual audited
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2020 without a “going concern” or a like qualification or exception and (ii) pay rent
on leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020. The JPM Letter Agreement and Tiger Letter Agreement contain certain conditions and
covenants, including that, in the case of the JPM Letter Agreement, the Company is required to use the entire $10.7 million income tax refund requested
under the CARES Act to repay certain outstanding borrowings under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement and providing that no loans will be made under
the ABL Credit Agreement unless the Company’s aggregate amount of cash and cash equivalents is less than $3.0 million. See Note 15, Subsequent
Events, for additional information. If the Company is unable to meet its financial covenants or if there is an event of default under either agreement,
including if it is unable or elects not to pay rent on its leased locations beginning in July 2020 and does not otherwise obtain a waiver from its lenders, the
Company’s lenders could instruct the administrative agent under such credit facilities to exercise available remedies including, declaring the principal of
and accrued interest on all outstanding indebtedness due and payable immediately and terminating all remaining commitments and obligations under the
credit facilities. Although the lenders under the Company’s credit facilities may waive the defaults or forebear the exercise of remedies, they are not
obligated to do so. Failure to obtain such a waiver would have a material adverse effect on the liquidity, financial condition and results of operations and
may result in filing a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in order to implement a restructuring plan.

The Company could experience other potential impacts as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, including, but not limited to, charges from potential
adjustments to the carrying amount of its inventory and long-lived asset impairment charges. Actual results may differ materially from the Company’s
current estimates as the scope of the COVID-19 pandemic evolves, depending largely, though not exclusively, on the duration of the disruption to its
business.

The Company’s consolidated financial statement as of February 1, 2020 were prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of
assets and the settlement of liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business.
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Fiscal Year

The Company maintains its accounts on a 52- to 53- week year ending on the Saturday closest to January 31. All references herein to fiscal year “2019”
represents the 52-week period ended February 1, 2020, fiscal year “2018” represents the 52-week period ended February 2, 2019 and fiscal year and
“2017” represents the 53-week period ended February 3, 2018.

Principles of Consolidation and Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all its subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Management Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, net of estimated sales return, and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified using the following hierarchy, which is based upon the transparency of
inputs to the valuation at the measurement date.

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs based on the Company’s own assumptions.

The classification of fair value measurements within the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the measurement.

Financial assets and liabilities with carrying amounts approximating fair value include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
and accrued liabilities. The carrying amount of these financial assets and liabilities approximates fair value because of their short maturities. The carrying
amount of the Company’s debt approximates its fair value due to the proximity of the debt issue date and the balance sheet date and the variable component
of interest on debt.

Non-financial assets and liabilities, including long-lived assets, are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. The fair value of those assets is
determined using Level 3 inputs which generally requires the Company to make estimates of future cash flows based on historical experience, current
trends, market conditions, market participant pricing assumptions considering the highest and best use of the asset and other relevant factors deemed
material.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all interest-bearing deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
The Company maintains cash balances at financial institutions that may from time to time exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s insurance
limits. The Company mitigates this concentration of credit risk by monitoring the credit worthiness of the financial institutions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from credit card companies and income tax receivable, if any. The Company’s management has reviewed
accounts receivable for collectability and has determined that an allowance for doubtful accounts is not necessary at February 1, 2020 and February 2,
2019.

Inventory

The Company values merchandise inventory at the lower of cost and net realizable value on a weighted-average cost basis. Inventory costs include freight

costs. The Company records merchandise receipts at the time they are delivered to the distribution center or to its boutiques directly from vendors.
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The Company reviews its inventory levels to identify slow-moving merchandise. In order to clear slow-moving merchandise, the Company uses
promotional markdowns or marks certain items out-of-stock and disposes of such inventory at a pace suitable for its merchandising strategy. The Company
continually evaluates recent selling trends and the related promotional events or pricing strategies in place to sell through the current inventory levels.

The Company also estimates a shrinkage reserve for the period of time between the last physical count and the balance sheet date. The estimate for
shrinkage reserve can be affected by changes in merchandise mix and changes in actual shrinkage trends.

Changes to the lower of cost and net realizable value and shrinkage reserves are included in costs of goods sold and occupancy costs in the consolidated
statements of operations.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation of property and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis for financial reporting purposes using
the following useful lives:

Assets Estimated Useful Lives
Equipment 3 -5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Software, including software developed for internal use 3 -9 years
Signage and leasehold improvements the lesser of 5 - 10 years or lease term

Assets under construction are not depreciated until the asset is placed in service or ready for use.

When a decision is made to dispose of property and equipment prior to the end of its previously estimated useful life, the Company accelerates depreciation
to reflect the use of the asset over the shortened estimated useful life. Maintenance and repairs of property and equipment are expensed as incurred, and
major improvements are capitalized. Upon retirement, sale or other disposition of property and equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the accounts, and any gain or loss is reflected in current earnings.

Leases
Adoption of Accounting Standards Codification 842

On February 3, 2019, the Company adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 842, “Leases,” and its amendments. In adopting
the standard, the Company used the additional, optional transition method which allows entities to initially apply the new standard by recognizing a
cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at the date of adoption. ASC 842 establishes comprehensive accounting and
financial reporting requirements for leasing arrangements, supersedes the existing requirements in ASC 840, “Leases”, and requires lessees to recognize
substantially all lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet. Prior period amounts and disclosures were not adjusted and continue to be reported
under ASC 840.

In applying the new standard, the Company elected the package of practical expedients which allows the Company to carry forward its prior conclusions
under ASC 840 about lease identification, lease classification, and initial direct costs. The Company also elected the practical expedient of combining lease
and non-lease components as a single lease component as well as the short-term lease recognition exemption for all leases at transition.

As a result of the adoption, the Company recorded an operating lease liability of $278.9 million and operating lease right-of-use (“ROU”) asset of $242.9
million at February 3, 2019. Additionally, the Company recognized a $1.8 million cumulative-effect adjustment to the beginning balance of retained
earnings related to the impairment of certain operating lease ROU assets subjected to impairment testing under existing accounting guidance for which
indicators of impairment existed at the time of the adoption of ASC 842. The adoption of ASC 842 did not have a material impact to the consolidated
statements of operations or cash flows.

Accounting Policy Under ASC 842

The Company leases boutiques, its distribution center and office space and certain boutique and corporate office equipment under operating leases. The
Company determines if an arrangement contains a lease at inception and recognizes operating lease ROU assets and operating lease liabilities at the
commencement date based on the present value of the fixed lease payments over the lease term and, for operating lease ROU assets, include initial direct
costs and exclude lease incentives. Variable lease payments are expensed as incurred. Lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease
when it is reasonably certain that the Company will elect that option. Subsequent to the recognition of its operating lease ROU assets and operating lease
liabilities, the Company recognizes lease expense related to its operating lease payments on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Operating lease liabilities are calculated using the effective interest method and recognized at the commencement date based on the present value of lease
payments over the reasonably certain lease term. As the interest rate implicit in the Company’s leases is not readily determinable, the Company utilized a
collateralized incremental borrowing rate determined through the development of a synthetic credit rating to calculate the present value of its lease
payments.

The Company accounts for lease and non-lease components as a single component. Accordingly, the Company’s fixed lease payments mainly consists of
base rent, common area maintenance and landlord advertising. Additionally, the Company also elected the short-term lease recognition exemption for all
leases.

Accounting Policy Under ASC 840

The Company leases boutiques and its distribution center and office space under operating leases. The majority of the Company’s lease agreements provide
for tenant improvement allowances, rent escalation clauses and/or contingent rent provisions.

The Company records rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, which generally begins on the possession date. Certain leases provide for
contingent rents, in addition to a basic fixed rent, which are determined as a percentage of gross sales in excess of specified levels. The Company records a
contingent rent liability and the corresponding rent expense when specified levels have been achieved or when management determines that achieving the
specified levels during the fiscal year is probable.

Landlord incentives, such as tenant improvement allowances, are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term as a reduction of rent
expense.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs represent capitalized costs incurred related to the issuance or amendment of the Company’s credit facilities. These costs are amortized
to interest expense using the effective interest method over the term of the loan. Debt issuance costs associated with the Company’s Term Loan Credit
Agreement are presented on the Company's consolidated balance sheet as a direct reduction in the carrying value of the associated debt liability. Fees
incurred by the Company to obtain its revolving credit facility are included within other assets on the Company's consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when control of the merchandise is transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration received in
exchange for such merchandise. For boutique sales, control is transferred at the point at which the customer receives and pays for the merchandise at the
register. For ecommerce sales, control is transferred when merchandise is tendered to a third party carrier for delivery to the customer. The consideration
received is the stated price of the merchandise, net of any discount, sales tax collected and estimated sales returns, and, in the case of ecommerce sales,
includes shipping revenue. Cash is typically received on the day of or, in the case of credit or debit card transactions, within several days of the related
sales. Management estimates future returns on previously sold merchandise based on return history and current sales levels. Estimated returns are
periodically compared to actual sales returns and adjusted, if appropriate. The provision for estimated returns is included in accrued liabilities while the
associated cost of merchandise is included as part of prepaid and other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company adopted ASC 606, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” on February 4, 2018 using the modified retrospective approach. Prior period
amounts were not adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance with ASC 605, “Revenue Recognition.” As a result of adoption of ASC 606, the
Company recorded an adjustment of $2.1 million, net of $0.7 million tax effect, to the beginning balance of retained earnings related to the change in
timing of recognizing gift card breakage income.

Cost of Goods Sold and Occupancy Costs

Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs include the cost of purchased merchandise, freight costs from the Company’s suppliers to its distribution centers
and freight costs for merchandise shipped directly from its vendors to its boutiques, allowances for inventory shrinkage and obsolescence, boutique
occupancy costs including lease expenses, utilities, property taxes, boutique assets depreciation, boutique repair and maintenance costs, and shipping costs
related to ecommerce sales.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses include boutique and headquarters payroll (including buying department), employee benefits, freight from
distribution centers to boutiques, boutique pre-opening expense, credit card merchant fees, costs of maintaining the Company’s ecommerce operations,
travel and administration costs, corporate asset depreciation, stock-based compensation and other expenses related to operations at the corporate
headquarters.

Freight costs included in selling, general and administrative expenses amounted to $4.4 million, $4.4 million and $4.8 million in fiscal years 2019, 2018,

and 2017, respectively.
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Advertising

Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred or, in the case of media production costs (such as television or print), when advertising first takes
place. Advertising costs were $3.9 million, $5.3 million and $4.2 million in fiscal years 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and were included in selling,
general and administrative expenses.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is measured at the grant date fair value and recognized as expense over the requisite service period (generally the vesting period
of the award). Beginning in fiscal year 2017, forfeitures were recognized as they occur rather than estimating expected forfeitures.

The fair value of restricted stock awards and restricted stock units are determined based on the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the award
date. For awards subject to performance conditions, compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service period when it is probable that the
specified performance goals will be achieved.

The fair value of time-based stock options is estimated using the Black Scholes option pricing model which requires extensive use of judgment and
estimates, including expected stock volatility, expected term, risk-free interest rate and expected dividend yield.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets, Including Operating Lease ROU Assets

The Company evaluates long-lived assets held for use, including operating lease ROU assets, and held for sale whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level
for which there are identifiable cash flows, which is generally at a boutique level. In determining whether an impairment has occurred, the Company
considers both qualitative and quantitative factors.

The quantitative analysis involves estimating the undiscounted future cash flows directly related to that asset and comparing it against its carrying value. If
the carrying value of the asset is greater than the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference between
the carrying value of the asset and its fair value. The fair value of the asset group is generally determined using discounted future cash flows or a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits using the asset in its highest and best use, whichever is appropriate. The determination of fair value takes
into account the asset’s historical performance, current sales trends, market conditions, market participant pricing assumptions considering the highest and
best use of the asset and other relevant factors deemed material, and discounted using a rate commensurate with the risk. The inputs used in the
determination of the fair value are considered as Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy, which require a significant degree of judgment and are based on
the Company’s own assumptions.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method. Under this method, the amount of taxes currently payable or refundable is accrued, and
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences of temporary differences that currently exist between the tax
basis and the financial reporting basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are established against deferred tax assets when it is
more-likely-than-not that the realization of those deferred tax assets will not occur.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years when those temporary
differences are expected to be realized or be realized or settled. The effect on deferred taxes from a change in tax rate is recognized through continuing
operations in the period that includes the enactment date of the change. Changes in tax laws and rates could affect recorded deferred tax assets and
liabilities in the future.

A tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized when it is more-likely-than-not that the position will be sustained upon examination,
including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits. Income tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold to be recognized. The Company recognizes tax liabilities for uncertain tax positions and adjusts these liabilities when the Company’s
judgment changes as a result of the evaluation of new information not previously available. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are
recognized in income tax expense. The Company has no uncertain tax positions requiring accrual at February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In December 2019, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2019-12, “Simplifying the
Accounting for Income Taxes.” The ASU intends to enhance and simplify aspects of the income tax accounting guidance in ASC 740, “Income Taxes” as
part of the FASB's simplification initiative. This guidance is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15,
2020 with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this guidance may have on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Internal-Use-Software (Subtopic 350-40): Customer’s Accounting for
Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That is a Service Contract.” ASU 2018-15 aligns the requirements for capitalizing
implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract with the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to
develop or obtain internal-use software. This new guidance will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019 and interim periods within
those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted the provisions of this guidance on February 2, 2020 and does not expect the adoption
of this guidance to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, “Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments.”
ASU 2016-13 changes the methodology for measuring credit losses on financial instruments and timing of when such losses are recorded. Since the
original issuance of ASU 2016-13, the FASB has issued several amendments and updates to this guidance. This new guidance is effective for public
companies, except for smaller reporting companies, for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within those fiscal years. For
smaller reporting companies, such as the Company, this new guidance will be effective for fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2022, and interim
periods within those fiscal year. Early adoption is permitted. The guidance is to be adopted using the modified retrospective approach. The Company does
not expect the adoption of this guidance to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

2. Revenues

The Company disaggregates net sales into the following major merchandise departments.

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
2020 2019 2018
(in thousands)
Apparel $ 186,493 $ 200,736 $ 235,048
Jewelry 111,031 104,714 104,638
Accessories 65,530 69,219 69,004
Gifts 41,275 50,311 59,286
Other(V) 3,207 3,135 3,702

$ 407,536 $ 428,115 $ 471,678

(1) Includes gift card breakage income, shipping revenue and change in return reserve.

Contract liability

Contract liability consists of gift card liability. The Company accounts for the sale of gift cards as a liability at the time a gift card is sold. The liability is
relieved and revenue is recognized upon redemption of the gift card. The Company’s gift cards do not have an expiration date. Income from gift card
breakage is estimated based on historical redemption patterns and recognized over the historical redemption period. Unredeemed gift cards at the end of the
prior fiscal year recognized in revenues during fiscal years 2019, 2018 and 2017 were $4.9 million, $4.5 million and $6.4 million, respectively. Such
revenues from gift cards during fiscal year 2019 and 2017 included $0.6 million and $1.5 million, respectively, of additional gift card breakage income
recognized due to the changes in the estimated period over which redemption of gift card is considered to be remote.
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3. (Loss) Earnings per Share

Basic (loss) earnings per common share amounts are calculated using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted
(loss) earnings per common share amounts are calculated using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period and include the
dilutive impact of shares of restricted stock and stock options using the treasury stock method. The following table summarizes the potential dilutive impact
that could occur if outstanding options to acquire common stock were exercised or if outstanding restricted stocks have fully vested, and reconciles the
weighted-average common shares outstanding used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

Fiscal Years Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
2020 2019 2018
(In thousands, except per share data)
Numerator:
Net (loss) income $ (25,020) $ (40,941) $ 15,561
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding-basic 2,899 2,900 3,014
Restricted stock and stock options @ - - 11
Weighted-average common shares outstanding-diluted $ 2,899 $ 2,900 $ 3,025
Per common share:
Basic (loss) earnings per common share $ (8.63) $ (14.12) $ 5.16
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share $ (8.63) $ (14.12) $ 5.14

(1) Due to the Company being in a net loss position in fiscal year 2019 and 2018, shares of restricted stock and stock options were excluded in the computation of diluted loss per share as their
effect would have been anti-dilutive.

Potentially issuable shares under the Company’s stock-based compensation plan amounting to approximately 0.2 million, 0.1 million and less than 0.1
million shares for fiscal years 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, were excluded in the computation of diluted earnings per share due to their anti-dilutive
effect. The Company also excluded contingently issuable performance awards totaling 0.1 million for fiscal year 2019 and less than 0.1 million in each of
fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively, from the computation of diluted earnings per share because the pre-established goals have not been satisfied.

4. Detail of Certain Balance Sheet Accounts

As of Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, February 2,
2020 2019
(in thousands)

Accounts receivable:

Credit card receivables 2,599 2,752
Income tax receivable $ 459 $ 10,809
Tenant allowances(!) - 1,785
Others 685 963
$ 3,743 % 16,309
@ In fiscal year 2019, tenant allowances were presented as part of operating lease liabilities in accordance with ASC 842.
Property and equipment, net:
Signage and leasehold improvements $ 107,433 $ 107,050
Furniture and fixtures 22,902 22,780
Software 15,666 15,590
Equipment 9,304 9,251
Construction in progress 605 2,348
Total 155,910 157,019
Less accumulated depreciation (104,441) (85,812)
$ 51,469 $ 71,207
Accrued liabilities:
Gift cards $ 4100 $ 5,642
Accrued payroll, benefits and bonuses 7,223 4,615
Accrued sales tax 992 1,046
Accrued interest 95 30
$ 12,410 $ 11,333
Landlord incentives and deferred rent (under ASC 840):
Landlord incentives $ - % 21,139
Deferred rent - 12,850
$ - 8 33,989
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5. Asset Impairment Charges

In connection with the Company’s quarterly impairment review process, the Company identified events and circumstances indicating that the carrying
amounts of certain boutique long-lived assets may be impaired. Accordingly, the Company recorded non-cash asset impairment charges of $11.9 million in
fiscal year 2019 primarily related to the write-down of operating lease ROU assets for 60 underperforming boutiques. This compares to non-cash asset
impairment charges of $20.1 million in fiscal year 2018, which is primarily related to the write-off of boutique assets for 153 underperforming boutiques.
Additionally, the asset impairment charge in fiscal year 2018 included a $4.9 million charge associated with the write-off of boutique furniture, fixtures and
supplies that are no longer expected to be used as a result of postponing new boutique openings and remodels in future periods.

6. Income Taxes

The provision for income tax expense or (benefit) for fiscal years 2019, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
2020 2019 2018
(in thousands)

Current:

Federal $ - 8 974) $ 6,882

State 125 (252) 1,314
Total 125 (1,226) 8,196

Deferred:

Federal - 4,288 6,373

State - 4,431 (274)
Total - 8,719 6,099
Income tax expense $ 125  $ 7,493 $ 14,295

The reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective tax rate follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
2020 2019 2018
Income tax expense at statutory rate 21.0% 21.0% 33.4%
Valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets (29.0) (51.2) -
State tax (benefit), net of federal (benefit) expense 7.7 6.7 1.9
Nondeductible expenses 0.7) 0.2) 0.9
Deferred tax remeasurement under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act - - 11.0
Other 0.5 1.3 0.7
Effective tax expense rate (0.5)% (22.4)% 47.9%
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On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“Tax Act”) was enacted into law effective on January 1, 2018. Upon enactment, the Company
recognized a provisional and one-time non-cash deferred tax expense of $3.3 million due to the remeasurement of our deferred tax assets and liabilities
based on the reduction of the statutory federal tax rate to 21%. This expense is included as a component of income tax expense for fiscal year 2017. During
fiscal year 2018, we completed the analysis of the impact of the Tax Act and determined that no material adjustments was needed to the previously
recorded provisional amount.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded due to different carrying amounts for financial and income tax reporting purposes arising from cumulative
temporary differences as measured by enacted tax rates, which will be in effect when these temporary differences reverse. These differences consist of the
following as of the dates indicated:

As of Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, February 2,
2020 2019
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Operating lease liabilities $ 62,912 $ -
Landlord incentives and deferred rent - 8,113
Net operating losses 10,147 7,686
Inventories 2,774 2,143
Accrued liabilities 2,170 1,690
Stock-based compensation 1,063 1,244
Other 12 26
Deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 79,078 20,902
Valuation allowance (24,577) (17,117)
54,501 3,785

Deferred tax liabilities:

Operating lease right-of-use assets (52,686) -
Property and equipment (1,239) (3,785)
Other (576) -
(54,501) (3,785)
Net deferred tax assets $ - $ -
Carryforwards

The federal net operating loss carryforward which totaled $6.7 million as of February 2, 2019 has no expiration date under the Tax Act while the state net
operating loss carryforward which totaled $3.4 million as of February 2, 2019 will expire in various tax years through fiscal year 2039.

Subsequent to February 1, 2020, the Corona Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) was enacted in March 2020 that allows the carryback
of net operating losses to prior years. Accordingly, the Company has filed an income tax refund for $10.7 million with the IRS. See Note 1, Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies — Going Concern, for additional information.

Valuation Allowance

The Company performs an assessment of whether a valuation allowance is necessary against its deferred tax asset at each balance sheet date. Based on
available positive and negative evidence, including past operating results, estimates of future income, future reversals of existing taxable temporary
differences and tax planning strategies, the Company determined that it is more-likely-than-not that it will not realize its deferred tax assets in future
periods and therefore, a full valuation allowance amounting to $17.1 million was established at February 2, 2019. The Company recorded an additional
valuation allowance on its deferred tax asset of $7.5 million during fiscal year 2019.

The Company, in subsequent periods, will continue to weigh all available positive and negative evidence when it assesses the necessity of a valuation
allowance at each balance sheet date. If the Company recognizes earnings in future periods, the availability of deferred tax assets may result in additional
value to the shareholders. In such event, the Company may reverse the valuation allowance, which would result in an increase in reported income in the
relevant period. Any such subsequent reversal of the valuation allowance would not impact the Company’s cash or cash equivalents until such time as the
deferred tax asset is realized.
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Fiscal Years Subject to Examination
The Company’s tax years are subject to examination by federal authorities from 2016 forward and by state taxing authorities from 2015 forward.
7. Credit Facilities
The Company’s credit facilities consisted of the following:

Fiscal Years Ended
February 1,2020 February 2, 2019
(in thousands)

Asset based revolving credit facility $ - $ 10,000
Term loan 10,000 -
Unamortized debt issuance costs (1,064) =
Total long-term debt, net 8,936 10,000
Less: Current portion of long term debt (8,936) -
Total long-term debt, net of current portion - $ 10,000

Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility

On May 25, 2018, Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (the “Holdings™), as guarantor, certain of its subsidiaries, as borrowers (the “Borrowers”), and certain
of its subsidiaries as guarantors (together with Holdings, and the Borrowers, the “Loan Parties”) entered into an asset based revolving credit agreement (the
“ABL Credit Agreement”) with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and the lenders party thereto. The ABL Credit Agreement provided
for Aggregate Revolving Commitments (as defined in the ABL Credit Agreement) of $50.0 million (including up to $10.0 million for letters of credit) and
was scheduled to mature on May 25, 2023.

On August 13, 2019, concurrent with entering into the Term Loan Credit Agreement (described below), the Borrowers, entered into the first amendment to
ABL Credit Agreement (the “First Amendment to ABL Credit Agreement”), which amends the Company’s existing ABL Credit Agreement (the ABL
Credit Agreement, as amended by the First Amendment to ABL Credit Agreement, the “Amended ABL Credit Agreement”). The First Amendment to
ABL Credit Agreement, among other things, (i) reduced the Aggregate Revolving Commitments (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement) from
$50.0 million to $40.0 million; (ii) allowed the Loan Parties to enter into the Term Loan Credit Agreement with Tiger Finance, LL.C.; (iii) changed the
maturity date under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement from May 23, 2023 to the earlier of (a) May 23, 2023 and (b) the date that is 90 days prior to any
scheduled maturity of the Term Loan; (iv) institutes a combined borrowing base together with the Company’s new Term Loan Credit Agreement (described
below); (v) removed the requirement to maintain the minimum fixed charge coverage ratio previously contained in the ABL Credit Agreement; and (vi)
limits the amount of capital expenditures that the Loan Parties may make through the fiscal year ending in 2021, provided that the Loan Parties may make
unlimited amounts of capital expenditures if certain payment conditions are met. In connection with the First Amendment to ABL Credit Agreement, the
Company wrote-off $0.2 million of unamortized debt issuance costs associated with the reduction in borrowing capacity, which is included in other
expense in the accompanying statements of operations. Additionally, the Company incurred $0.2 million of debt issuance costs during the fiscal year 2019,
which is being amortized over the remaining term of the Amended ABL Credit Agreement.

Availability under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement is subject to a customary borrowing base , as reasonably determined by the applicable agent,
comprised of: (a) a specified percentage of the Borrower’s credit card accounts (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement); and (b) a specified
percentage of the Borrower’s eligible inventory (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement), and reduced by (c) certain customary reserves

and adjustments (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement). The combined borrowing base is the lesser of (i) the sum of the (a) the Revolving
Loan Cap (as defined in the Amended ABL Agreement), which is the less of (x) $34.0 million and (y) the borrowing base under the Amended ABL Credit
Agreement, plus, (b) any outstanding amount under the Term Loan Credit Agreement and (ii) the Term Loan Credit Agreement borrowing base (described
below). As of February 1, 2020, the Company had $17.2 million of combined borrowing base availability under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement and
the Term Loan Credit Agreement. In addition, on May 1, 2020, the Company entered the JPM Letter Agreement and Tiger Letter Agreement which contain
certain conditions and covenants and provide that, in the case of the JPM Letter Agreement, (i) it is required to use the entire $10.7 million income tax
refund requested under the CARES Act to repay certain outstanding borrowings under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement and (ii) no loans will be made
under the ABL Credit Agreement unless its aggregate amount of cash and cash equivalents is less than $3.0 million. See Note 15, Subsequent Events for
additional information
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All obligations of each Loan Party under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement continue to be unconditionally guaranteed by the Company and each of the
Company’s existing and future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries, including the Borrowers. All obligations under the Amended ABL
Credit Agreement, and the guarantees of those obligations (as well as banking services obligations and any interest rate hedging or other swap agreements),
are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company and each of the Company’s existing and future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic
subsidiaries. Additionally, the Amended ABL Credit Agreement contains customary events of default and requires the Loan Parties to comply with certain
financial covenants, including a restriction on the amount of capital expenditures that the Loan Parties may make through 2021, subject to certain
exceptions. In addition, the Company may declare or make dividend payments, subject to the satisfaction of the Payment Conditions (as defined in the
Amended ABL Credit Agreement). The Amended ABL Credit Agreement also requires that the auditor’s report on the Company’s audited financial
statements does not contain a “going concern” or like qualification or exception. On May 1, 2020, the Company obtained a waiver from the lender of the
failure of the Company to (i) deliver annual audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2020 without a “going concern”
or a like qualification or exception and (ii) pay rent on leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020. See Note 15, Subsequent Events, for
additional information.

Borrowings under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement continue to bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus, at the option of the
Borrowers, either (a) in the case of base rate borrowings, a rate equal to the highest of (1) the prime rate of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., (2) the federal
funds rate plus 1/2 of 1.00%, and (3) LIBOR for an interest period of one month plus 1.00% (subject to a 0.0% LIBOR floor), provided that that the interest
rate for base rate borrowings (including the addition of the applicable margin) shall be no less than 1.50% per annum, or (b) in the case of LIBOR
borrowings, a rate equal to the LIBOR for the interest period relevant to such borrowing subject to a 0.00% floor. The applicable margin for borrowings
under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement ranges from -0.50% to 0.00% per annum with respect to base rate borrowings and from 1.25% to 1.75% per
annum with respect to LIBOR borrowings, in each case based upon the achievement of specified levels of the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (as defined in
the Amended ABL Credit Agreement). The Amended ABL Credit Agreement also requires the Borrowers to pay a commitment fee for the unused portion
of the revolving credit facility of 0.20% per annum.

Term Loan Credit Agreement

On August 13, 2019, the Loan Parties, entered into the Term Loan Credit Agreement with Tiger Finance, LLC, as administrative agent and the lenders
party thereto. The Term Loan Credit Agreement provides for an aggregate term loan of $10.0 million and matures on August 13, 2022. Although the
maturity of the Term Loan Credit Agreement is beyond 12 months from the balance sheet, the Company classified the outstanding amount as current
liability in the consolidated balance sheet as of February 1, 2020 due to uncertainties concerning the Company’s future liquidity and on-going covenant
compliance as a result of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s business. See Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies —
Going Concern, and Note 15, Subsequent Events, for additional information.

The Term Loan Credit Agreement is subject to a combined borrowing base together with the Company’s existing asset based revolving credit facility under
the Amended ABL Credit Agreement. This borrowing base is comprised of: (a) a specified percentage of the Borrower’s credit card accounts (as defined in
the Term Loan Credit Agreement); and (b) a specified percentage of the Borrower’s eligible inventory (as defined in the Term Loan Credit Agreement), and
reduced by (c) certain customary reserves and adjustments (as defined in the Term Loan Credit Agreement).

All obligations of each Loan Party under the Term Loan Credit Agreement are unconditionally guaranteed by the Company and each of the Company’s
existing and future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries, including the Borrowers. All obligations under the Term Loan Credit
Agreement, and the guarantees of those obligations, are secured on a junior lien basis by substantially all of the assets of the Company and each of the
Company’s existing and future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries. As of February 1, 2020, the Company had $17.2 million of
combined borrowing base availability under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement and the Term Loan Credit Agreement. On May 1, 2020, the Company
obtained a waiver from the lender of the failure of the Company to (i) deliver annual audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended
February 1, 2020 without a “going concern” or a like qualification or exception and (ii) pay rent on leased locations for the months of April, May and June,
2020. See Note 15, Subsequent Events for additional information.

Borrowings under the Term Loan Credit Agreement bears interest at a rate equal to LIBOR for the interest period relevant to the Term Loan, subject to a
0.00% floor, plus 8.00%, provided that the interest rate on the Term Loan will not be less than 10.00%. The Term Loan Credit Agreement also requires the
Borrowers to pay an annual agency fee of $50,000. In fiscal year 2019, the average effective interest rate for the Term Loan was 10.0%.

In connection with the Term Loan Credit Agreement, the Company incurred $1.2 million of debt issuance costs during the fiscal year 2019, which is being

amortized over the life of the Term Loan Credit Agreement.
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8. Stockholders’ Equity
Stockholder Rights Plan

On July 31, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted a limited duration stockholder rights plan (the “Rights Plan”) with an expiration date of
August 1, 2022 and an ownership trigger threshold of 15%, subject to certain exceptions. In connection with the Rights Plan, the Board of Directors
authorized and declared a dividend to the Company’s stockholders of record at the close of business on August 15, 2019 of one preferred share purchase
right (a “Right”) for each outstanding share of the Company’s common stock.

Upon certain triggering events (none of which have occurred as of February 1, 2020), each Right will entitle the holder thereof to purchase one five-
thousandth (subject to adjustment) of one share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per share of the Company (the “Preferred
Stock”) at an exercise price of $18.00 (the “Exercise Price”) per one five-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock. In addition, if a person or group acquires
beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company’s common stock without prior approval of the Company’s Board of Directors, or in the case of a
person or group that beneficially owned more than 15% of the Company’s common stock prior to the issuance of the press release announcing the adoption
of the Rights Agreement on August 2, 2019, such person or group acquires beneficial ownership of any additional shares of the Company’s common stock
without prior approval of the Company’s Board of Directors, each holder of a Right (other than the acquiring person or group whose Rights will become
void) will have the right to purchase, upon payment of the Exercise Price and in accordance with and subject to the adjustment under the terms of the
Rights Plan, a number of shares of the Company’s common stock having a market value of twice the Exercise Price (as adjusted).

Share Repurchases

On March 15, 2016, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized an additional $100.0 million share repurchase program (“Repurchase Plan”) which
commenced in April 2016. The Repurchase Plan has no expiration date. Under the Repurchase Plan, purchases can be made from time to time in the open
market, in privately negotiated transactions, under Rule 10b5-1 plans or through other available means. The specific timing and amount of the repurchases
is dependent on market conditions, securities law limitations and other factors.

The following table summarizes the Company’s repurchase activity for the periods presented. The cost of repurchased shares is presented as treasury stock
in the consolidated balance sheets.

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, 2020 February 2,2019 February 3, 2018
(in thousands, except per data)

Number of shares repurchased - 55 155
Total cost of shares repurchased -3 3,522 $ 20,008
Average price (including brokers' commission) $ - $ 64.08 $ 129.00

At February 1, 2020, there was $40.2 million remaining balance available for future purchases.
9. Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-based compensation expense, which is included in selling, general and administrative expenses, consisted of the following.

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, 2020 February 2,2019 February 3, 2018
(in thousands)

Stock options $ 145 $ 293 $ 700
Restricted stock awards (161) 1,042 1,730
Restricted stocks units 285 > >

$ 269 $ 1,335  $ 2,430

Previously accrued stock-based compensation totaling $1.2 million and $0.8 million were reversed during fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respectively, in
connection with certain employee departures, including the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Merchandising Officer, Chief Marketing Officer and certain
other members of senior management in fiscal year 2019 and the Chief Executive Officer in fiscal year 2018.

61




Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Stock Incentive Plans
2010 Stock Incentive Plan

On February 27, 2010, the Company adopted the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2010 Plan”) to be administered by the
Board or a Committee. Under the 2010 Plan, awards may be in the form of stock options, stock or restricted stock and may be granted to any officers,
directors, eligible employees and consultants of the Company. Exercise prices shall not be less than the fair market value of the Company’s common stock
at the date of grant as determined by the Board. The awards generally vest over four to five years and have a ten year contractual term. As of July 14, 2011,
the Company can no longer grant awards under the 2010 Plan.

2011 Stock Incentive Plan

On July 14, 2011, the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2011 Plan”) was approved by the stockholders and became immediately effective. Under the 2011
Plan, awards may be in the form of nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock bonuses, restricted stock, performance stock and other
stock-based awards which can be granted to any officers, directors, employees and consultants of the Company. Awards granted under the 2011 Plan
generally vest over three to five years and have a ten-year contractual life. As of June 9, 2015, the Company can no longer grant awards under the 2011
Plan.

2015 Stock Incentive Plan

On June 9, 2015, the 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2015 Plan”) was approved by the stockholders and became immediately effective. Under the 2015
Plan, awards may be in the form of nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock bonuses, restricted stock, stock units, performance stock and
other stock-based awards which can be granted to any officers, directors, employees and consultants of the Company. A total of 0.2 million shares of
common stock are authorized for issuance under the 2015 Plan which may be increased by the number of awards cancelled, forfeited, expired, or for any
reason terminated under the 2011 Plan after June 9, 2015. Awards granted under the 2015 Plan generally vest over three to five years and options and stock
appreciation rights have a ten-year contractual life. As of February 2, 2020, there were approximately 0.1 million shares remaining that can be subject to
new awards granted under the 2015 Plan.

Restricted Stock Units

The following table summarizes restricted stock units activity under our stock plans during fiscal year 2019.

Weighted
Number of Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value
(in thousands) (Per share data)
Non-vested restricted stock units as of February 2, 2019 - $ =
Granted 281 $ 8.65
Forfeited (129) $ 8.65
Non-vested restricted stock units as of February 1, 2020 152 $ 8.65

During fiscal year 2019, the Company granted 0.3 million of restricted stock units to certain executives and key employees. Of the total awards in each
period, 50% of the total shares awarded were in the form of performance-based restricted shares (“PSU”) while the remaining 50% were in the form of
time-based restricted shares (“RSU”). The number of PSUs that may ultimately vest will equal 0% to 150% of the target shares subject to the achievement
of pre-established performance goals during the applicable performance period and the employees’ continued employment through the third year
anniversary of the date. The RSUs vest in one installment on the third anniversary of the award date. At the end of each reporting period, the Company
assessed the probability of achieving the pre-established performance conditions related to the PSUs and adjusted stock-based compensation expense based
on the result of such assessment.

As of February 1, 2020, there was approximately $0.9 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock units that is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2 years.
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Restricted Stock

The following table summarizes restricted stock activity during fiscal year 2019.

Weighted
Number of Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value
(in thousands) (Per share data)
Non-vested restricted stocks as of February 2, 2019 66 $ 76.18
Granted 118 $ 5.94
Vested (20) $ 38.19
Forfeited (49) $ 65.33
Non-vested restricted stocks as of February 1, 2020 115 $ 15.69

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assessed the probability of achieving the pre-established performance conditions related to the PSAs and
adjusted stock-based compensation expense based on the result of such assessment. As a result of this assessment, the Company recognized a reversal of
previously accrued expenses totaling $0.3 million, $0.9 million, and $1.2 million in fiscal years 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

During fiscal years 2019, 2018 and 2017, restricted stocks were granted at a fair value of $5.94, $59.64 and $173.16, respectively. The total fair value of
restricted stock that vested were $0.1 million, $0.7 million, and $1.4 million, during fiscal years 2019, 2018, and 2017, respectively. As of February 1,
2020, there was approximately $0.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock awards that is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2 years.

Stock Options

The following table summarizes stock option activity during fiscal year 2019. The intrinsic value of the stock options was calculated based the closing
price of the Company’s common stock on the last trading day closest to February 1, 2020.

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Number of Average Contractual Aggregate
Options Exercise Price Life Intrinsic Value
(in thousands) (Per share data) (in Years) (In thousands)
Stock options outstanding as of February 1, 2020 24 170.82 4 _
Stock options exercisable as of February 1, 2020 23 170.20 4 -

No stock options were awarded during fiscal years 2019, 2018, or 2017. No stock options were exercised in fiscal year 2019 or 2018. In fiscal year 2017,
the intrinsic value of stock options at the date of exercise amounted to less than $0.1 million.

As of February 2, 2020, there was less than $0.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock option awards that is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1 year.
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10. Employee Benefits

The Company has adopted Francesca’s Collections, Inc. 401(k) Retirement Plan (the “401(k) Plan”) under which full-time and part-time employees who
are at least 21 years of age and have completed six consecutive months of employment are eligible to participate. Employees may elect to contribute a
certain percentage of their earnings subject to limitations provided for by the law. The Company makes matching contributions of up to a maximum of 4%
of the employees’ salary. The Company may also make discretionary profit sharing contributions to the 401(k) Plan. No profit sharing contributions were
made in fiscal years 2019, 2018 and 2017. The Company’s matching contributions were $0.7 million, $0.9 million and $0.7 million in fiscal years 2019,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

11. Leases

The Company leases boutiques, its distribution center, office space, and certain boutique and corporate office equipment under operating leases expiring in
various years through the fiscal year ending 2030. Certain of the leases provide that the Company may cancel the lease, with penalties as defined in the
lease, if the Company’s boutique sales at that location fall below an established level. Certain leases provide for additional rent payments to be made when
sales exceed a base amount. Certain operating leases provide for renewal options for periods from three to five years at the market rate at the time of
renewal. The Company’s lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants. See Note 1, Leases, for
additional information regarding the Company’s adoption of ASC 842, Leases on February 3, 2019 and the impact of such adoption.

The following table presents the components of the Company’s operating lease costs for the period presented.

Fiscal Year

2020
(in thousands)
Operating lease costs $ 60,984
Variable lease costs 843
S 61827

As of February 1, 2020, the weighted average remaining operating lease term was 5.7 years and the weighted average discount rate for operating leases was
5.8%. Cash paid for operating leases included in the measurement of lease liabilities totaled $65.4 million, including interest, for the fiscal year ended
2020.

As of February 1, 2020, the maturities of lease liabilities were as follows:

Maturities of lease liabilities

2020 $ 61,688
2021 54,868
2022 47,290
2023 40,566
2024 33,576
Thereafter 57,181
Total lease payments 295,169
Less: Interest 45,540

Present value of lease liabilities 249,629

Operating lease liabilities include amounts due from landlords in tenant improvement allowances.

As of February 1, 2020, the minimum rental commitments for operating lease contracts that have not yet commenced was $5.4 million while its lease terms
were within the range of 5 to 10 years.

Prior to the Adoption of ASC 842

As previously disclosed in the Company Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2019, minimum future rent payments under
non-cancellable operating leases as of February 2, 2019 were approximately as follows:

Fiscal Year

2019 $ 48,644
2020 43,356
2021 36,785
2022 30,983
2023 26,084
Thereafter 59,039
Total lease payments 244,891

During fiscal years 2018 and 2017, rent expense totaled $45.4 million and $42.2 million, respectively.
12. Contingencies
On January 27, 2017, a purported collective action lawsuit entitled Meghan Magee, et al. v. Francesca’s Holdings Corp., et al. was filed in the United States

District Court for the District of New Jersey, Camden Vicinage against the Company for alleged violations of federal and state wage and hour laws. After
substitution of a named plaintiff, the lawsuit is now captioned, Danielle Prulello, et al. v. Francesca’s Holding Corp., et al. On November 6, 2018, the court



conditionally certified the collective action. The Company believes that the allegations contained in the lawsuit are without merit and intends to vigorously
defend itself against all claims asserted therein. A reasonable estimate of the amount of any possible loss or range of loss cannot be made at this time and,
as such, the Company has not recorded an accrual for any possible loss.
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The Company, from time to time, is subject to various claims and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. While the outcome of any
such claim cannot be predicted with certainty, in the opinion of management, the outcome of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operations or financial condition.

13. Segment Reporting

The Company determined that it has one operating and reportable segment, which includes the operation of boutiques and its ecommerce website. The
single segment was identified based on how the Company’s chief operating decision maker, or its Chief Executive Officer, evaluates performance and
allocates resources. Additionally, the Company considered the similarity of merchandise offered, the customers served in boutiques and through the

ecommerce website and the operating characteristics of each channel. All of the Company’s identifiable assets are located in the United States.

14. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 2019
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(in thousands, except per share data)
Net sales $ 118,936 95,503 105,972 87,125
Gross profit 41,188 37,518 40,503 30,327
Asset impairment charges 10,315 1,356 189 -
(Loss) income from operations (11,486) (4,239) 1,379 (9,667)
Net (loss) income (11,548) (5,135) 1,812 (10,149)
Basic (loss) earnings per common share (3.97) (1.76) 0.62 (3.50)
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share® (3.97) (1.76) 0.61 (3.50)
Fiscal Year 2018
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net sales $ 119,310 95,375 113,025 100,405
Gross profit 46,881 33,645 44,107 38,363
Asset impairment charges 5,555 14,419 121 27
(Loss) income from operations (6,755) (23,060) 830 (4,520)
Net (loss) income (21,287) (16,223) 454 (3,885)
Basic (loss) earnings per common share(!) (7.34) (5.59) 0.16 (1.34)
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share® (7.34) (5.59) 0.16 (1.34)

@ The sum of quarterly basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share may not foot across due to rounding.
15. Subsequent Event

As discussed in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Going Concern, section above, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization
declared COVID-19 a pandemic. In recent months, the outbreak has spread globally and has led governments and other authorities around the world,
including federal, state and local authorities in the United States, to impose measures intended to reduce its spread, including restrictions on freedom of
movement and business operations such as travel bans, border closings, business limitations and closures (subject to exceptions for essential operations and
businesses), quarantines and shelter-in-place orders. These measures may remain in place for a significant amount of time and has resulted in the temporary
closures of all of the Company’s boutiques from March 25, 2020 to April 30, 2020, when we began reopening a small number of our boutiques in locations
where local shutdown orders have been lifted. These measures have also caused an overall disruption in the Company’s supply chain and operations; while
its ecommerce and distribution center remain open, they are operating at a reduced capacity. As a result, the Company’s revenues, results of operations and
cash flows have been materially adversely impacted which raises substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. In response
to such events, management is taking aggressive and prudent actions to reduce expenses and defer payment of accounts payables and inventory purchases
to preserve cash on hand. Additionally, the Company borrowed $5.0 million under its Amended ABL Credit Facility in April 2020. The Company has also
filed an income tax refund for $10.7 million with the IRS related to the provision under the CARES Act enacted in March 2020 that allows the carryback of
net operating losses to prior years.

There is significant uncertainty around the disruptions related to the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on the global economy. While the Company’s
results of operations have been significantly impacted and it anticipates that its future results will continue to be adversely impacted, the extent to which the
COVID-19 pandemic impacts our future results will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with certainty,
including new information which may emerge concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic in the United States, actions taken to contain it or treat
its impact, any possible resurgence of COVID-19 that may occur after the initial outbreak subsides, and how quickly and to what extent normal economic
and operating conditions can resume.

On May 1, 2020, the Company entered into a letter agreement (the “JPM Letter Agreement”) in connection with its Amended ABL Credit Agreement with
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and the other loan parties thereto, to waive any Default or Event of Default (each as defined in the Amended ABL Credit
Agreement) arising from the failure of the Borrowers to (i) deliver annual audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended February 1,
2020 without a “going concern” or a like qualification or exception and (ii) pay rent on leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020. The
JPM Letter Agreement contains certain conditions on and covenants of the Borrowers, including (a) the imposition of an additional Reserve (as defined in
the Amended ABL Credit Agreement), requiring the Borrowers to keep an additional amount of cash set aside, (b) a limitation on the Borrowers’ ability to
borrow under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement unless Qualified Cash (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement) is less than $3.0 million
and (c) a requirement to use the entire $10.7 million income tax refund requested under the CARES Act to prepay the Obligations (as defined in the
Amended ABL Credit Agreement), including all outstanding principal and accrued and unpaid interest, and cash collateralize outstanding letters of credit,



within two business days of receipt of such refund. The JPM Letter Agreement also amends certain provisions of the Amended ABL Credit Agreement
related to the frequency of inspections and appraisals.

Additionally, also on May 1, 2020, the Company entered into a letter agreement (the “Tiger Letter Agreement”) in connection with its Term Loan Credit
Agreement with Tiger Finance LLC and the other loan parties thereto, to waive any Default or Event of Default (each as defined in the Term Loan Credit
Agreement) arising from the failure of the Borrowers to (i) deliver annual audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended February 1,
2020 without a “going concern” or a like qualification or exception and (ii) pay rent on leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020. The
Tiger Letter Agreement contains certain conditions on and covenants of the Borrowers, including the imposition of an additional Reserve (as defined in the
Term Loan Credit Agreement), requiring the Company to keep an additional amount of cash set aside. The Tiger Letter Agreement also amends certain
provisions of the Term Loan Credit Agreement related to the frequency of inspections and appraisals.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated
the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of February 1, 2020, were effective to
ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and the information required to be disclosed by us is accumulated and
communicated to our management to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended February 1, 2020 that have materially affected or are
reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of our principal executive and
principal financial officers, and effected by our Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of the end of our most recent fiscal year. In making this
assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in the 2013
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (“2013 Framework”) . Based on such assessment, management concluded that, as of February 1, 2020, our
internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

We are currently a non-accelerated filer and are, therefore, not required to provide an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm on our
internal control over financial reporting until such time as we are an accelerated filer or large accelerated filer. As such, management’s report on our
internal control over financial reporting in this Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report from our independent registered public
accounting firm.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On May 1, 2020, we entered into a letter agreement (the “JPM Letter Agreement”) in connection with our Amended ABL Credit Agreement with
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and the other loan parties thereto, to waive any Default or Event of Default (each as defined in the Amended ABL Credit
Agreement) arising from the failure of the Borrowers to (i) deliver annual audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended February 1,
2020 without a “going concern” or a like qualification or exception and (ii) pay rent on leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020. The
JPM Letter Agreement contains certain conditions on and covenants of the Borrowers, including (a) the imposition of an additional Reserve (as defined in
the Amended ABL Credit Agreement), requiring the Borrowers to keep an additional amount of cash set aside, (b) a limitation on the Borrowers’ ability to
borrow under the Amended ABL Credit Agreement unless Qualified Cash (as defined in the Amended ABL Credit Agreement) is less than $3.0 million
and (c) a requirement to use the entire $10.7 million income tax refund requested under the CARES Act to prepay the Obligations (as defined in the
Amended ABL Credit Agreement), including all outstanding principal and accrued and unpaid interest, and cash collateralize outstanding letters of credit,
within two business days of receipt of such refund. The JPM Letter Agreement also amends certain provisions of the Amended ABL Credit Agreement
related to the frequency of inspections and appraisals. The JPM Letter Agreement is attached as Exhibit 10.24 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Additionally, also on May 1, 2020, we entered into a letter agreement (the “Tiger Letter Agreement”) in connection with our Term Loan Credit Agreement
with Tiger Finance LLC and the other loan parties thereto, to waive any Default or Event of Default (each as defined in the Term Loan Credit Agreement)
arising from the failure of the Borrowers to (i) deliver annual audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2020 without a
“going concern” or a like qualification or exception and (ii) pay rent on leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020. The Tiger Letter
Agreement contains certain conditions on and covenants of the Borrowers, including the imposition of an additional Reserve (as defined in the Term Loan
Credit Agreement) requiring the Borrowers to keep an additional amount of cash set aside. The Tiger Letter Agreement also amends certain provisions of
the Term Loan Credit Agreement related to the frequency of inspections and appraisals. The Tiger Letter Agreement is attached as Exhibit 10.25 to this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATION GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting or an
amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, one of which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended February 1,
2020.

We have adopted a written Code of Ethics and Conduct, which applies to all of our directors, officers and employees, including our principal executive
officer and our principal financial and accounting officer. Our Code of Ethics and Conduct is available on our website, www.francescas.com under the
heading “Corporate Governance.” The information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We
intend to disclose any amendment to, or waiver from, the Code of Ethics and Conduct for our directors, executive officers and employees of the Company,
including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or persons performing similar functions, to the extent
disclosure is required by applicable rules of the SEC and Nasdaq Stock Market LLC by posting such information on our website, at the address and
location specified above.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting or an
amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, one of which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended February 1,
2020.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting or an
amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, one of which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended February 1,
2020.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting or an
amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, one of which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended February 1,
2020.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting or an

amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, one of which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended February 1,
2020.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
1. Financial Statements
The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are included in Part II, Item 8:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2020, February 2, 2019, and February 3, 2018
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the Fiscal years February 1, 2020, February 2, 2019, and February 3, 2018
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2020, February 2, 2019, and February 3, 2018
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2. Financial Statements Schedules
All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or because the required information is either not material or is included in the Consolidated

Financial Statements or Notes thereto.
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3. Exhibits

Exhibit No.

Description

3.1.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of
Amendment No. 5 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581)_filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on July 14,
2011)

Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (incorporated to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on July 1, 2019)

Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (incorporated to Exhibit 3.1

of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on August 2, 2019)

Form 8-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on September 20, 2016),

4.1 Form of Specimen Common Stock of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Amendment No. 4 to

the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on July 13, 2011)

4.2 Rights Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2019, between Francesca’s Holdings Corporation and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., as

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on August 2, 2019)

4.3 Form of Right Certificate representing the right to purchase shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of Francesca’s Holdings

Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on
August 2, 2019),

10-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on May 3, 2019),

Description of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation Purchase Rights of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (filed herewith)

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 25, 2018, among Francesca’s Holdings Corporation,_its Subsidiaries party thereto as loan parties, the

Report on Form 8-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on May 30, 2018).

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Amendment No. 5 to the Registration Statement on Form
S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on July 14, 2011).

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of Amendment No. 1 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on May 24, 2011).

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Richard J. Emmett, dated as of March 31, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581)_filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on May 24,
2011).
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511188564/dex33.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511188564/dex33.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419033410/tv524573_ex3-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419033410/tv524573_ex3-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419037323/tv526539_ex3-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419037323/tv526539_ex3-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420416124610/v449043_ex3-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420416124610/v449043_ex3-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511187142/dex41.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511187142/dex41.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419037323/tv526539_ex4-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419037323/tv526539_ex4-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419037323/tv526539_ex4-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419037323/tv526539_ex4-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419023671/tv519301_ex4-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419023671/tv519301_ex4-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420418031656/tv495188_ex10-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420418031656/tv495188_ex10-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511188564/dex104.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511188564/dex104.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511149019/dex107.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511149019/dex107.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511149019/dex1012.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511149019/dex1012.htm

Exhibit No.

Description

10.5 +

10.12 +

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of Amendment No. 5 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on July 14, 2011).

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan - Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.14 of Amendment No. 5 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation on July 14, 2011).

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan - Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 of Amendment No. 5 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation on July 14, 2011).

by reference to Exhibit 10.32 of the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-179069)_filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
on January 18, 2012).

Form of Performance Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan

2014).

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on June 9, 2015).

Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by

10.14 +

reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 1, 2015 filed by Francesca’s Holdings

Corporation on June 9, 2016)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by

10.17 +

reference to Exhibit 10.27 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on March 22, 2017),

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation Executive Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10Q
for the period ended August 4, 2018 file by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on September 12, 2018)

Form of Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporate by

10.18

Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on August 14, 2019)

70



http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511188564/dex1013.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511188564/dex1013.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511188564/dex1014.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511188564/dex1014.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511188564/dex1015.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312511188564/dex1015.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312512015543/d281854dex1032.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000119312512015543/d281854dex1032.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420414037046/v380112_ex10-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420414037046/v380112_ex10-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420415036284/v412550_ex10-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420415036284/v412550_ex10-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420415054257/v419140_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420415054257/v419140_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420415054257/v419140_ex10-3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420415054257/v419140_ex10-3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420416107720/v440876_ex10-3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420416107720/v440876_ex10-3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420417016068/v461440_ex10-27.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420417016068/v461440_ex10-27.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420418049178/tv501635_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420418049178/tv501635_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419030863/tv522857_ex10-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419030863/tv522857_ex10-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419030863/tv522857_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419030863/tv522857_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419040084/tv527493_ex10-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419040084/tv527493_ex10-1.htm

Exhibit No.

Description

10.19

10.20+

Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on August 14, 2019)

10.21+

Form of Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on September 10, 2019),

10.22+

Francesca’s Collections, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation on September 10, 2019)

10.24

Holdings Corporation and Francesca’s Collections, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on February 14, 2020)

Change in Control Letter Agreement, dated as of February 10, 2020 between Francesca’s Holdings Corporation and Andrew Clarke

2020)

Waiver and Letter Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2020, by and among Francesca’s Services Corporation, Francesca’s Collections, Inc., the

10.25

other loan parties party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., in its capacity as lender (filed herewith)

Certification of the Annual Report Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by, the Interim Chief Executive Officer (filed
herewith),

Financial Officer (furnished herewith)

The following financial information from Francesca’s Holdings Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 1,
2020, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) and furnished electronically herewith: (i) the Consolidated Balance
Sheets; (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations; (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity; (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; and (v) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

+ Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None.
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419040084/tv527493_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419040084/tv527493_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419044168/tv528437_ex10-3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419044168/tv528437_ex10-3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419044168/tv528437_ex10-4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419044168/tv528437_ex10-4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419044168/tv528437_ex10-4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000114420419044168/tv528437_ex10-4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000110465920021725/tm207957d1_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1399935/000110465920021725/tm207957d1_ex10-2.htm

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on the 1st day of May, 2020.

FRANCESCA’S HOLDINGS CORPORATION

By: /s/ Andrew Clarke

Name: Andrew Clarke
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons in the capacities held on the
dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Andrew Clarke Chief Executive Officer, Director May 1, 2020
Andrew Clarke (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Cindy Thomassee Chief Financial Officer May 1, 2020
Cindy Thomassee (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ Patricia A. Bender Director May 1, 2020

Patricia A. Bender

/s/ Philip F. Bleser Director May 1, 2020
Philip F. Bleser

/s/ Richard Emmett Chairman, Director May 1, 2020
Richard Emmett

/s/ Susan McGalla Director May 1, 2020
Susan McGalla
/s/ Joseph O’Leary Director May 1, 2020

Joseph O’Leary

/s/ Martyn Redgrave Director May 1, 2020
Martyn Redgrave
/s/ Marie Toulantis Director May 1, 2020

Marie Toulantis
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Exhibit 4.7

DESCRIPTION OF FRANCESCA’S HOLDINGS CORPORATION’S PURCHASE RIGHTS OF SERIES A JUNIOR PARTICIPATING
PREFERRED STOCK

The following description of the Rights (as defined below) of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) and provisions of the Company’s
certificate of incorporation, as amended, certificate of designation relating to the Rights, the Rights Agreement (as defined below) and bylaws, are
summaries only. These summaries are subject to and qualified by reference to the Company’s certificate of incorporation, as amended, certificate of
designation relating to the Rights, Rights Agreement, bylaws and by the provisions of applicable law.

Distribution Date; Exercisability; Expiration

On July 31, 2019, the Board of Directors of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) declared a dividend of one preferred share purchase right
(a “Right”) for each outstanding share of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”). The dividend is payable on
August 29, 2019 to the stockholders of record at the close of business on August 15, 2019 (the “Record Date”). Each Right initially entitles the registered
holder to purchase from the Company one five-thousandth of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the
Company (the “Preferred Stock”) at a price of $18.00 per one five-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock (the “Purchase Price”), subject to adjustment.
The description and terms of the Rights are set forth in a Rights Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2019, as the same may be amended from time to time
(the “Rights Agreement”), between the Company and Computershare Trust Company, N.A, as Rights Agent (the “Rights Agent”).

Until the earlier to occur of (i) 10 business days following a public announcement that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons has become an
Acquiring Person (as defined below) or (ii) 10 business days (or such later date as may be determined by action of the Board of Directors of the Company
prior to such time as any person or group of affiliated or associated persons becomes an Acquiring Person) following the commencement of, or public
announcement of an intention to make, a tender or exchange offer the consummation of which would result in any person or group of affiliated or
associated persons becoming an Acquiring Person (the earlier of such dates being called the “Distribution Date”), the Rights will be evidenced, with respect
to certificates representing Common Stock (or book entry shares of Common Stock) outstanding as of the Record Date, by such certificates (or such book
entry shares) together with a copy of a summary of the Rights (the “Summary of Rights”). Except in certain situations, a person or group of affiliated or
associated persons becomes an “Acquiring Person” upon acquiring beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. With
respect to any person or group of affiliated or associated persons that beneficially owns 15% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock prior to
the issuance of the press release announcing the adoption of the Rights Agreement, such person or group of affiliated or associated persons will become an
“Acquiring Person” only after becoming the beneficial owner of any additional shares of Common Stock, subject to certain exceptions.

The Rights Agreement provides that, until the Distribution Date (or earlier expiration of the Rights), the Rights will be transferred with and only with the
Common Stock. Until the Distribution Date (or earlier expiration of the Rights), new Common Stock certificates issued after the Record Date upon transfer
or new issuances of Common Stock will contain a notation incorporating the Rights Agreement by reference. Until the Distribution Date (or earlier
expiration of the Rights), the surrender for transfer of any certificates for shares of Common Stock (or book entry shares of Common Stock) outstanding as
of the Record Date, even without such notation or a copy of the Summary of Rights, will also constitute the transfer of the Rights associated with the shares
of Common Stock represented thereby. As soon as practicable following the Distribution Date, separate certificates evidencing the Rights (“Right
Certificates”) will be mailed to holders of record of the Common Stock as of the close of business on the Distribution Date or the book entry accounts of
such holders shall be credited and direct registration transaction advice shall be given to such holders and such separate Right Certificates or book-entry
shares alone will evidence the Rights.

The Rights are not exercisable until the Distribution Date. The Rights will expire on August 1, 2022 (the “Final Expiration Date™), unless the Final
Expiration Date is advanced or extended, or the Rights are earlier redeemed or exchanged by the Company as described below.




The Purchase Price payable, and the number of shares of Preferred Stock or other securities or property issuable, upon exercise of the Rights is subject to
adjustment from time to time to prevent dilution (i) in the event of a stock dividend on, or a subdivision, combination or reclassification of, the Preferred
Stock, (ii) upon the grant to holders of the Preferred Stock of certain rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase Preferred Stock at a price, or securities
convertible into Preferred Stock with a conversion price, less than the then-current market price of the Preferred Stock or (iii) upon the distribution to
holders of the Preferred Stock of evidences of indebtedness or assets (excluding regular periodic cash dividends or dividends payable in Preferred Stock) or
of subscription rights or warrants (other than those referred to above).

The number of outstanding Rights is subject to adjustment in the event of a stock dividend on the Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock or
subdivisions, consolidations or combinations of the Common Stock occurring, in any such case, prior to the Distribution Date.

Shares of Preferred Stock purchasable upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemable. Each share of Preferred Stock will be entitled, when, as and if
declared, to a minimum preferential quarterly dividend payment of the greater of (a) $50.00 per share, and (b) an amount equal to 5,000 times the dividend
declared per share of Common Stock. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of the Preferred Stock will be
entitled to a minimum preferential payment of the greater of (a) $5,000 per share (plus any accrued but unpaid dividends), and (b) an amount equal to 5,000
times the payment made per share of Common Stock. Each share of Preferred Stock will have 5,000 votes, voting together with the Common Stock.
Finally, in the event of any merger, consolidation or other transaction in which outstanding shares of Common Stock are converted or exchanged, each
share of Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive 5,000 times the amount received per share of Common Stock. These rights are protected by customary
anti-dilution provisions.

Because of the nature of the Preferred Stock’s dividend, liquidation and voting rights, the value of the one five-thousandth interest in a share of Preferred
Stock purchasable upon exercise of each Right should approximate the value of one share of Common Stock.

Flip-in Event

In the event that any person or group of affiliated or associated persons becomes an Acquiring Person, each holder of a Right, other than Rights beneficially
owned by the Acquiring Person (which will thereupon become void), will thereafter have the right to receive upon exercise of a Right that number of shares
of Common Stock, in lieu of Preferred Stock, having a market value of two times the exercise price of the Right.

Flip-over Event

In the event that, after a person or group has become an Acquiring Person, the Company is acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction
or 50% or more of its consolidated assets or earning power are sold, proper provisions will be made so that each holder of a Right (other than Rights
beneficially owned by an Acquiring Person which will have become void) will thereafter have the right to receive upon the exercise of a Right that number
of shares of common stock of the person with whom the Company has engaged in the foregoing transaction (or its parent) that at the time of such
transaction have a market value of two times the exercise price of the Right.

At any time after any person or group becomes an Acquiring Person and prior to the earlier of one of the events described in the previous paragraph or the
acquisition by such Acquiring Person of 50% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, the Board of Directors of the Company may exchange
the Rights (other than Rights owned by such Acquiring Person which will have become void), in whole or in part, for shares of Common Stock or Preferred
Stock (or a series of the Company’s preferred stock having equivalent rights, preferences and privileges), at an exchange ratio of one share of Common
Stock, or a fractional share of Preferred Stock (or other preferred stock) equivalent in value thereto, per Right.

With certain exceptions, no adjustment in the Purchase Price will be required until cumulative adjustments require an adjustment of at least 1% in such
Purchase Price. No fractional shares of Preferred Stock or Common Stock will be issued (other than fractions of Preferred Stock which are integral
multiples of one five-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock, which may, at the election of the Company, be evidenced by depositary receipts), and in lieu
thereof an adjustment in cash will be made based on the current market price of the Preferred Stock or the Common Stock.




Redemption

At any time prior to the time an Acquiring Person becomes such, the Board of Directors of the Company may redeem the Rights in whole, but not in part,
at a price of $0.001 per Right (the “Redemption Price”) payable, at the option of the Company, in cash, shares of Common Stock or such other form of
consideration as the Board of Directors of the Company shall determine. The redemption of the Rights may be made effective at such time, on such basis
and with such conditions as the Board of Directors of the Company in its sole discretion may establish. Immediately upon any redemption of the Rights, the
right to exercise the Rights will terminate and the only right of the holders of Rights will be to receive the Redemption Price.

For so long as the Rights are then redeemable, the Company may, except with respect to the Redemption Price, amend the Rights Agreement in any
manner. After the Rights are no longer redeemable, the Company may, except with respect to the Redemption Price, amend the Rights Agreement in any
manner that does not adversely affect the interests of holders of the Rights.

Rights of Holders

Until a Right is exercised or exchanged, the holder thereof, as such, will have no rights as a stockholder of the Company, including, without limitation, the
right to vote or to receive dividends.




Exhibit 10.24

J.PMorgan

May 1, 2020

Francesca’s Collections, Inc.
8760 Clay Road, Suite 100
Houston, Texas 77080
Attention: Cindy Thomassee
E-Mail: [*]

Facsimile No: 713-863-0098

Re: Credit Agreement dated as of May 25, 2018 (as amended by that certain First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of August 13, 2019, the
“Credit Agreement”), among Francesca’s Services Corporation, a Texas corporation (“ESC”), Francesca’s Collections, Inc., a Texas corporation
(“ECI” and, together with FSC, the “Borrowers™), the other Loan Parties party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., a national banking
association (in its capacity as administrative agent, the “Administrative Agent”, in its capacity as Lender, the “Lender” and in its capacity as
issuing bank, the “Issuing Bank”). Unless otherwise defined herein, all terms used herein which are defined in the Credit Agreement shall have the
meaning assigned to such terms in the Credit Agreement.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

1. Borrower Request. The Borrowers have advised the Administrative Agent and the Lenders that the opinion to be delivered by Ernst &
Young LLP (the “Auditor”) with respect to the audited financial statements of FHC and its consolidated Subsidiaries for the fiscal year ending February 1,
2020 (collectively with the related audit opinion of the Auditor, the “2020 Audited Financial Statements”) will contain a “going concern” opinion or like
qualification as a result of FHC and its consolidated subsidiaries’ liquidity position for the next twelve months, which shall cause the Borrowers to fail to
comply with Section 5.01(a) of the Credit Agreement (the “Going Concern Default”). The Borrowers have also advised the Administrative Agent and the
Lenders that due to conditions relating to the COVID-19 crisis in the United States, the Loan Parties are not paying rent on their leased locations for the
months of April, May and June, 2020, which is a failure of the Loan Parties to perform their respective obligations under certain material agreements to
which they are a party and a breach of clause (ii) of Section 5.07 of the Credit Agreement (such non-payment of rent, the “Rent Default” and, together with
the Going Concern Default, the “Specified Defaults”). The Borrowers have requested that the Administrative Agent and the Lender enter into this letter
agreement (this “Letter Agreement”) to waive any Default or Event of Default pursuant to clause (e) of Article 7 of the Credit Agreement solely as a result
of the Specified Defaults.

2. Limited Waiver. In reliance on the representations by the Loan Parties contained in this Letter Agreement, the Administrative Agent and
the Lender hereby agree to waive any Default or Event of Default pursuant to clause (e) of Article 7 of the Credit Agreement as a result of the Specified
Defaults solely to the extent provided herein and so long as each of the following conditions are satisfied (each of the following, a “Specified Condition”,
and, collectively, the “Specified Conditions”):

(a) the Loan Parties deliver a draft of the 2020 Audited Financial Statements to the extent they are able to do so under any agreement
between the applicable Loan Parties and the Auditor and the final 2020 Audited Financial Statements to the Administrative Agent and the Lender, which in
each case comply with the applicable provisions of the Credit Agreement other than with respect to the Going Concern Default;




(b) notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents, the Borrowers deliver a
Borrowing Base Certificate (setting forth the Borrowing Base, the FILO Borrowing Base, Availability and Combined Borrowing Base Availability) and
supporting information, including without limitation, a 13-week cash flow forecast and a report showing Qualified Cash and Liquidity, in each case of the
Loan Parties and their Subsidiaries, in connection therewith, together with any additional reports with respect to the Borrowing Base as the Administrative
Agent may reasonably request (i) as of the date hereof that includes a Reserve in the initial amount of 28.1% of the Borrowers’ aggregate Eligible
Inventory at such time (the “Specified Borrowing Base Reserve”) implemented by the Administrative Agent, which Specified Borrowing Base Reserve
may be adjusted by the Administrative Agent from time to time in accordance with the Credit Agreement, and each Borrowing Base Certificate delivered
hereafter shall include such Specified Borrowing Base Reserve (as adjusted by the Administrative Agent) until it is eliminated or removed by the
Administrative Agent in its sole Permitted Discretion and (ii) on or before the third Business Day of each calendar week (commencing with the first such
date to occur hereafter), as of the period then ended, and continues to do so until the Borrowers have had three fiscal months during which (1) Liquidity on
each day during such period is greater than or equal to $15,000,000 and (2) sales revenue for such period are greater than or equal to 85% of the amount set
forth in the Sales Plan for such period;

(o) the Borrowers agree to not make any Borrowing Request under the Credit Agreement unless its Qualified Cash after giving effect to
such Borrowing Request and the use of proceeds thereof shall be less than $3,000,000 or the Administrative Agent and the FILO Agent otherwise agree;
and

(d) within ninety (90) days (as such date may be extended by the Administrative Agent in its sole discretion) after the date hereof, the Loan
Parties shall have received a tax refund from the U.S. Internal Revenue Service of approximately $10,700,000, and upon receipt, the Borrowers will
immediately (but in any event within two (2) Business Days) use 100% of the cash proceeds from such tax refund to prepay the Obligations and cash
collateralize the LC Exposure as set forth in Section 2.11(e) of the Credit Agreement.

It is understood that the Loan Parties’ failure to comply with any of the Specified Conditions set forth in this Section 2 shall constitute an immediate Event
of Default under Article 7 of the Credit Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the waiver of the Rent Defaults is solely as a result of the Loan Parties’ non-payment of rent on the Loan
Parties’ leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020 and not any other month and such waiver shall not prevent the Administrative Agent
or the Lender from exercising any right or remedy available to it or otherwise taking action under the Loan Documents in the event that a landlord
commences an enforcement action (including, without limitation, any lock out or other self-help remedies commenced by a Loan Party’s landlord) against a
Loan Party in respect of such liabilities or the Rent Defaults.

Except as expressly provided herein, nothing contained herein shall be deemed a consent to, or waiver of, any other action or inaction of the Borrowers or
any of the other Loan Parties which constitutes (or would constitute) a violation of any provision of the Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document, or
which results (or would result) in a Default or Event of Default under the Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document. The Administrative Agent and
the Lender shall have no obligation to grant any future waivers, consents or amendments with respect to the Credit Agreement or any other Loan
Document, and the parties hereto agree that the waiver provided herein shall constitute a one-time limited waiver and shall not constitute a course of
dealing among the parties or waive, affect or diminish any right of the Administrative Agent and the Lender to demand strict compliance with the Credit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents.




3. Amendments to the Credit Agreement. To induce the Administrative Agent and the Lender to enter into this Letter Agreement, each of
the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent and the Lender hereby agrees that the Credit Agreement shall be amended as of the date hereof as follows:

(€)] Section 5.06(b) of the Credit Agreement shall be amended and restated in its entirety to read in full as follows:
(b) in any calendar year, the Administrative Agent may conduct up to two field examinations at the Borrowers’ expense.
(b) Section 5.12(c) of the Credit Agreement shall be amended and restated in its entirety to read in full as follows:
(b) in any calendar year, the Administrative Agent may conduct up to two Inventory appraisals at the Borrowers’ expense.
4. Representations and Warranties; Ratifications and Affirmations of the L.oan Parties. To induce the Administrative Agent and the Lender

to enter into this Letter Agreement, each of the Loan Parties hereby represents and warrants to the Lender and the Administrative Agent as follows:

(a) After giving effect to this Letter Agreement, each representation and warranty of each of the Loan Parties contained in the Credit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents is true and correct in all material respects on and as of the date hereof, except (i) to the extent any such
representations and warranties are expressly limited to an earlier date, in which case, on and as of the date hereof, such representations and warranties are
true and correct in all material respects as of such specified earlier date, and (ii) to the extent that any such representation and warranty is expressly
qualified by materiality or by reference to Material Adverse Effect, such representation and warranty (as so qualified) is true and correct in all respects.

(b) After giving effect to this Letter Agreement, no Event of Default exists.

(o) The execution, delivery and performance by each Loan Party of this Letter Agreement: (a) are within such Loan Party’s limited liability
company, limited partnership or corporate power, as applicable, (b) have been duly authorized by all necessary limited liability company, limited
partnership or corporate action, as applicable, (c) require no action by or in respect of, or filing with, any governmental body, agency or official, except
such as have been obtained or made and are in full force and effect and except for filings necessary to perfect Liens created pursuant to the Loan
Documents, (d) do not violate any Requirement of Law applicable to such Loan Party or any of its Subsidiaries, (e) do not constitute a default under any
material agreement binding upon the Loan Parties, except such as, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material
Adverse Effect, and (f) will not result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon any of the assets of the Loan Parties except for Permitted
Encumbrances and Liens created pursuant to the Loan Documents.

(d) This Letter Agreement constitutes the valid and binding obligation of the Loan Parties enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject
to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject to general principles of
equity, regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

Each of the Loan Parties hereby expressly (x) ratifies and affirms its obligations under the Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents to
which it is a party and (y) acknowledges the validity, enforceability and binding effect against such Loan Party of the Credit Agreement and each other
Loan Document to which such Loan Party is a party, in each case, as amended or otherwise modified hereby

5. Conditions Precedent. The effectiveness of this Letter Agreement is subject to the Administrative Agent’s receipt of (a) executed
counterparts of this Letter Agreement from each Loan Party and the Lender, (b) an executed copy of a letter agreement in form and substance reasonably
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent from the requisite FILO Lenders under the FILO Loan Agreement waiving the Specified Defaults and any related
default or event of default under the FILO Loan Agreement as a result thereof and (c) a consent fee paid by the Borrowers for the account of the Lender in
an amount as separately agreed in the Fee Letter, dated as of the date hereof, among the Administrative Agent and the Borrowers.




6. Miscellaneous. The parties hereto hereby agree that (a) this Letter Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and all parties need not
execute the same counterpart; however, no party shall be bound by this Letter Agreement until a counterpart hereof has been executed by each of the Loan
Parties and the Lender; by fax or other electronic transmission (e.g., “.pdf”) shall be effective as originals, (b) THIS LETTER AGREEMENT
REPRESENTS THE FINAL AGREEMENT AMONG THE PARTIES REGARDING THE MATTERS SET FORTH HEREIN AND MAY NOT BE
CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOQOUS OR ORAL AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES AND THAT THERE ARE NO
UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS AMONG THE PARTIES, (c) this Letter Agreement constitutes a “Loan Document” under and as defined in
Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement, and (d) this Letter Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New
York.

Please evidence your agreement to each of the provisions of this Letter Agreement by executing a counterpart hereof where indicated and
returning a fully executed counterpart.

[Signature Pages Follow]




THE BORROWERS:

OTHER LOAN PARTIES:

FRANCESCA’S SERVICES CORPORATION

By: /s/ Andrew Clarke
Name: Andrew Clarke
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

FRANCESCA’S COLLECTIONS, INC.

By: /s/ Andrew Clarke
Name: Andrew Clarke
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

FRANCESCA’S HOLDINGS CORPORATION

By: /s/ Andrew Clarke
Name: Andrew Clarke
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

FRANCESCA’SLLC

By: /s/ Andrew Clarke
Name: Andrew Clarke
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

[S1GNATURE PAGE TO LETTER AGREEMENT — FRANCESCA’S]




JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A,,
as the Administrative Agent, Issuing Bank, Swingline Lender and Lender

By:/s/ Candice Brooks
Name: Candice Brooks
Title: Authorized Officer

[Si1GNATURE PAGE TO LETTER AGREEMENT — FRANCESCA’S]




Exhibit 10.25
May 1, 2020

Francesca’s Collections, Inc.
8760 Clay Road, Suite 100
Houston, Texas 77080
Attention: Cindy Thomassee
E-Mail: [*]

Facsimile No: 713-863-0098

Re: Term Loan Credit Agreement, dated as of August 13, 2019 (as it may be amended or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit
Agreement”), among Francesca’s Holdings Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“FHC”), the other Loan Parties party thereto, the Lenders party
thereto, and Tiger Finance, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as administrative agent (the “Administrative Agent”). Unless otherwise
defined herein, all terms used herein which are defined in the Credit Agreement shall have the meaning assigned to such terms in the Credit
Agreement.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

1. Borrower Request. The Borrowers have advised the Administrative Agent and the Lenders that the opinion to be delivered by Ernst &
Young LLP (the “Auditor”) with respect to the audited financial statements of FHC and its consolidated Subsidiaries for the fiscal year ending February 1,
2020 (collectively with the related audit opinion of the Auditor, the “2020 Audited Financial Statements”) will contain a “going concern” opinion or like
qualification as a result of FHC and its consolidated subsidiaries’ liquidity position for the next twelve months, which shall cause the Borrowers to fail to
comply with Section 5.01(a) of the Credit Agreement (the “Going Concern Default”). The Borrowers have also advised the Administrative Agent that due
to conditions relating to the COVID-19 crisis in the United States, the Loan Parties are not paying rent on their leased locations for the months of April,
May and June, 2020, which is a failure of the Loan Parties to perform their respective obligations under certain material agreements to which they are a
party and a breach of clause (ii) of Section 5.07 of the Credit Agreement (such non-payment of rent, the “Rent Default”, and together with the Going
Concern Default, the “Specified Defaults”). The Borrowers have requested that the Administrative Agent enter into this letter agreement (this “Letter
Agreement”) to waive any Default or Event of Default pursuant to clause (e) of Article 7 of the Credit Agreement solely as a result of the Specified
Defaults.

2. Limited Waiver. In reliance on the representations by the Loan Parties contained in this Letter Agreement, the Administrative Agent and
the Lenders hereby agree to waive any Default or Event of Default pursuant to clause (e) of Article 7 of the Credit Agreement as a result of the Specified
Defaults solely to the extent provided herein and so long as each of the following conditions are satisfied (each of the following, a “Specified Condition”,
and, collectively, the “Specified Conditions”):

(a) the Loan Parties deliver a draft of the 2020 Audited Financial Statements to the extent they are able to do so under any agreement
between the applicable Loan Parties and the Auditor and the final 2020 Audited Financial Statements to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, which
in each case comply with the applicable provisions of the Credit Agreement other than with respect to the Going Concern Default;

(b) notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents, the Borrowers deliver a
Borrowing Base Certificate (setting forth the Term Loan Borrowing Base, the Revolving Borrowing Base, Combined Borrowing Base and Combined
Borrowing Base Availability) and supporting information, including without limitation, a 13-week cash flow forecast and a report showing Qualified Cash
and Liquidity, in each case of the Loan Parties and their Subsidiaries, in connection therewith, together with any additional reports with respect to the
Borrowing Base as the Administrative Agent may reasonably request on or before the third Business Day of each calendar week (commencing with the
first such date to occur hereafter), as of the period then ended, and continues to do so until the Borrowers have had three fiscal months during which (1)
Liquidity on each day during such period is greater than or equal to $15,000,000 and (2) sales revenue for such period are greater than or equal to 85% of
the amount set forth in the Sales Plan for such period;

(o) each Borrowing Base Certificate delivered by the Borrowers referred to in the preceding paragraph 2(b) shall include the Specified
Borrowing Base Reserve (as defined in the Revolver Waiver (as hereinafter defined) until such time as the Specified Borrowing Base Reserve is eliminated
or removed by the Revolving Agent; and




(d) the Borrowers agree to not make any Borrowing Request under and as defined in the Revolver Loan Agreement unless its Qualified
Cash after giving effect to such Borrowing Request and the use of proceeds thereof shall be less than $3,000,000 or the Administrative Agent and the
Revolver Agent otherwise agree.

It is understood that the Loan Parties’ failure to comply with any of the Specified Conditions set forth in this Section 2 shall constitute an immediate Event
of Default under Article 7 of the Credit Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the waiver of the Rent Default is solely as a result of the Loan Parties’ non-payment of rent on the Loan
Parties’ leased locations for the months of April, May and June, 2020 and no any other month and such waiver shall not prevent the Administrative Agent
or the Lenders from exercising any right or remedy available to it or otherwise taking action under the Loan Documents in the event that the landlord
commences an enforcement action (including, without limitation, any lock out or other self-help remedies commenced by a Loan Party’s landlord) against a
Loan Party in respect of such liabilities or the Rent Default.

Except as expressly provided herein, nothing contained herein shall be deemed a consent to, or waiver of, any other action or inaction of the Borrowers or
any of the other Loan Parties which constitutes (or would constitute) a violation of any provision of the Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document, or
which results (or would result) in a Default or Event of Default under the Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document. The Administrative Agent and
the Lenders shall have no obligation to grant any future waivers, consents or amendments with respect to the Credit Agreement or any other Loan
Document, and the parties hereto agree that the waiver provided herein shall constitute a one-time limited waiver and shall not constitute a course of
dealing among the parties or waive, affect or diminish any right of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders to demand strict compliance with the Credit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents.

3. Amendments to the Credit Agreement. To induce the Administrative Agent and Lenders to enter into this Letter Agreement, each of the
Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders hereby agrees that the Credit Agreement shall be amended as of the date hereof as follows:

(€)] Section 5.06(a) of the Credit Agreement shall be amended and restated in its entirety to read in full as follows:
(a) in any calendar year, the Administrative Agent may conduct up to two field examinations at the Borrowers’ expense.
(b) Section 5.12(a) of the Credit Agreement shall be amended and restated in its entirety to read in full as follows:
(a) in any calendar year, the Administrative Agent may conduct up to two Inventory appraisals at the Borrowers’ expense.
4. Representations and Warranties; Ratifications and Affirmations of the Loan Parties. To induce the Administrative Agent and the Lenders

to enter into this Letter Agreement, each of the Loan Parties hereby represents and warrants to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders as follows:

(a) After giving effect to this Letter Agreement, each representation and warranty of each of the Loan Parties contained in the Credit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents is true and correct in all material respects on and as of the date hereof, except (i) to the extent any such
representations and warranties are expressly limited to an earlier date, in which case, on and as of the date hereof, such representations and warranties are
true and correct in all material respects as of such specified earlier date, and (ii) to the extent that any such representation and warranty is expressly
qualified by materiality or by reference to Material Adverse Effect, such representation and warranty (as so qualified) is true and correct in all respects.

(b) After giving effect to this Letter Agreement, no Event of Default exists.




(o) The execution, delivery and performance by each Loan Party of this Letter Agreement: (a) are within such Loan Party’s limited liability
company, limited partnership or corporate power, as applicable, (b) have been duly authorized by all necessary limited liability company, limited
partnership or corporate action, as applicable, (c) require no action by or in respect of, or filing with, any governmental body, agency or official, except
such as have been obtained or made and are in full force and effect and except for filings necessary to perfect Liens created pursuant to the Loan
Documents, (d) do not violate any Requirement of Law applicable to such Loan Party or any of its Subsidiaries, (e) do not constitute a default under any
material agreement binding upon the Loan Parties, except such as, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material
Adverse Effect, and (f) will not result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon any of the assets of the Loan Parties except for Permitted
Encumbrances and Liens created pursuant to the Loan Documents.

(d) This Letter Agreement constitutes the valid and binding obligation of the Loan Parties enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject
to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject to general principles of
equity, regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

Each of the Loan Parties hereby expressly (x) ratifies and affirms its obligations under the Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents to
which it is a party and (y) acknowledges the validity, enforceability and binding effect against such Loan Party of the Credit Agreement and each other
Loan Document to which such Loan Party is a party, in each case, as amended or otherwise modified hereby

5. Conditions Precedent. The effectiveness of this Letter Agreement is subject to the Administrative Agent’s receipt of (a) executed
counterparts of this Letter Agreement from each Loan Party, (b) an executed copy of a letter agreement in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the
Administrative Agent from the requisite Revolver Agent and Revolver Lenders under the Revolver Loan Agreement waiving the Specified Defaults and
any related default or event of default under the Revolver Loan Agreement as a result thereof (the “Revolver Waiver”) and (c) a consent fee of $25,000 paid
by the Borrowers for the account of the Administrative Agent.

6. Miscellaneous. The parties hereto hereby agree that (a) this Letter Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and all parties need not
execute the same counterpart; however, no party shall be bound by this Letter Agreement until a counterpart hereof has been executed by each of the Loan
Parties, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders; by fax or other electronic transmission (e.g., “.pdf”) shall be effective as originals, (b) THIS LETTER
AGREEMENT REPRESENTS THE FINAL AGREEMENT AMONG THE PARTIES REGARDING THE MATTERS SET FORTH HEREIN AND MAY
NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS OR ORAL AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES AND THAT THERE
ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS AMONG THE PARTIES, (c) this Letter Agreement constitutes a “Loan Document” under and as defined
in Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement, and (d) this Letter Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of
New York.

Please evidence your agreement to each of the provisions of this Letter Agreement by executing a counterpart hereof where indicated and
returning a fully executed counterpart.

[Signature Pages Follow]




THE BORROWERS:

OTHER LOAN PARTIES:

FRANCESCA’S SERVICES CORPORATION

By: /s/ Andrew Clarke
Name: Andrew Clarke
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

FRANCESCA’S COLLECTIONS, INC.

By: /s/ Andrew Clarke
Name: Andrew Clarke
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

FRANCESCA’S HOLDINGS CORPORATION

By: /s/ Andrew Clarke
Name: Andrew Clarke
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

FRANCESCA’SLLC

By: /s/ Andrew Clarke
Name: Andrew Clarke
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

[SI1GNATURE PAGE TO LETTER AGREEMENT — FRANCESCA’S]




ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT: TIGER FINANCE, LLC

By: /s/ Robert DeAngelis

Name: Robert DeAngelis
Title: Executive Managing Director

[SiGNATURE PAGE TO LETTER AGREEMENT — FRANCESCA’S]




LENDER: TIGER FINANCE, LLC

By: /s/ Robert DeAngelis

Name: Robert DeAngelis
Title: Executive Managing Director

[SiGNATURE PAGE TO LETTER AGREEMENT — FRANCESCA’S]




LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following are subsidiaries of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation and the jurisdictions in which they are organized.

Exhibit 21.1

Entity Name Jurisdiction of Organization
Francesca’s LL.C Delaware
Francesca’s Collections, Inc. Texas

Francesca’s Services Corporation Texas




Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Registration Nos. 333-175814 and 333-204856) pertaining to the
Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation Stock Incentive Plan, the Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan, and the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan, of our report dated May 1, 2020, with
respect to the consolidated financial statements of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the fiscal year ended
February 1, 2020.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Houston, Texas
May 1, 2020




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Andrew Clarke, certify that:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financing reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Dated: May 1, 2020 By /s/ Andrew Clarke

Andrew Clarke
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Cindy Thomassee, certify that:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financing reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Dated: May 1, 2020 By /s/ Cindy Thomassee

Cindy Thomassee
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Andrew Clarke, the Chief Executive Officer of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation, certify that (i) the annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 1, 2020 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (ii) the
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation as of the dates and for the periods set forth therein.

/s/ Andrew Clarke
Andrew Clarke
Chief Executive Officer

May 1, 2020
Date

I, Cindy Thomassee, the Chief Financial Officer of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation, certify that (i) the annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 1, 2020 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (ii) the
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation as of the dates and for the periods set forth therein.

/s/ Cindy Thomassee
Cindy Thomassee
Chief Financial Officer

May 1, 2020
Date

The foregoing certifications are being furnished solely to accompany the Annual Report on Form 10-K pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and Rule 13a-14(b) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These certifications shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, nor shall it be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that the Company specifically
incorporates it by reference.




